
In-Person and Via Live Stream 
Dial-In Live Stream: 312-626-6799; Webinar ID 885 6428 5044; Passcode 760219 or click here: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88564285044?pwd=a012bzVQT1E3S1dPNFlSOVVoeEdJQT09 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 13, 2023, CIRCLE-HARLEM TIF PUBLIC HEARING 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 13, 2023 REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 

PUBLIC COMMENT: - emailed public comment can be sent to the Deputy Village Clerk Rachell Entler at 
rentler@forestpark.net prior to 6:30 p.m. the day of the meeting 

COMMUNICATIONS:   

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
1. Fire Department Report
2. Police Department Report

BILLS BY RESOLUTION 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS:  

1. Ordinance Approving a Tax Increment Redevelopment Plan and Redevelopment Project for the 
Circle Harlem Redevelopment Project Area

2. Ordinance Designating the Circle Harlem Redevelopment Project Area of said Village a 
Redevelopment Project Area Pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act

3. Ordinance Adopting Tax Increment Allocation Financing for the Circle Harlem Redevelopment 
Project Area

4. Resolution Authorizing and Directing the Transfer of Funds from the Brown Street Station-Harlem 
Avenue TIF District to the Circle Harlem TIF District

5. A Resolution Determining the Estimated Property Taxes to be Levied by the Village of Forest Park 
for the 2023 Tax Year

6. Ordinance Adopting the Amended FY2024 Appropriation Ordinance for Fiscal Year Beginning 
May 1, 2023 and Ending April 30, 2024

7. Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with MWRD for the Green Alley Project
8. Resolution Authorizing Execution of Professional Engineering and Services Proposal from Burke 

Engineering for Lead Service Line Replacement Project
9. Resolution Authorizing an Application for North Central Council of Mayors Surface 

Transportation Program (STP) Funds (Circle Avenue - From Franklin to Roosevelt)
10. Resolution Authorizing an Application for North Central Council of Mayors Surface 

Transportation Program (STP) Funds (Harrison Street - From Desplaines to Harlem)
11. Ordinance Approving and Authorizing the Execution of a Vehicle Parking License Agreement with 

Currie Motors
12. Motion to Approve and Ratify the Execution of a Maintenance Agreement with Syn-tech Systems, 

Inc.

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
 COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, November 27, 2023   
Lower Level of Village Hall 

7:00 PM 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88564285044?pwd=a012bzVQT1E3S1dPNFlSOVVoeEdJQT09
mailto:rentler@forestpark.net


 

13. Motion to Approve and Ratify Execution of Community Center Senior Trip Contracts 
14. Motion to Approve and Ratify a Raffle Permit Request by the Howard Mohr Community Center 

 
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
COMMISSIONER REPORTS   

ADJOURNMENT   
 



NOVEMBER 13, 2023 
PUBLIC HEARING 

PROPOSED CIRCLE HARLEM TIF DISTRICT 
 
The Village Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, convened at 
6:45 PM on Monday, November 13, 2023, to receive public comment on the proposed 
redevelopment plan and project for the Circle Harlem TIF District, designation of the 
boundaries of the Circle Harlem TIF District, and adoption of tax increment allocation 
financing for the Circle Harlem TIF District. 
 
ROLL CALL 

 
Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll 
Call. 
 
Mr. Brett Michaelson and Mr. Phil McKenna of Ryan gave a presentation outlining the 
TIF fundamentals, TIF Redevelopment Project and Plan, the Village Strategic Planning 
and Objectives, the TIF Qualification Factors, the Key Elements of the TIF Plan and the 
Process and Next Steps.  The redevelopment plans are based on the 2014 Comprehensive 
Plan, and the proposed budget for the TIF is $16,000,000.00. It was discussed that the 
Joint Review Board met and made a positive recommendation.  Further, the Village 
Council makes approval of all expenses.  Any funds left in the existing Brown Street TIF 
will transfer into this TIF. 
 
WRITTEN COMMENTS 
 
None 
 
COMMENTS FROM VILLAGE OFFICIALS 
 
None 
 
COMMENTS FROM VILLAGE STAFF 
 
None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be addressed, Mayor Hoskins called for a motion to 
adjourn the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Maxham motioned to adjourn the public hearing and Commissioner 
Melin-Rogovin seconded the motion.   
 
AYES:      Commissioners, Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYS:      None 



ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
 
The motion carried.  The Hearing adjourned at 7:02 PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, NOVEMBER 13, 2023 
 
 

Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:00 p.m.  
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.  
Commissioner Nero was absent. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the 
minutes from the October 23, 2023, Regular Meeting of the Council be approved without reading as 
each member has received a copy thereof and found same to be correct.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the 
minutes from the October 23, 2023, Closed Session meeting of the Council be approved. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
None 



 2 

APPROVAL OF BILLS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Resolution for the 
payment of bills be adopted.  The bills totaled $1,655,643.77. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Ordinance approving an 
amendment releasing parcels from the Redevelopment Project 
Area of the Brown Street Station-Harlem Avenue Tax 
Increment Financing District for the Village of Forest Park, 
Cook County, Illinois be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Ordinance authorizing 
the sale or disposition of Surplus Property of the Village of 
Forest Park (transceivers and hard driver) be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

R-98-23 
APPROVAL OF BILLS IN 

THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,655,643.77 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-50-23 
ORDINANCE RELEASING 
PARCELS FROM BROWN 

STREET STATION-HARLEM 
AVENUE TIF DISTRICT 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-51-23 
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

SALE OF SURPLUS 
PROPERTY 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Ordinance amending 
section 3-3-6, entitled “License Fee and Number” of Chapter 3, 
entitled “Liquor Control” of Title 3, entitled “Business and 
License Regulations” of the village code of the Village of 
Forest Park be adopted. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin to amend the number of A 
licenses from 18 to 17, due to Lathrop House being closed. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
The clerk was instructed to call the roll call on the original 
motion, as amended. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Ordinance granting a 
conditional use permit for an adult use cannabis infuser in the 
I-1 District in the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois 
re: PZC 2023-04: 1525 Circle be adopted.  It was discussed 
that all loading/unloading will be obscured from public sight 
and will be a secure area.  In addition, all appropriate safety 
measures will be addressed.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and seconded 
by Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution authorizing the 
execution of Pay Request #7 for the 2023 Water Main Project 
to Uno Construction Co., Inc. (Wilcox & Ferdinand) be 
adopted. 

O-52-23 
ORDINANCE AMENDING 

CLASS AND NUMBER OF 
LIQUOR LICENSES 

APPROVED AS AMENDED 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-53-23 
ORDINANCE GRANTING 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
FOR CANNABIS INFUSER 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-99-23 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

PAY REQUEST #7 FOR 
2023 WATER MAIN 

PROJECT 
APPROVED 



 4 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 

 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Resolution approving 
the 2024 agreement with Edward-Elmhurst Occupational 
Health Services for a substance abuse random management 
program in the Village of Forest Park, Illinois be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and seconded 
by Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution approving Pay 
Request #1 for the 2023 Wilcox & Ferdinand Motor Fuel Tax 
(MFT) Resurfacing Improvements project to A Lamp Concrete 
Contractors, Inc. be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin that the Resolution authorizing 
the waiver of the hiring freeze for IMRF employees regarding 
the hiring of one (1) AFSCME Police Department Information 
Management Desk Clerk Employee be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-100-23 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

2024 RANDOM 
MANAGEMENT DRUG 

TESTING PROGRAM 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

R-101-23 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

PAY REQUEST #1 FOR 
2023 WILCOX & 

FERDINAND 
RESURFACING 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-102-23 
RESOLUTION WAIVING 

IMRF HIRING FREEZE RE: 
POLICE DESK CLERK 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin to authorize and ratify the 
mayor’s signature on a Raffle License for St. Luke and St. 
Bernardine Parish related to their Game Day fundraising event 
on November 5, 2023. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: Commissioner Nero 
The motion carried. 
 

STS. LUKE AND 
BERNARDINE RAFFLE 

PERMIT APPROVED AND 
RATIFIED BY MOTION 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
 
Interim Village Administrator, Rachell Entler, reported that the village’s street leaf pickup program 
ends at the end of November and urged residents to refrain from parking on the street if at all 
possible to assist Public Works with the program.  The Police Department will be holding a Citizen’s 
Police Academy starting in January, 2024.  Last, the administrator reported that Village Hall is closed 
on Thursday and Friday, November 23rd and 24th for the Thanksgiving Holiday and wished all those in 
attendance a Happy Thanksgiving. 
 
 
COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS: 
 
Commissioner Maxham reported that her department held a training session for the Planning and 
Zoning Commission members, which she also attended.  The commissioner thanked Director Glinke 
for his efforts and for holding the training.  Last Saturday, District 91 PTO held a Day of Service, 
benefitting the Forest Park Community Fridge.  The commissioner expressed her gratitude to the 
PTO and all of the volunteers who helped.  Commissioner Maxham further thanked Mike Thompson, 
Joseph Byrnes and the Police Department for the Veteran’s Day Ceremony they held.  Last, the 
Chamber’s Wine Walk was successfully held on November 4th.   
 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin reported that she attended the Planning and Zoning Commission 
training event, the Wine Walk, the Veteran’s Day Ceremony, the District 91 Book Fair, the District 209 
School event and appreciated both the Arts Alliance and Public Works for holding/setting up the Fiber 
Flash at Constitution Court.  The commissioner expressed her gratitude to all those who attended the 
Flagpole dedication and flag-raising event, especially the Boy Scouts Troop 107, along with the 
American Legion.  The Historical Society now has a new online map that residents can use to 
research their house and the village streets.  Last, the commissioner attended an Awards Celebration 
for the Iron Workers of Forest Park, who received an achievement award.  The celebration was 
hosted by Chicago Women in Trades. 
 
Commissioner Voogd reported that the village’s inaugural Pumpkin Smash was amazing and the 
children loved it.  The commissioner thanked Geoff Binns-Calvey and Amy Binns-Calvey for their 
efforts, as well as Tuff Coat and Schauer Hardware for sponsoring the event.  Other individuals 
recognized for their help with the event were Megan Hunt, Public Works Director, Sal Stella, Dylan 
Ryan, Paul Richards and Dan Marcus.  The commissioner visited most of the businesses in Forest 
Park who provide carry out food, to remind them about the single-use plastic ordinance and 



 6 

regulations that patrons are required to request the plastic ware.  Commissioner Voogd was also 
thrilled to be invited to the Fiber Flash ribbon cutting ceremony at Constitution Court, thanking Bridget 
Lane for all her and the Arts Alliance’s efforts.  Last the commissioner expressed her gratitude to 
Joseph Byrnes, Michael Thompson and the Forest Park Police Department for the Veteran’s Day 
Ceremony. 
 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Maxham moved and Commissioner 
Melin-Rogovin seconded to adjourn the meeting.  The motion carried. 
 
Mayor Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 7:41 P.M. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 
 



R E S O L U T I O N  No.

               BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 
that we dispense with the reading of the individual bills inasmuch as each department head has approved
and signed bills in the following aggregate amount for their respective departments.

Refunds and Allocations 3,397.47$        
Public Affairs 32,148.28$      
Police Department 7,312.90$        
Community Center 890.68$           
Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 43,794.26$      
Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 825.33$           
Department of Health & Safety 17,553.57$      
Streets and Public Improvements 18,653.13$      
Public Property 49,326.45$      
Seizure 7,858.00$        
Federal Customs 5,084.92$        
TIF 15,902.50$      
VIP 26,154.16$      

Water Department 195,343.84$    

TOTAL 424,245.49$    

  ADOPTED BY THE Council of the Village of Forest Park this 27th Day of November, 2023.

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

___________________________
Rory Hoskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-2001-002 Daniel Damato 11/08/2023 500.00
100-00-000-4220-225  Four Seasons 08/24/2023 115.00
100-00-000-4220-225  Four Seasons 10/19/2023 70.00
100-00-000-4450-121  Passport Labs Inc 10/31/2023 69.56
100-00-000-4450-130  Passport Labs Inc 10/31/2023 2,395.75
100-00-000-4450-140  Passport Labs Inc 10/31/2023 247.16

Refunds and Allocations 3,397.47



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-10-101-6100-100  Del Galdo Law Group LLC 10/01/2023 494.50
100-10-101-6100-100  Del Galdo Law Group LLC 11/01/2023 215.00
100-10-101-6120-160  Techno Consulting Inc 11/11/2023 1,920.00
100-10-101-6120-300  American Express 11/08/2023 1,657.70
100-10-101-6120-305  Kiwanis Club of Forest Park 10/31/2023 800.00
100-10-101-6120-305  Growing Community Media NFP 10/18/2023 250.00
100-10-101-6130-106  Growing Community Media NFP 10/25/2023 265.00
100-10-101-6130-106  Growing Community Media NFP 10/25/2023 265.00
100-10-101-6150-112  Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning 11/06/2023 637.81
100-10-101-6150-202  Checkpoint Press Inc 11/04/2023 447.00
100-10-101-6150-220 Anastasie M. Senat 11/13/2023 247.50
100-11-111-6100-120  Techno Consulting Inc 11/01/2023 3,850.00
100-11-111-6110-105  Agilant Solutions Inc 11/06/2023 14,693.00
100-11-111-6110-105  DELL MARKETING LP 09/25/2023 1,554.66
100-11-111-6110-105  DELL MARKETING LP 09/26/2023 1,105.16
100-11-111-6110-105  DELL MARKETING LP 09/28/2023 870.95
100-11-111-6110-110  Agilant Solutions Inc 11/06/2023 1,385.00
100-11-111-6110-110  Agilant Solutions Inc 11/06/2023 590.00
100-11-111-6110-110  Techno Consulting Inc 11/01/2023 900.00

Public Affairs 32,148.28



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-2002-006  Municipal Collection Services 10/31/2023 49.99
100-12-121-5005-030  Lewis University 07/15/2023 3,600.00
100-12-121-5005-030  Lewis University 08/17/2023 1,800.00
100-12-123-6145-202  Bio-One Chicago LLC. 11/06/2023 75.00
100-12-123-6145-202  Bio-One Chicago LLC. 11/06/2023 75.00
100-12-123-6145-291  ULINE 10/27/2023 1,164.43
100-12-124-6145-211  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 80.05
100-12-124-6150-114  Thomson Reuters-West 11/01/2023 468.43

Police Department 7,312.90



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-15-151-6120-305  Growing Community Media NFP 10/18/2023 720.00
100-15-151-6140-200  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 35.68
100-15-154-6170-114  BLUE CAB CO. 10/26/2023 40.00
100-15-169-6160-100  Elmhurst Occupational Health 10/31/2023 95.00

Community Center 890.68



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-21-211-6110-110  Gordon Flesch Co Inc 11/05/2023 56.43
100-21-211-6110-110  Pitney Bowes Inc 07/27/2023 1,220.75
100-21-211-6120-300  Elmhurst Occupational Health 10/31/2023 58.00
100-21-211-6120-300  Elmhurst Occupational Health 10/31/2023 53.00
100-21-211-6140-102  FED EX 11/14/2023 35.79
100-21-211-6140-104  Office 8 11/08/2023 391.92
100-21-211-6140-104  Pitney Bowes Inc 11/07/2023 124.49
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 10/18/2023 78.24
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 10/25/2023 68.20
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 11/01/2023 302.79
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 11/06/2023 352.99
100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 10/25/2023 89.64
100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 11/01/2023 59.24
100-21-211-6150-100  Growing Community Media NFP 10/25/2023 300.00
100-21-211-6150-112  Municipal Clerks of Illinois 11/13/2023 195.00
100-21-211-6150-122  Illinois GFOA 11/13/2023 20.00
100-21-211-6150-122  IPELRA 11/13/2023 99.00
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 11/01/2023 654.14
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 11/04/2023 89.64
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T LONG DISTANCE 11/04/2023 3.00
100-21-211-6160-001  Alliant Insurance Services Inc - 8377 11/14/2023 100.00
100-21-211-6190-003  POLICE PENSION FUND 11/02/2023 8,952.00
100-21-211-6190-004  Firefighters Pension Fund 11/02/2023 8,952.00
100-21-211-7000-080  Pitney Bowes Inc 11/08/2023 198.00
100-22-221-6310-410  Shales McNutt LLC 10/31/2023 21,340.00

Accounts and Finance (Clerks Office) 43,794.26



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-30-301-6140-200  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 90.55
100-30-301-6140-200 Mark Maylath 11/02/2023 85.00
100-30-301-7000-040  Witmer Public Safety Group 10/27/2023 211.36
100-30-302-6110-200  Reliable Fire & Security 08/29/2023 411.25
100-30-302-6155-110  Grainger Inc. 11/06/2023 27.17

Accounts and Finance (Fire Department) 825.33



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-40-401-5000-017  AMS Electric Inc 11/01/2023 1,755.00
100-40-401-5000-017 Tariq Dandan 11/02/2023 630.00
100-40-401-5000-017 Raymond Traynor 11/13/2023 1,080.00
100-40-401-6140-130  Cloudpermit Inc 10/31/2023 1,500.00
100-40-402-6100-115  Muse Community + Design 10/31/2023 7,337.50
100-40-402-6100-115  Growing Community Media NFP 11/01/2023 119.00
100-40-402-6100-115  Growing Community Media NFP 11/01/2023 119.00
100-40-402-6150-232 Tariq Dandan 11/02/2023 1,072.00
100-40-402-6150-240  Growing Community Media NFP 10/25/2023 50.00
100-40-402-6150-240  Growing Community Media NFP 10/25/2023 126.00
100-40-402-6150-240  Growing Community Media NFP 11/01/2023 119.00
100-40-403-6140-206  Smithereen Pest Mgmt Services 11/01/2023 1,200.00
100-40-403-6150-226  Cook County Dept of Public Health 10/13/2023 1,800.00
100-40-410-6140-100  Backflow Solutions Inc 11/01/2023 495.00
100-40-410-6140-202  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 151.07

Department of Health and Safety 17,553.57



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-50-502-6140-202  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 6.28
100-50-502-6185-102  Lakeshore Recycling Systems LLC 10/31/2023 1,902.55
100-50-502-6185-108  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 15.28
100-50-502-6185-505  West Cook County Solid Waste 10/31/2023 16,729.02

Streets and Public Improvements 18,653.13



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-552-6145-100 Paul Richards 10/19/2023 49.68
100-55-552-6180-101  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 11.68
100-55-552-6180-114  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 49.04
100-55-552-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 11/03/2023 376.00
100-55-552-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 11/03/2023 910.00
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 10/24/2023 54.70
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 10/25/2023 423.19
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 10/25/2023 129.97
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 11/09/2023 479.36
100-55-555-6180-100  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 32.00
100-55-555-6180-100  Colley Elevator Co 11/01/2023 292.00
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 10/18/2023 461.24
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 10/25/2023 289.79
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 11/01/2023 190.74
100-55-555-6180-130  Comcast 11/01/2023 320.42
100-55-555-6180-130  Case Lots Inc 10/10/2023 565.15
100-55-555-6180-140  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 104.28
100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 10/22/2023 188.04
100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 10/28/2023 2.11
100-55-555-6180-140  Case Lots Inc 11/02/2023 201.05
100-55-555-6180-150  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 52.15
100-55-570-6155-101  Mohr Oil Company 10/31/2023 13,308.82
100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 10/02/2023 318.75
100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 10/17/2023 150.69
100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 10/23/2023 1,025.34
100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 10/24/2023 148.30
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 10/25/2023 444.54
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 10/25/2023 93.64
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 10/26/2023 154.98
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 10/31/2023 -264.80
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 10/31/2023 -45.00
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 11/01/2023 296.36
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 11/01/2023 29.98
100-55-570-6155-106  Napco Steel Inc 11/03/2023 320.60
100-55-570-6155-106  Wholesale Direct Inc. 11/02/2023 370.91
100-55-570-6155-106  Wholesale Direct Inc. 11/03/2023 805.12
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/03/2023 142.08



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/05/2023 313.06
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/12/2023 51.82
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/12/2023 137.46
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/17/2023 226.91
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/26/2023 63.86
100-55-570-6155-110  Snap on Industrial 11/03/2023 135.00
100-55-570-6155-112  Action Transmission & Auto 11/03/2023 2,400.00
100-55-570-6155-112  Arlington Power Equipment Inc 09/21/2023 1,492.09
100-55-570-6155-112  Currie Motors Chevrolet 10/05/2023 474.14
100-55-570-6155-112  D & K Truck Safety Lanes 10/31/2023 80.00
100-55-570-6155-112  Fire Service Inc 11/08/2023 1,900.00
100-55-570-6155-112  Fire Service Inc 11/08/2023 10,094.02
100-55-570-6155-112  Fire Service Inc 11/09/2023 6,359.00
100-55-570-6155-112  Henderson Products Inc. 11/09/2023 1,418.65
100-55-570-6155-112  Metro Garage Inc 10/02/2023 25.00
100-55-570-6155-112  Standard Equipment Co. 07/10/2023 1,447.64
100-55-570-6155-202  Berwyn Garage 10/23/2023 112.84
100-55-570-6155-202  Berwyn Garage 10/23/2023 112.06

Public Property 49,326.45



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

230-00-000-6900-230 Joshua Tillman 11/15/2023 871.00
230-00-000-6900-230 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 11/09/2023 750.00
230-00-000-6900-230  Secretary of State 11/27/2023 151.00
230-00-000-6900-230  SkimOil LLC 10/30/2023 6,086.00

Seizure 7,858.00



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

232-00-000-6900-232  Comcast 10/22/2023 173.05
232-00-000-6900-232  CDS Office Technologies 09/06/2023 3,480.00
232-00-000-6900-232 Motorola Solutions StarCom21 Network 11/01/2023 120.00
232-00-000-6900-232 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 10/31/2023 844.23
232-00-000-6900-232  Techno Consulting Inc 11/13/2023 467.64

Federal Customs 5,084.92



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

302-00-000-6185-700 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 2,421.50
304-00-000-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 11/03/2023 911.00
304-00-000-6185-700 Irrigation Systems Halloran & Yauch Inc 11/02/2023 600.00
304-00-000-6185-700  Robert R Andreas & Sons Inc 11/07/2023 5,985.00
304-00-000-6185-700  Robert R Andreas & Sons Inc 11/07/2023 5,985.00

TIF 15,902.50



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

312-00-000-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 2,173.16
312-00-000-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 11/03/2023 911.00
312-00-000-7000-108 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 700.00
312-00-000-7000-109 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 19,960.00
312-00-000-7000-312 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 705.00
312-00-000-7000-312 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 585.00
312-00-000-7000-312 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 1,120.00

VIP 26,154.16



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

501-80-800-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 470.00
501-80-800-6150-112  American Water Works Assoc 10/24/2023 83.00
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 10/25/2023 61.09
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 10/25/2023 21.02
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 10/26/2023 33.43
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 11/08/2023 102.29
501-80-800-6150-154  Constellation Energy Services Inc 10/25/2023 2,959.62
501-80-800-6150-154  Constellation Energy Services Inc 10/27/2023 258.54
501-80-800-6150-156  NICOR 11/02/2023 64.39
501-80-800-6150-156  NICOR 11/02/2023 217.66
501-80-800-6800-100  City of Chicago 11/09/2023 163,265.55
501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 10/30/2023 247.50
501-80-800-6800-151  Core & Main LP 10/27/2023 1,783.56
501-80-800-6800-151  Core & Main LP 11/02/2023 366.82
501-80-800-6800-151  Riccio Construction Corporation 10/31/2023 14,356.63
501-80-800-6800-153  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2023 6.74
501-80-800-6800-176  Core & Main LP 10/27/2023 616.00
501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 5,080.00
501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 4,930.00
501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 11/13/2023 420.00

Water Department 195,343.84



Forest Park 

Fire DePartment 

 

 
 

october 2023 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Calls 
The Fire Department responded to 443 calls in the month of October. That is an average of 14.2 
calls per day for the month. This is a record for number of calls in a month for the FD. 54% of 
the calls were for EMS. 46% were for fire/service calls.  

 

Major Incidents: 

10/20/2023   234 Maple Oak Park – Structure Fire 

10/27/2023  Parkys Car into the building 

10/29/2023  206 Desplaines Forest Park – Dryer fire  

 

 

 

 



 

 

10/20/2023   234 Maple - Oak Park 

 

Forest Park Crew performed search and helped with extinguishment at this large 
apartment fire in Oak Park. 

 

 



 

 

10/20/2023   234 Maple - Oak Park 

 

 

 

 



 

 

10/29/2023  206 Desplaines Forest Park – Dryer fire  

 

Multiple crews were used to make sure the dryer fire was out and there was no 
extension of the fire into the ceiling area. Large amount of smoke was removed 
from the business. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

10/27/2023 Parkys Car into building 

 

 

Crew made sure there were no injuries. Crew assessed building for structural 
integrity.  

 



 

 

 

Inspections 

Residential inspections: None 

Commercial inspections total: 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5

0

Inspections

Commercial Residential



Training 
October 2023 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

FPFD            

• EMS CE                                                                                                                                                    9 
• Extrication Class                                                                                                                                    4 
• Extrication Practical                                                                                                                              6 
• Fire Critique                                                                                                                                            4.5 
• Hydrants                                                                                                                                                 2.5 
• Saw In-Service                                                                                                                                        1.5 

 
 
 

Total =                                                                                                                                                                 27.5 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Outside Drills 

 

Total =                                                                                                                                                                       0 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other Activities 

o Meeting            8 
o Data Base          17 
o Seminars            0 
o Scheduling            5 
o General Administration                      20 

Total =                                                                                                                                                                 50 

 

 

 

 

 



The FD had extrication training this month at NOBS Towing. 

 

Crews are learning new techniques to keep up with the ever-changing auto 
industry. Thanks to NOBS for providing the cars and safe area to train. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

We had a VIP student participate in training! 

 

 

 

 

 



Child Safety Seat Installations – 1 car seat install was done 

 

Community Involvement- The FD attended 7 Block parties this month, 
and the Casket Races on 10/21/23. 

 

 

What’s it like to be up 100 foot in the Basket? Ask these brave ladies. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 



 

 

                                            

  

   

 

 

  

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

September / October 2023 
 

Following are activities related to the Forest Park Police Department that took place in September and 

October 2023: 

• September 9, 2023 – Hispanofest Parade – Melrose Park – Aux. Fluker and Aux. Curtis 

• September 16, 2023 – 29th Annual Firefighters Softball Tournament – Schaumburg – Forest 

Park PD Team 1st Place 

 

  



 

• September 17, 2023 – Casper Lauer Motorcycle Ride Escort – Aux. O’Mara 

 

• September 18, 2023 – Lt. Miller Begins Northwestern University Center for Public Safety Police 

School of Staff and Command – Carol Stream 

• October 7, 2023 – Tour De Proviso – Escort – Aux. Curtis 

• October 8, 2023 – Houby Day Parade – Cicero – Aux. Fluker and Aux. Curtis 

  



 

• October 10, 2023 – Ofc. Caines Promoted to the Rank of Sergeant 

 

 



• October 9, 2023 – Columbus Day Parade – Chicago – Ofc. Marti 

 

• October 21, 2023 – Casket Races – Auxiliary Officers provided Security 

o FPPD Casket Race Team – 2nd Place 

▪ DC Chin 

▪ Ofc. Riglos 

▪ Ofc. Solms 

▪ Ofc. Herigodt 

▪ Ofc. Printz 

 



 

• October 27, 2023 – Swearing In -- Aux Ofc. W. Keohane and K. Kobela 

• October 27, 2023 – Bank the Blue Gala – Rosemont – Chief Gross, Lt. Miller and Det. Hickey 

o https://bankthebluegala.com/ 

• October 29, 2023 – November 3, 2023 – Personnel Board of Jefferson County, Alabama – 

Police Sheriff Captain Exam Assessments Process – Chief Gross 

 

 

https://bankthebluegala.com/


DUI Arrests DWLS/DWLR Arrests NVDL Arrests Fleeing to Elude Incidents

2020 28 182 38 50

2021 14 123 30 71

2022 14 196 26 101

2023* 24 371 57 120

* Through October 25, 2023 at approxiamtely 1100hrs

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2020 2021 2022 2023*

DUI Arrests

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

2020 2021 2022 2023*

DWLS/DWLR Arrests

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2020 2021 2022 2023*

NVDL Arrests

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2020 2021 2022 2023*

Fleeing to Elude Incidents



Advanced Force Report
Report Date: 11/13/2023

Forest Park Police Department

Powered by: 

USE OF FORCE VS. EVENT COMPARISON (RESULT FOR YEAR 2023)

USE OF FORCE VS. EVENT COMPARISON SUMMARY BY MONTH

Event vs. Arrests vs. Use of Force Comparison

Events

Arrests

Use of Force

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Months

0

500

1K

1.5K

2K

2023 Events vs. Use Of Force

MONTHS TOTAL EVENTS USE OF FORCE %

January 1247 2 0.16%

February 1412 1 0.07%

March 1655 4 0.24%

April 1541 6 0.39%

May 1710 0 0.00%

June 1774 2 0.11%

July 1672 1 0.06%

August 1655 2 0.12%

September 1613 1 0.06%

October 1714 0 0.00%

November 0 0 0.00%

December 0 0 0.00%

Total Events: 15993
Use of Force Incidents: 19 0.12%

2023 Arrests vs. Use Of Force

MONTHS TOTAL ARRESTS USE OF FORCE %

January 93 2 2.15%

February 108 1 0.93%

March 129 4 3.10%

April 129 6 4.65%

May 143 0 0.00%

June 145 2 1.38%

July 107 1 0.93%

August 133 2 1.50%

September 139 1 0.72%

October 95 0 0.00%

November 0 0 0.00%

December 0 0 0.00%

Total Arrests: 1221
Use of Force Incidents: 19 1.56%



Use Of Force Dashboard
Report Date: 11/13/2023

Forest Park Police Department

DASHBOARD ‐ USE OF FORCE ‐ CUSTOM
(1/1/2023 ‐ 10/31/2023)

TOTAL
INCIDENTS

26

OPEN

0
PENDING
ASSIGNED

6

PENDING
REVIEW

2

PENDING
APPROVAL

0

COMPLETE

18

INCIDENT TYPE

Suspicious Person

PCS

UUW

POC

Other

Battery/Aggravated Battery

Disturbance

Mental Health

Domestic Violence

Criminal Damage to Pr…

Assault/Aggravated Ass…

1/2

8.7%

15.2%
6.5%

8.7%

10.9%

REASON FOR DEFENSIVE ACTION

Public safety

To make an arrest

To prevent escape

To defend another officer

To defend self

To prevent a violent crime

Mental Health Concern

17.6%

29.4%

13.2%

8.8%

23.5%

USE OF FORCE SUMMARY BY MONTH

Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

Month

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

In
ci
de

nt



Vehicle Pursuit Dashboard
Report Date: 11/13/2023

Forest Park Police Department

DASHBOARD ‐ VEHICLE PURSUIT ‐ CUSTOM
(1/1/2023 ‐ 10/31/2023)

TOTAL
INCIDENTS

28

OPEN

1
PENDING
ASSIGNED

3

PENDING
REVIEW

5

PENDING
APPROVAL

0

COMPLETE

19

INITIATING EVENT

Assist Other Agency

PSMV

Warrant

Shooting

Homicide/Attempt Homi…

Mental Health

Fleeing to Elude

Robbery/Aggravated Ro…

Suspicious Person

Traffic Stop

Theft

1/2

14.9%

12.2%

10.8%

6.8% 18.9%

REASON FOR TERMINATION

Police voluntarily
terminated pursuit

Crash involving suspect
vehicle and citizen

Lost sight of vehicle

Suspect fled on foot

Terminated by supervisor

Other-Description

Crash involving suspect
vehicle only

Suspect surrendered/
stopped

Suspect vehicle disabled

27%

10.8%

8.1%

8.1%

8.1%

10.8%

18.9%

VEHICLE PURSUIT SUMMARY BY MONTH

Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

Month

0

2

4

6

8

10

V
eh

ic
le

 P
ur

su
it



 

 

Report generated with data through 10/18/2023. Please contact SAOData@cookcountyil.gov with questions about this data or anything else related to publicly available CCSAO data. 1 

 

Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office (CCSAO) September 2023 Report 
Forest Park 

All incidents for the below cases occurred within Forest Park. CCSAO data in this report does not include misdemeanor 
charges. 

1. Adult Felony Review & Prosecution 

a) Overall 

In September 2023, the CCSAO reviewed and made a charging decision for 3 adult felony cases in Forest Park. 3 cases were 
approved resulting in a 100% approval rate. Overall, the CCSAO prosecuted 9 cases, and 8 of those cases were filed by the 
CCSAO, not directly filed by law enforcement. Of these CCSAO-filed adult felony cases, 6 were convicted, a 75% conviction 
rate. The overall cases, including law enforcement direct file cases, where the CCSAO is not making charging decisions, 7 were 
convicted, a 78% conviction rate. 

 . Felony Review  Prosecution Overall  Prosecution of SAO Filed 

Area . Reviewed Approved* Approval Rate . Prosecuted** Guilty Conviction Rate . Prosecuted Guilty Conviction Rate 

Forest Park  3 3 100%  9 7 78%  8 6 75% 
Cook County  1,358 1,145 84%  1,912 1,367 71%  1,534 1,238 81% 

b) Top Reviewed & Prosecuted Adult Felony Categories 

Forest Park 

Ranking . Top Reviewed Category Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate . Top Prosecuted Category Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

1  Aggravated DUI 1 1 100%  Unlawful Use of Weapons 3 2 67% 

2  Other Offense 1 1 100%  Aggravated Battery Police Officer 1 1 100% 

3  Possession of Stolen Motor 
Vehicle 1 1 100%  Aggravated Fleeing and Eluding 1 1 100% 

4  -- -- -- --  Burglary 1 1 100% 

5  -- -- -- --  Driving With Suspended/Revoked 
License 1 1 100% 

Cook County 

Ranking . Top Reviewed Category Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate . Top Prosecuted Category Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

1  Unlawful Use of Weapons 483 427 88%  Unlawful Use of Weapons 619 471 76% 

2  Retail Theft 74 53 72%  Narcotics 400 141 35% 

3  Sex Crimes 69 37 54%  Burglary 93 87 94% 

4  Possession of Stolen Motor 
Vehicle 67 53 79%  Aggravated DUI 89 82 92% 

5  Burglary 66 51 77%  Aggravated Battery Police Officer 65 56 86% 

c) Felony Review & Prosecution by Race 

 Forest Park  Cook County 

Race . Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate . Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

Black  3 3 100% 7 6 86%  846 747 88% 1,270 891 70% 

White  0 0 -- 0 0 --  136 115 85% 211 158 75% 

Latinx  0 0 -- 2 1 50%  239 203 85% 339 263 78% 

Asian  0 0 -- 0 0 --  5 4 80% 14 10 71% 

Biracial  0 0 -- 0 0 --  15 12 80% 14 12 86% 

Other  0 0 -- 0 0 --  0 0 -- 0 0 -- 

Unknown  0 0 -- 0 0 --  228 170 75% 59 30 51% 

mailto:SAOData@cookcountyil.gov
https://datacatalog.cookcountyil.gov/browse?tags=state%27s+attorney+case-level&sortBy=most_accessed


 

 

Report generated with data through 10/18/2023. Please contact SAOData@cookcountyil.gov with questions about this data or anything else related to publicly available CCSAO data. 2 

 

2. Adult Felony Diversion 

a) Overall 

In September 2023, the CCSAO referred 1 defendant in Forest Park to a diversion program. 0 defendants graduated from their 
diversion program and 0 defendants failed their diversion program. 

Area Total Referral*** Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

Forest Park 1 0 0 -- 

Cook County 144 57 28 67% 

b) Top Diverted Adult Felony Categories 

Forest Park 

Ranking Top Diverted Category Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

1 Possession of Stolen Motor Vehicle 1 0 0 -- 

Cook County 

Ranking Top Diverted Category Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

1 Narcotics 76 46 13 78% 

2 Unlawful Use of Weapons 18 1 1 50% 

3 Retail Theft 8 1 3 25% 

4 Theft 8 1 2 33% 

5 Possession of Stolen Motor Vehicle 6 1 0 100% 

c) Diversion by Race 

 a Forest Park  Cook County 

Race . Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate . Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

Black  0 0 0 --  72 34 19 64% 

White  0 0 0 --  22 6 5 55% 

Latinx  1 0 0 --  29 12 2 86% 

Asian  0 0 0 --  1 2 1 67% 

Biracial  0 0 0 --  1 0 0 -- 

Other  0 0 0 --  0 0 0 -- 

Unknown  0 0 0 --  19 3 1 75% 

 
* The CCSAO’s first contact with a felony case typically occurs through the Felony Review process. If an arresting agency decides to charge the arrestee with a felony, the CCSAO’s Felony 
Review Unit (FRU) must be contacted to review the evidence and decide whether charges can be filed. Law enforcement can only directly file felonies under limited circumstances, such as 
narcotics cases, non-felony traffic offenses, and misdemeanors. In some instances, a case may also be directly indicted by a grand jury instead of going through the FRU process. Once the 
review process is complete, the FRU will either approve or decline to file the charges or choose to continue the case for the police to further investigate. Approve: Sufficient facts and 
evidence support felony charges. Decline: the evidence presented is insufficient to support felony charges. If felony charges are not approved by the CCSAO, police can refile the case as a 
misdemeanor. If initial charges are declined, the CCSAO can call for the investigation to continue and will then review additional evidence when presented. The approval rate is calculated by 
dividing the number of approved cases by the total number of reviewed cases. For example, the FRU reviewed 55 robbery cases - approved 50 and declined 5. The approval rate would be 
50/ (50+5) = 91%. Sometimes the FRU will determine that there is not enough information yet from law enforcement to approve or decline charges, so they will classify the case as a 
Continued Investigation (CI). CI’ed case numbers are not included here. 
** Prosecuted: A case is moved through the system to a conclusion of guilty or not guilty; Guilty: defendant was determined to be guilty of criminal charges; Conviction rate: Number of 
guilty dispositions (plea of guilty, finding of guilty, or verdict of guilty) divided by the number of cases prosecuted. Cases that reached disposition during this year may have been initiated 
prior to this timeframe. 
*** Diversion can occur at many points throughout the criminal justice process. As the prosecuting body for Cook County, diversion for the CCSAO refers to connecting defendants to 
services and programs (e.g., assistance with substance abuse, employment, mental health treatment, etc.), rather than sentencing them to time in custody. Assistant State’s Attorneys screen 
cases and refer eligible defendants to diversion programs. There are pre-plea and post-plea court-based diversion programs available in Cook County; five are pre-plea diversion programs 
overseen by the CCSAO, and three are post-plea programs overseen by the Office of the Chief Judge. Learn more about Cook County diversion programs. Referral is the number of individuals 
referred to a diversion program. Graduated is the number of individuals who successfully completed a diversion program. Failed is the number of people who either dropped out of a 
diversion program or were disqualified from the program (for example getting rearrested). The graduation rate is defined as the number of graduates divided by the number of individuals 
who either graduated or failed a program. 

mailto:SAOData@cookcountyil.gov
https://datacatalog.cookcountyil.gov/browse?tags=state%27s+attorney+case-level&sortBy=most_accessed
https://www.cookcountystatesattorney.org/resources/diversion-programs


 

 

Report generated with data through 11/03/2023. Please contact SAOData@cookcountyil.gov with questions about this data or anything else related to publicly available CCSAO data. 1 

 

Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office (CCSAO) October 2023 Report 
Forest Park 

All incidents for the below cases occurred within Forest Park. CCSAO data in this report does not include misdemeanor 
charges. 

1. Adult Felony Review & Prosecution 

a) Overall 

In October 2023, the CCSAO reviewed and made a charging decision for 9 adult felony cases in Forest Park. 9 cases were 
approved resulting in a 100% approval rate. Overall, the CCSAO prosecuted 7 cases, and all those cases were filed by the 
CCSAO, not directly filed by law enforcement. Of these CCSAO-filed adult felony cases, 5 were convicted, a 71% conviction 
rate. 

 . Felony Review  Prosecution Overall  Prosecution of SAO Filed 

Area . Reviewed Approved* Approval Rate . Prosecuted** Guilty Conviction Rate . Prosecuted Guilty Conviction Rate 

Forest Park  9 9 100%  7 5 71%  7 5 71% 
Cook County  1,373 1,138 83%  1,464 1,045 71%  1,170 930 79% 

b) Top Reviewed & Prosecuted Adult Felony Categories 

Forest Park 

Ranking . Top Reviewed Category Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate . Top Prosecuted Category Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

1  Unlawful Use of Weapons 3 3 100%  Aggravated DUI 1 1 100% 

2  Possession of Stolen Motor 
Vehicle 2 2 100%  Domestic Violence 1 1 100% 

3  Aggravated Battery 1 1 100%  Driving With Suspended/Revoked 
License 1 1 100% 

4  Aggravated DUI 1 1 100%  Failure to Register as a Sex Offender 1 1 100% 

5  Fraudulent ID 1 1 100%  Other Offense 1 0 0% 

Cook County 

Ranking . Top Reviewed Category Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate . Top Prosecuted Category Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

1  Unlawful Use of Weapons 435 384 88%  Unlawful Use of Weapons 478 369 77% 

2  Retail Theft 97 64 66%  Narcotics 303 119 39% 

3  Sex Crimes 97 63 65%  Aggravated DUI 68 63 93% 

4  Aggravated Battery Police 
Officer 78 77 99%  Aggravated Battery Police Officer 61 51 84% 

5  Possession of Stolen Motor 
Vehicle 74 56 76%  Retail Theft 58 43 74% 

c) Felony Review & Prosecution by Race 

 Forest Park  Cook County 

Race . Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate . Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

Black  9 9 100% 4 2 50%  767 640 83% 1,028 722 70% 

White  0 0 -- 1 1 100%  140 121 86% 157 109 69% 

Latinx  0 0 -- 2 2 100%  252 218 87% 214 177 83% 

Asian  0 0 -- 0 0 --  11 9 82% 9 6 67% 

Biracial  0 0 -- 0 0 --  3 3 100% 12 11 92% 

Other  0 0 -- 0 0 --  1 1 100% 0 0 -- 

Unknown  0 0 -- 0 0 --  317 245 77% 42 18 43% 

2. Adult Felony Diversion 

mailto:SAOData@cookcountyil.gov
https://datacatalog.cookcountyil.gov/browse?tags=state%27s+attorney+case-level&sortBy=most_accessed


 

 

Report generated with data through 11/03/2023. Please contact SAOData@cookcountyil.gov with questions about this data or anything else related to publicly available CCSAO data. 2 

 

a) Overall 

In October 2023, the CCSAO referred 0 defendants in Forest Park to a diversion program. 0 defendants graduated from their 
diversion program and 1 defendant failed their diversion program. The overall graduation rate is 0%. 

Area Total Referral*** Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

Forest Park 0 0 1 0% 

Cook County 123 32 36 47% 

b) Top Diverted Adult Felony Categories 

Forest Park 

Ranking Top Diverted Category Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

1 Vehicular Hijacking 0 0 1 0% 

Cook County 

Ranking Top Diverted Category Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

1 Narcotics 49 16 10 62% 

2 Theft 14 2 0 100% 

3 Burglary 13 2 3 40% 

4 Unlawful Use of Weapons 10 0 1 0% 

5 Aggravated Battery Police Officer 6 2 2 50% 

c) Diversion by Race 

 a Forest Park  Cook County 

Race . Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate . Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

Black  0 0 1 0%  72 15 23 39% 

White  0 0 0 --  19 7 11 39% 

Latinx  0 0 0 --  10 2 2 50% 

Asian  0 0 0 --  2 1 0 100% 

Biracial  0 0 0 --  2 0 0 -- 

Other  0 0 0 --  0 0 0 -- 

Unknown  0 0 0 --  18 7 0 100% 

 
* The CCSAO’s first contact with a felony case typically occurs through the Felony Review process. If an arresting agency decides to charge the arrestee with a felony, the CCSAO’s Felony 
Review Unit (FRU) must be contacted to review the evidence and decide whether charges can be filed. Law enforcement can only directly file felonies under limited circumstances, such as 
narcotics cases, non-felony traffic offenses, and misdemeanors. In some instances, a case may also be directly indicted by a grand jury instead of going through the FRU process. Once the 
review process is complete, the FRU will either approve or decline to file the charges or choose to continue the case for the police to further investigate. Approve: Sufficient facts and 
evidence support felony charges. Decline: the evidence presented is insufficient to support felony charges. If felony charges are not approved by the CCSAO, police can refile the case as a 
misdemeanor. If initial charges are declined, the CCSAO can call for the investigation to continue and will then review additional evidence when presented. The approval rate is calculated by 
dividing the number of approved cases by the total number of reviewed cases. For example, the FRU reviewed 55 robbery cases - approved 50 and declined 5. The approval rate would be 
50/ (50+5) = 91%. Sometimes the FRU will determine that there is not enough information yet from law enforcement to approve or decline charges, so they will classify the case as a 
Continued Investigation (CI). CI’ed case numbers are not included here. 
** Prosecuted: A case is moved through the system to a conclusion of guilty or not guilty; Guilty: defendant was determined to be guilty of criminal charges; Conviction rate: Number of 
guilty dispositions (plea of guilty, finding of guilty, or verdict of guilty) divided by the number of cases prosecuted. Cases that reached disposition during this year may have been initiated 
prior to this timeframe. 
*** Diversion can occur at many points throughout the criminal justice process. As the prosecuting body for Cook County, diversion for the CCSAO refers to connecting defendants to 
services and programs (e.g., assistance with substance abuse, employment, mental health treatment, etc.), rather than sentenc ing them to time in custody. Assistant State’s Attorneys screen 
cases and refer eligible defendants to diversion programs. There are pre-plea and post-plea court-based diversion programs available in Cook County; five are pre-plea diversion programs 
overseen by the CCSAO, and three are post-plea programs overseen by the Office of the Chief Judge. Learn more about Cook County diversion programs. Referral is the number of individuals 
referred to a diversion program. Graduated is the number of individuals who successfully completed a diversion program. Failed is the number of people who either dropped out of a 
diversion program or were disqualified from the program (for example getting rearrested). The graduation rate is defined as the number of graduates divided by the number of individuals 
who either graduated or failed a program. 

mailto:SAOData@cookcountyil.gov
https://datacatalog.cookcountyil.gov/browse?tags=state%27s+attorney+case-level&sortBy=most_accessed
https://www.cookcountystatesattorney.org/resources/diversion-programs
















Forest Park Police Department

Time Period 09/01/2023 - 10/31/2023

84

88

92

96

100

104

108

112

116

120

M
on

da
y

T
ue

sd
ay

W
ed

ne
sd

ay

T
hu

rs
da

y

F
rid

ay

Sat
ur

da
y

Sun
da

y

96

117

98 99 98

116

87

Items For Service Distribution
Total By Day of Week

 711

Total Items For Service

CAD Call Statistics

 

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

00
:0

0-
01

:0
0

01
:0

0-
02

:0
0

02
:0

0-
03

:0
0

03
:0

0-
04

:0
0

04
:0

0-
05

:0
0

05
:0

0-
06

:0
0

06
:0

0-
07

:0
0

07
:0

0-
08

:0
0

08
:0

0-
09

:0
0

09
:0

0-
10

:0
0

10
:0

0-
11

:0
0

11
:0

0-
12

:0
0

12
:0

0-
13

:0
0

13
:0

0-
14

:0
0

14
:0

0-
15

:0
0

15
:0

0-
16

:0
0

16
:0

0-
17

:0
0

17
:0

0-
18

:0
0

18
:0

0-
19

:0
0

19
:0

0-
20

:0
0

20
:0

0-
21

:0
0

21
:0

0-
22

:0
0

22
:0

0-
23

:0
0

23
:0

0-
24

:0
0

46

35

23

16 16 18

9

22
27

31 32

40

33 35
40

46
42

52

31

24
28

22

11

32

Items For Service Distribution
Total By Hour of Day

Page 1 of 1



UCR STATS 2023
Jan Feb Mar Apr MayJun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 

Felony Arrests 15 10 16 12 22 16 14 18 19 17 159

Misdemeanor Arrests 49 54 80 83 69 84 55 88 82 60 704

Warrant Arrests 6 9 7 4 14 12 2 13 11 9 87

DUI Arrests 1 1 2 0 0 2 1 1 2 1 11

Suspended License Arrests 20 34 42 39 39 38 31 44 40 33 360

Traffic Citations Issued 141 230 260 221 283 230 232 247 236 191 2271

Traffic Crashes 54 62 63 53 54 69 72 69 76 83 655

Vehicular Hijackings 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 3

Total 287 400 470 413 481 451 408 480 466 394 4250

Police Reports 264 274 345 331 335 474 334 382 344 372 3455

INDEX CRIME OFFENSES
Criminal Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forcible Rape 0 1 1 2 1 2 1 3 0 0 11

Robbery 5 1 3 1 0 9 7 6 2 10 44

Agg. Assault/Agg Battery 4 1 1 4 0 2 1 1 0 3 17

Burglary 8 3 0 4 2 18 2 5 7 3 52

Theft 16 10 26 20 23 36 23 25 24 40 243

Motor Vehicle Theft 10 2 6 4 11 15 22 14 8 13 105

Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Total 473

INDEX CRIME ARRESTS
Criminal Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forcible Rape 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Robbery 1 0 0 0 0 4 2 1 0 0 8

Agg. Assault/Agg Battery 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 2 0 0 5

Burglary 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 5

Theft 2 2 3 2 2 5 0 1 4 6 27

Motor Vehicle Theft 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 4 2 1 10

Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Total 56

DRUG CRIME ARRESTS
Cannabis Control Act 2 0 2 0 1 2 0 3 1 1 12

Controlled Substance 7 2 4 4 2 3 5 5 7 8 47

Hypodermic Needle/Syringe 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Drug Paraphernalia 1 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 4

Methamphetamine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1

Total 64



 

Criminal Investigations Division 

September and October, 2023 

  

 

The Forest Park Police Department’s (FPPD) Criminal Investigation Division (CID) is 

supervised by Detective Lieutenant Dan Pater.  Three detectives are assigned to CID; Det. 

Sgt. Heveran, Det. Reilly, and Det. Cannon.  Det. Reilly was recently reassigned back into CID 

mid-October.  Ofc. Cannon was working with CID on light duty and was promoted to Detective 

in mid-October after being released back to full duty.  Det. Mike O’Connor is the police 

department’s Community Policing / Crime Free Housing Officer assigned to CID.  

Joel Zavala is the Forest Park’s Evidence Custodian and is in charge of maintaining evidence 

and records.  Aside from his Evidence Custodian duties, Joel performs administrative duties 

for investigators, and assists the 24-hour desk and records when needed. 

 

Evelyn Simmons is a counselor assigned to the department from Amita Health Behavioral Health 
Clinician Evelyn is outsourced to the Forest Park Police Department four days a week and has 
office space within the CID building located at 501 Desplaines Ave. 
 

Police incident reports are reviewed by the Investigations Division every working day. Incidents 

that have victims wishing to sign a complaint against an offender are assigned to a detective 

for further review in an effort to develop a suspect(s), conduct interviews, and gather evidence 

to effect an arrest and present a winnable case in criminal court.  Some incidents are turned 



over to Evelyn Simmons should there be a need for outreach from her organization, mainly in 

reference to mental health concerns.  Other incidents such as neighbor or landlord tenant 

disputes are forwarded to Det. Mike O’Connor so he can intervene and possibly mediate or 

offer eviction advice.  Problem properties may be deemed a nuisance by Det. O’Connor should 

they meet the criteria established under the village ordinance.   

Detectives rotate on call assignments weekly so a Forest Park Police Detective is available 24 

hours a day, seven days a week should the need for CID assistance arise.  If a major incident 

is encountered during off hours, the entire CID staff could be called upon to respond if needed.  

The detectives are members of the West Suburban Major Crimes Task Force (WESTAF) and 

are, at times, on call to assist member agencies should a homicide occur in a WESTAF 

jurisdiction.  There were no WESTAF callouts in September and October. 

Currently, the Forest Park PD is a member agency in the multijurisdictional West Suburban 

Drug and Gang Enforcement Task Force (WEDGE).  Det. Reilly is currently our assigned 

WEDGE officer. 

Det. Lt. Pater is assigned as the Assistant Team Commander for NIPAS (Northern Illinois 

Police Alarm System) Mobile Field Force, comprised of approximately 130 members from 85 

different Police agencies.  The NIPAS MFF is a highly-trained crowd control team designated 

to respond to critical incidents involving civil disturbances, union conflicts, public 

demonstrations, and other events involving large or disorderly crowds.  The NIPAS MFF was 

put on standby 4 times in September and October for potential protests in Waukegan, 

Mundelein, Lincolnshire, and Skokie.  The team was activated for President Biden’s visit to 

Glencoe on October 4th and for civil unrest in Skokie on October 22nd. 

Detectives are also members of ICAC (Internet Crimes against Children) task force which 

investigates the on-line sexual exploitation of children.  As such, they also investigate Cyber-

Tips generated by NCMEC (National Center for Missing and Exploited Children), and conduct 

online covert operations predators in our area.  There was 6 new Cyber-Tips in September and 

October, which Det. Sgt. Heveran monitors and investigates. 

Forest Park CID joined forces with Chicago Police Department on a Joint Vehicular Hijacking 

Task Force. This task force has been fast growing as more suburban departments have joined 

each month to work together to combat an alarming rise in vehicular hijacking incidents that 

have occurred throughout the Chicago area. Forest Park Police have continued this mission 

and have shared vital information on intelligence and information regarding known offenders 

and hot spots that are vulnerable to vehicular hijackings, in which the task force’s mission and 

results was highlighted.  Det. Sgt. Heveran and Det. Reilly were able to attend the Task Force 

date in October.  Det. Sgt. Heveran continues to maintain contact and information sharing with 

other Task Force members. 

 

There were 90 incidents assigned to investigators for follow-up in September and October, 

2023; 43 in September and 47 in October.  Case selection has been reduced and screened 

due to a shortage of manpower and more focus has been exhausted on major cases and 



those involving violence against victims.  In addition to the 90 newly assigned cases, CID 

detectives continue to work on cases predating September 1, 2023.  

 

                       

   

 

                      

The following is a summary of notable investigations in September and October, 2023:  

• Case #: 23-03230 – Aggravated Unlawful Use of Weapon.  CID investigators 

assisted with the initial call of a Man with a Gun / Hostage situation where two 

women (sisters) were being held in their apartment against their will, which 

occurred on 18 Oct 23.  FP Officers and Detectives were able to tactically and 

safely remove all occupants of the residence.  FP Officers and Detectives 

searched the apartment for other victims and/or offenders and located a loaded 

9mm handgun inside the apartment.  After a thorough investigation, CID 

investigators were able to conclude the male offender was the boyfriend/ex-

boyfriend of one of the women in the apartment.  The male offender unlawfully 

restrained his ex-girlfriend inside her apartment with a handgun.  The other sister 

was not involved and was a witness in the incident.  However, due to lack of 

38 39
29

22

42
37 37 37

30

44

74

29

54

28
34

40 38
44

37
45 43 47

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Number of CID Cases Assigned 
Monthly

2022 2023

458

410

2022 2023

Number of CID Cases Assigned 
by Year



cooperation from the victim, the ASA’s office denied kidnapping and unlawful 

restraint charges and approved charges for Agg UUW. 

 

• Case #: 23-03262 – Battery.  On 20 Oct 23, a 59-year-old victim was battered at 

their apartment complex by a 32-year-old tenant.  On 21 Oct 23, Det. Sgt. Heveran 

and Det. Lt. Pater located and arrested the offender for battery.  Due to the victim 

not being 60YOA and no significant harm evident in medical records, the ASA’s 

office declined felony charges and the offender was charged with a misdemeanor. 

 

• Case #: 23-03007 – Identity Theft.  CID Investigators were assigned the Identity 

Theft that occurred at U-Haul where a victim had his credit card information stolen 

by his ex-girlfriend.  Det. Lt. Pater located and charged the offender with a local 

ordinance citation for disorderly conduct 

 

• Case #23-02944 – Battery / Aggravated Robbery.  Det. Cannon was assigned the 

battery case that occurred at 7-11 (205 Harlem).  Through Det. Cannon’s 

investigation, it was discovered the crime was actually an Aggravated Robbery as 

the victim had his personal items taken from him during the battery.  Det. Cannon 

identified the subjects in the incident and after a thorough investigation, the victim 

related he no longer wished to sign complaints against anyone and further 

requested no further police assistance.  This case was closed. 

 

• Case #s 23-03322 and 23-03323 – Armed Robberies.  CID Investigators were 

assigned two armed robberies that occurred at Suburban Liquor (7612 Madison) 

and Goldy Burgers (7316 Circle) that occurred on 25 Oct 23.  In the liquor store 

robbery, the offenders pistol-whipped the clerk causing significant injury.  Several 

patrons were robbed of their belongings at Goldy Burgers.  Forest Park CID has 

been working with Chicago PD and Elmwood Park PD to locate possible suspects.  

Due to the severity of the cases and due to this robbery crew hitting multiple liquor 

stores and bars, the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms, and Explosives (ATF) 

is now partnering with agencies to identify and locate these offenders.  On 29 Oct 

23, the Chrysler 300 vehicle that was used during our robberies was located in 

Chicago and was processed by investigators for evidence.  This investigation is 

ongoing. 

 

 

• In addition to these highlighted cases, in the last two months, CID has closed and 

cleared over 36 prior cases. 

 

Forest Park Criminal Investigations Division members are experienced and 

dedicated public servants who have built and continue to maintain professional 

relationships within the community and with neighboring agencies in an effort to 

quash criminal activity and to solve as many cases as possible.  



FOREST PARK POLICE DEPARTMENT 
ASSET SEIZURE AND FORFEITURES 

September- October 2023 
 

 
Following is a summary of Asset Seizure and Forfeiture activity by the Forest Park 
Police Department in September - October 2023.  All money, vehicle, and 
property seizures made by this department are in compliance with Illinois Statutes 
on drug and money laundering forfeiture laws (Illinois Compiled Statutes, Chapter 
725, Article 150/5) and other vehicle seizure laws (Chapter 720, Article 36). 
 
NEW CASES: 
On 10/31/2023, the Forest Park Police Department Patrol Division seized a 2017 
Cadillac XT5 after the driver was cited for DWLR (DUI Based).  Estimated Value: 
$11,388 ***No Lien*** 
 
On 10/29/2023, the Forest Park Police Department Patrol Division seized a 2014 
Chevy Silverado after the driver was cited for Aggravated DWLR (DUI Based).  
Estimated Value: $8,925 ***Lien Holder Rights Apply*** 
 
On 10/19/2023, the Forest Park Police Department Patrol Division seized a 2020 
Jeep Cherokee after the driver was cited for Aggravated DWLR (DUI Based).  
Estimated Value: $20,451 ***Lien Holders Rights Apply*** 
 
On 10/08/2023, the Forest Park Police Department Patrol Division seized a 2012 
Chevy Impala after the driver was cited for Aggravated DWLR (DUI Based).  
Estimated Value: $2,960 ***Lien Holder Rights Apply*** 
 
On 09/27/2023, the Forest Park Police Department Patrol Division seized a 2019 
Hyundai Sante Fe after the driver was cited for DWLR (DUI Based).  Estimated 
Value: $12,650 ***Lien Holder Rights Apply*** 
 
On 09/25/2023, the Forest Park Police Department Patrol Division seized a 2016 
Nissan Maxima after the driver was cited for DWLR (DUI Based).  Estimated 
Value: $17,889 ***Lien Holder Rights Apply*** 
 
On 09/212023, the Forest Park Police Department Patrol Division seized a 2015 
BMW X5 after the driver was cited for Aggravated DWLR (DUI Based).  Estimated 
Value: $8,000 ***Lien Holder Rights Apply*** 
 
On 09/20/2023, the Forest Park Police Department Patrol Division seized a 2018 
Dodge Challenger after the driver was cited for DWLR (DUI Based).  Estimated 
Value: $16,000 ***Lien Holder Rights Apply*** 
 



On 09/17/2023, the Forest Park Police Department Patrol Division seized a 2015 
Chevy Malibu after the driver was cited for Aggravated DWLR (DUI Based).  
Estimated Value: $8,000 **Lien Holder Rights Apply*** 
 
On 09/02/2023, the Forest Park Police Department Patrol Division seized a 2007 
Ranger Rover Land Rover after the driver was cited for Aggravated DWLR (DUI 
Based).  Estimated Value: $1,800 ***Lien Holder Rights Apply*** 
 
AWARDED VEHICLES: 
On 09/11/2023, the Forest Park Police Department was awarded a 2014 Nissan 
Pathfinder. The Nissan had an active Lien on the vehicle and ISP made contact 
with the lien holder who came and picked-up the vehicle along with paying an 
Administrative Tow fee.  In the agreement with ISP, the lien holder acknowledges 
the vehicle cannot go back to the offender it was seized from. 
 
 



LESO  
The Police Department was awarded the following items thru LESO:  
 
2008 Ford F-350 Truck 
 
2009 Ford Ranger Pick-Up Truck  
 
(62) First Aid Kits – Needed for Tourniquets 

 
Special Response Team (SRT) 
There were no SRT activations for the months of September / October, 2023. 
 
Special Response Team Training  
The SRT did not conduct training in September / October, 2023 due to low manpower.  
 

Range  
Nothing to Report  
 
License Plate Reader (LPR)/Street Camera Usage 
During the months of September - October of 2023, the Forest Park Police Department 
document usage of the Street Camera and LPR system were September 2023- 09 reports and 
October 2023- 2 reports.  Forest Park Police Officers used these cameras/technologies for a 
variety of crimes/incidents including: Accidents including Hit and Run Investigations, Aggravated 
Assault to Peace Officer, Battery, Runaway from Riveredge, Accident- Damage to Village 
Property, Aggravated Flee/Eluding Peace Officer- Motor Vehicle Theft, Catalytic Converter 
Theft, Flee/Eluding Peace Officer, Motor Vehicle Theft, Battery and FOIA Request. 

 
Auxiliary Unit 
The following is a list of events the Auxiliary Unit had participated during the months of 
September & October 2023: 
 

1. 09 September 2023- Hispanofest (Melrose Park, Illinois) 
 

2. 23 September 2023- Opportunity Knocks Softball Tournament (Park District of Forest 
Park-Officer Bolton) 

 
3. Westchester Bicycle Ride (Officer Curtis) 

 
4. Cicero First Responder Parade (Officer Fluker & Officer Curtis) 
 

5. Forest Park Casket Race (Officer Zavala, Officer Fluker, Officer Curtis, & Officer 
Dudek) 

 
We had conducted an Auxiliary Officer meeting on 11 October 2023 where several “Police 1” 
training videos were viewed, and the meeting was open for discussion regarding the training 
videos.  We had also discussed the upcoming Casket Race, which went very well with no 
issues. 
 
The Auxiliary Unit added two new officers who are currently employed as Parking Enforcement 
Officers.  On Friday 27 October 2023 PEO Keohane and PEO Kobela were both sworn in as 
Auxiliary Officers by Mayor Hoskins.  The Auxiliary Unit now has a total of eleven officers. 

 



   

1 
1163109.2 

ORDINANCE NO. O-______-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, APPROVING A  

TAX INCREMENT REDEVELOPMENT PLAN  
AND REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT FOR THE  

CIRCLE HARLEM REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the best interest of the citizens of the Village of Forest 

Park, Cook County, Illinois (the “Village”), for the Village  to implement tax increment allocation 

financing pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, Division 74.4 of Article 

11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended (the “Act”), for a proposed redevelopment plan 

and redevelopment project (the “Plan and Project”) within the municipal boundaries of the 

Village and within a proposed redevelopment project area (the “Area”) described in Section 1(a) 

of this Ordinance, which Area constitutes in the aggregate more than one and one-half acres; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 11-74.4-5 of the Act, the Mayor and Village Council of 

the Village (the “Corporate Authorities”) called and conducted a public hearing relative to the 

Plan and Project and the designation of the Area as a redevelopment project area under the Act for 

on November 13, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, due notice with respect to such hearing was given pursuant to Section 11-

74.4-5 of the Act, said notice being given to taxing districts and to the Illinois Department of 

Commerce and Economic Opportunity (f.k.a. Department of Commerce and Community Affairs 

of the State of Illinois) by certified mail on September 12, 2023, by publication on October 18, 

2023 and October 25, 2023 and by certified mail to taxpayers within the Area on October 25, 

2023; and 



   

2 
1163109.2 

WHEREAS, on October 10, 2023, notice was provided by mail to all residential 

addresses that, after a good faith effort, the Village determined were located within 750 feet of 

the Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Village did heretofore convene a Joint Review Board as required by and 

in all respects in compliance with the provisions of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Joint Review Board met on September 27, 2023, to review the public 

record, planning documents and proposed ordinances approving the Plan and Project and 

consider whether the Plan and Project and Area satisfy the requirements of the Act; and  

WHEREAS, on September 27, 2023, the Joint Review Board considered and approved a 

resolution recommending approval of the Plan and Project and the designation of the Area by the 

Village; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan and Project set forth the factors that caused the proposed Area to 

qualify as a “conservation area” and the Corporate Authorities have reviewed the information 

concerning such factors presented at the public hearing and have reviewed other studies and are 

generally informed of the conditions in the proposed Area that have caused the proposed Area to 

qualify as a “conservation area” as defined in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have reviewed the conditions pertaining to lack 

of private investment in the proposed Area to determine whether private development would take 

place in the proposed Area as a whole without the adoption of the proposed Plan and Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have reviewed the conditions pertaining to real 

property in the proposed Area to determine whether contiguous parcels of real property and 

improvements thereon in the proposed Area would be substantially benefited by the 

redevelopment of the Area pursuant to the Plan and Project; and 



   

3 
1163109.2 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have reviewed the proposed Plan and Project and 

also the existing comprehensive plan for development of the Village as a whole to determine 

whether the proposed Plan and Project conforms to the comprehensive plan of the Village. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Village Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1.  Findings.  That the Corporate Authorities hereby make the following 

findings: 

a. The Area is legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein 

as if set out in full by this reference.  The general street location for the Area is described in 

Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full by this reference.  The map 

of the Area is depicted on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full 

by this reference. 

b. Conditions exist which cause the Area to be subject to designation as a 

redevelopment project area under the Act and to be classified as a “conservation area” and as 

defined in the Act. 

c. The proposed Area on the whole has not been subject to growth and development 

through investment by private enterprise and would not be reasonably anticipated to be 

developed without the adoption of the Plan and Project. 

d. The Plan and Project conform to the comprehensive plan for the development of 

the Village as a whole. 

e. As set forth in the Plan and Project it is anticipated that the redevelopment of the 

Area will be completed within twenty-three (23) years after the Area is designated and that all 

obligations incurred to finance redevelopment project costs, if any, as defined in the Plan and 



   

4 
1163109.2 

Project shall be retired not later than December 31 of the year in which payment to the municipal 

treasurer is made with respect to ad valorem taxes levied in the 23rd calendar year after the year 

in which this Ordinance approving the Plan and Project is adopted by the Corporate Authorities. 

f. The parcels of real property in the proposed Area are contiguous, and only those 

contiguous parcels of real property and improvements thereon that will be substantially benefited 

by the proposed redevelopment of the Area pursuant to the Plan and Project are included in the 

proposed Area. 

g. The implementation of the Plan and Project will not result in the displacement of 

residents from 10 or more inhabited residential dwelling units. 

h. The Area does not contain 75 or more inhabited residential dwelling units. 

Section 2.  Plan and Project Approved.  That the Plan and Project, which were the 

subject matter of the public hearing held November 13, 2023 are hereby adopted and approved.  

A copy of the Plan and Project is set forth in Exhibit D attached hereto and incorporated herein 

as if set out in full by this reference. 

Section 3.  Invalidity of Any Section.  That if any section, paragraph, or provision of 

this Ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 

unenforceability of such section, paragraph, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 4.  Superseder and Effective Date.  All ordinances, resolutions, motions, or 

orders in conflict herewith shall be, and the same hereby are, repealed to the extent of such 

conflict, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval in the manner provided by law. 



   

5 
1163109.2 

PASSED and APPROVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, 

Illinois, this 27th day of November, 2023. 

 
 AYES: ________________________ 
 
 NAYS: ________________________ 
 
 ABSENT: ______________________ 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

6 
1163109.2 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 Legal Description 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39, RANGE 
12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SAID SECTION 12; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY, FOR A POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF 
THE SOUTH LINE OF AN EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH 
OF MADISON STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND 
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING 
NORTH OF MADISON STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF A NORTH-SOUTH 20 FOOT PUBLIC 
ALLEY LYING WEST OF HARLEM AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST 
LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH 20 FOOT PUBLIC ALLEY LYING WEST OF HARLEM 
AVENUE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET; 
THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET 
TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF THE WEST 34 FEET OF THE EAST 53 FEET OF LOTS 6 AND 9 IN BLOCK 1 IN 
RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AS RECORDED NOVEMBER 26, 1858; THENCE 
NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 34 FEET OF THE EAST 53 FEET OF 
LOTS 6 AND 9 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF AN EAST-WEST 20-
FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE 
WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC 
ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 
WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ELGIN AVE; THENCE NORTH ALONG 
SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ELGIN AVE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG 
SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO THE A POINT ON 
THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 4 FEET OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 2 IN SAID RAILROAD 
ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 4 
FEET OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 2 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AND THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE 
EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN 
STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-
WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT ON 
THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MARENGO AVE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID 
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MARENGO AVE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 
WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 100 FEET 
OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE WEST 



   

7 
1163109.2 

ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 100 
FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM TO A POINT 
ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID 
WEST LINE OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 
SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A RADIAL LINE TO 
CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO SAID NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE 50 FEET 
SOUTHWESTERLY OF (MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY) AND PARALLEL WITH 
THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY THE 
CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, 
JOSEPH GOLDSTEIN, EVA GOLDSTEIN AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN BY QUIT CLAIM 
DEED RECORDED AUGUST 23, 1963 AS DOCUMENT NO. 18893094; THENCE 
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID LINE 50 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF (MEASURED 
PERPENDICULARLY) AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE 
TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY 
COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, JOSEPH GOLDSTEIN, EVA GOLDSTEIN AND 
BESSIE GOLDSTEIN TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE 102 FEET SOUTH 
OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND 
NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED 
WEST; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID LINE 102 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL 
WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN 
RAILWAY COMPANY A DISTANCE OF 230 FEET, MORE OR LESS; THENCE SOUTH 
ALONG A LINE BEING AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF 
THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM 
AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST TO A POINT ON A LINE BEING 8.50 FEET SOUTH OF 
AND PARALLEL WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NUMBER 367 OF 
SAID CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY; THENCE WEST 
ALONG SAID LINE BEING 8.50 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE 
CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NUMBER 367 OF THE CHICAGO AND 
NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, 162 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE DRAWN 
PERPENDICULAR TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET THROUGH A 
POINT THEREIN WHICH IS 41.0 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID LINE 
DRAWN PERPENDICULAR TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET 
THROUGH A POINT THEREIN WHICH IS 41.0 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, 187.30 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE A DISTANCE OF 64.4 FEET TO A POINT 
90 FEET NORTHWESTERLY OF AND MEASURED RADIALLY TO THE 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE ALONG A LINE 
DRAWN FROM A POINT ON SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 



   

8 
1163109.2 

CIRCLE AVENUE, 121.5 FEET CHORD DISTANCE FROM SAID INTERSECTION OF 
THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE 
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE LAST DESCRIBED LINE TO SAID POINT BEING 121.5 
FEET CHORD DISTANCE FROM SAID INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT BEING 
OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 
3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE 
TO SAID NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD 
ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 4 IN 
SAID BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AND THE SOUTHERLY 
EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH SAID SOUTHEASTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG 
SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT 
BEING OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT  TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION OF SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE AND THE SOUTH 
LINE OF THE NORTH 108 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 IN THE SUBDIVISION BY THE 
CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY OF PART OF THE 
RESERVATION FOR RAILROAD PURPOSES, AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF 
RAILROAD ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF HARLEM, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 14, 1881 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 358829; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A LINE TO SAID POINT OF INTERSECTION; 
THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 108 FEET OF LOT 1 IN 
BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 8.0 FEET OF SAID LOT 1 IN 
BLOCK 1; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 8.0 FEET OF SAID 
LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN 
STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN 
STREET TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO A POINT BEING 606.90 FEET 
WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID 
FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE 
AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE TO SAID POINT BEING 606.90 FEET WEST 
OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN 
STREET AND THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; 
THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET, A DISTANCE OF 324.79 FEET TO A POINT 9 
FEET NORTHERLY, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE OF 
SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NO. 760 OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY 
COMPANY, AS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A 
LINE PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTERLINE OF THE SPUR TRACK, A DISTANCE OF 
135.99 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3 IN “BROWN STREET STATION” 
RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 IN SILVER MOON SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED SEPTEMBER 20, 1996 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 96-



   

9 
1163109.2 

722111 AND RESUBDIVISION OF PLAT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
97833582; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 
3 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE 
WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 3 TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 IN 
SAID “BROWN STREET STATION” RESUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 
ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2, 
SAID NORTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN 
THE AFORESAID “BROWN STREET STATION” RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 IN 
SILVER MOON SUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID LOT 1 TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG 
SAID NORTH LINE ON A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST TO A POINT OF 
NON-TANGENCY; THENCE CONTINUING WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH LINE TO 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE WEST ALONG THE WESTERLY 
EXTENSION OF SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH 
THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 12; THENCE 
NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12 TO 
A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG 
SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN 
RAILWAY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 



   

10 
1163109.2 

EXHIBIT B 

General Street Location 

The proposed Redevelopment Project Area is generally described as a contiguous area the 
boundaries of which are the parcels on the west side of Harlem Avenue and the north Village 
boundary along the Chicago Transit Authority (“CTA”)/Union Pacific Railroad (“UPPR”) rail 
tracks, and generally bounded by Madison Street to the south, the CTA/UPPR rail tracks and the 
Village boundary to the north, Harlem Avenue to the east, and Lathrop Avenue to the west, and 
includes all adjacent rights of way, including to the centerline of Harlem Avenue, the east 
boundary of the Village. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

11 
1163109.2 

EXHIBIT C 

Boundary Map 

 



   

12 
1163109.2 

EXHIBIT D 
 
 Redevelopment Plan and Project 
 
 
 
 



   

13 
1163109.2 



   

14 
1163109.2 



   

15 
1163109.2 



   

16 
1163109.2 



   

17 
1163109.2 



   

18 
1163109.2 



   

19 
1163109.2 



   

20 
1163109.2 



   

21 
1163109.2 



   

22 
1163109.2 



   

23 
1163109.2 



   

24 
1163109.2 



   

25 
1163109.2 



   

26 
1163109.2 



   

27 
1163109.2 



   

28 
1163109.2 



   

29 
1163109.2 



   

30 
1163109.2 



   

31 
1163109.2 



   

32 
1163109.2 



   

33 
1163109.2 



   

34 
1163109.2 



   

35 
1163109.2 



   

36 
1163109.2 



   

37 
1163109.2 



   

38 
1163109.2 



   

39 
1163109.2 



   

40 
1163109.2 



   

41 
1163109.2 



   

42 
1163109.2 



   

43 
1163109.2 



   

44 
1163109.2 



   

45 
1163109.2 



   

46 
1163109.2 



   

47 
1163109.2 



   

48 
1163109.2 



   

49 
1163109.2 



   

50 
1163109.2 



   

51 
1163109.2 



   

52 
1163109.2 



   

53 
1163109.2 



   

54 
1163109.2 



   

55 
1163109.2 



   

56 
1163109.2 



   

57 
1163109.2 



   

58 
1163109.2 



   

59 
1163109.2 



   

60 
1163109.2 



   

61 
1163109.2 



   

62 
1163109.2 



   

63 
1163109.2 



   

64 
1163109.2 



   

65 
1163109.2 



   

66 
1163109.2 



   

67 
1163109.2 



   

68 
1163109.2 



   

69 
1163109.2 



   

70 
1163109.2 



   

71 
1163109.2 



   

72 
1163109.2 



   

73 
1163109.2 



   

74 
1163109.2 



   

75 
1163109.2 



   

76 
1163109.2 



   

77 
1163109.2 



   

78 
1163109.2 



   

79 
1163109.2 

 
 
 



   

1 
1163114.2 

ORDINANCE NO. O-______-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESIGNATING THE  
CIRCLE HARLEM REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

 AREA OF SAID VILLAGE A REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
 PURSUANT TO THE TAX INCREMENT ALLOCATION REDEVELOPMENT ACT 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the best interest of the citizens of the Village of Forest 

Park, Cook County, Illinois (the “Village”), for the Village to implement tax increment 

allocation financing pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, Division 74.4 

of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended (the “Act”), for a proposed 

redevelopment plan and redevelopment project (the “Plan and Project”) within the municipal 

boundaries of the Village and within a proposed redevelopment project area (the “Area”) 

described in Section 1 of this Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Village Council of the Village (“the Corporate Authorities”) 

have heretofore by ordinance approved the Plan and Project, which Plan and Project were 

identified in such ordinance and were the subject, along with the Area designation hereinafter 

made, of a public hearing held on November 13, 2023, and it is now necessary and desirable to 

designate the Area as a redevelopment project area pursuant to the Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Village Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows:  

 Section 1.  Area Designated.  That the Area, as legally described in Exhibit A attached 

hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full by this reference, is hereby designated as a 

redevelopment project area pursuant to Section 11-74.4-4 of the Act.  The general street location 

for the Area is described in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full 



   

2 
1163114.2 

by this reference.  The map of the Area is depicted on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as if set out in full by this reference. 

Section 2.  Invalidity of Any Section.  That if any section, paragraph, or provision of 

this Ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 

unenforceability of such section, paragraph, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 3.  Superseder and Effective Date.  That all ordinances, resolutions, motions, or 

orders in conflict herewith shall be, and the same hereby are, repealed to the extent of such 

conflict, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval in the manner provided by law. 

PASSED and APPROVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, 

Illinois, this 27th day of November, 2023. 

 
 AYES: ________________________ 
 
 NAYS: ________________________ 
 
 ABSENT: ______________________ 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



   

3 
1163114.2 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 Legal Description 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39, RANGE 
12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SAID SECTION 12; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY, FOR A POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF 
THE SOUTH LINE OF AN EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH 
OF MADISON STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND 
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING 
NORTH OF MADISON STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF A NORTH-SOUTH 20 FOOT PUBLIC 
ALLEY LYING WEST OF HARLEM AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST 
LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH 20 FOOT PUBLIC ALLEY LYING WEST OF HARLEM 
AVENUE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET; 
THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET 
TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF THE WEST 34 FEET OF THE EAST 53 FEET OF LOTS 6 AND 9 IN BLOCK 1 IN 
RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AS RECORDED NOVEMBER 26, 1858; THENCE 
NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 34 FEET OF THE EAST 53 FEET OF 
LOTS 6 AND 9 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF AN EAST-WEST 20-
FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE 
WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC 
ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 
WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ELGIN AVE; THENCE NORTH ALONG 
SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ELGIN AVE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG 
SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO THE A POINT ON 
THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 4 FEET OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 2 IN SAID RAILROAD 
ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 4 
FEET OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 2 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AND THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE 
EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN 
STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-
WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT ON 
THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MARENGO AVE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID 
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MARENGO AVE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 



   

4 
1163114.2 

WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 100 FEET 
OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE WEST 
ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 100 
FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM TO A POINT 
ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID 
WEST LINE OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 
SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A RADIAL LINE TO 
CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO SAID NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE 50 FEET 
SOUTHWESTERLY OF (MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY) AND PARALLEL WITH 
THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY THE 
CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, 
JOSEPH GOLDSTEIN, EVA GOLDSTEIN AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN BY QUIT CLAIM 
DEED RECORDED AUGUST 23, 1963 AS DOCUMENT NO. 18893094; THENCE 
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID LINE 50 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF (MEASURED 
PERPENDICULARLY) AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE 
TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY 
COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, JOSEPH GOLDSTEIN, EVA GOLDSTEIN AND 
BESSIE GOLDSTEIN TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE 102 FEET SOUTH 
OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND 
NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED 
WEST; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID LINE 102 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL 
WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN 
RAILWAY COMPANY A DISTANCE OF 230 FEET, MORE OR LESS; THENCE SOUTH 
ALONG A LINE BEING AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF 
THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM 
AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST TO A POINT ON A LINE BEING 8.50 FEET SOUTH OF 
AND PARALLEL WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NUMBER 367 OF 
SAID CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY; THENCE WEST 
ALONG SAID LINE BEING 8.50 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE 
CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NUMBER 367 OF THE CHICAGO AND 
NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, 162 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE DRAWN 
PERPENDICULAR TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET THROUGH A 
POINT THEREIN WHICH IS 41.0 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID LINE 
DRAWN PERPENDICULAR TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET 
THROUGH A POINT THEREIN WHICH IS 41.0 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, 187.30 FEET; THENCE 



   

5 
1163114.2 

SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE A DISTANCE OF 64.4 FEET TO A POINT 
90 FEET NORTHWESTERLY OF AND MEASURED RADIALLY TO THE 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE ALONG A LINE 
DRAWN FROM A POINT ON SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
CIRCLE AVENUE, 121.5 FEET CHORD DISTANCE FROM SAID INTERSECTION OF 
THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE 
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE LAST DESCRIBED LINE TO SAID POINT BEING 121.5 
FEET CHORD DISTANCE FROM SAID INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT BEING 
OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 
3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE 
TO SAID NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD 
ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 4 IN 
SAID BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AND THE SOUTHERLY 
EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH SAID SOUTHEASTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG 
SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT 
BEING OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT  TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION OF SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE AND THE SOUTH 
LINE OF THE NORTH 108 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 IN THE SUBDIVISION BY THE 
CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY OF PART OF THE 
RESERVATION FOR RAILROAD PURPOSES, AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF 
RAILROAD ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF HARLEM, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 14, 1881 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 358829; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A LINE TO SAID POINT OF INTERSECTION; 
THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 108 FEET OF LOT 1 IN 
BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 8.0 FEET OF SAID LOT 1 IN 
BLOCK 1; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 8.0 FEET OF SAID 
LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN 
STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN 
STREET TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO A POINT BEING 606.90 FEET 
WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID 
FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE 
AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE TO SAID POINT BEING 606.90 FEET WEST 
OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN 
STREET AND THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; 
THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET, A DISTANCE OF 324.79 FEET TO A POINT 9 
FEET NORTHERLY, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE OF 



   

6 
1163114.2 

SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NO. 760 OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY 
COMPANY, AS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A 
LINE PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTERLINE OF THE SPUR TRACK, A DISTANCE OF 
135.99 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3 IN “BROWN STREET STATION” 
RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 IN SILVER MOON SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED SEPTEMBER 20, 1996 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 96-
722111 AND RESUBDIVISION OF PLAT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
97833582; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 
3 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE 
WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 3 TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 IN 
SAID “BROWN STREET STATION” RESUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 
ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2, 
SAID NORTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN 
THE AFORESAID “BROWN STREET STATION” RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 IN 
SILVER MOON SUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID LOT 1 TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG 
SAID NORTH LINE ON A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST TO A POINT OF 
NON-TANGENCY; THENCE CONTINUING WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH LINE TO 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE WEST ALONG THE WESTERLY 
EXTENSION OF SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH 
THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 12; THENCE 
NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12 TO 
A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG 
SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN 
RAILWAY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 



   

7 
1163114.2 

EXHIBIT B 

General Street Location 

The proposed Redevelopment Project Area is generally described as a contiguous area the 
boundaries of which are the parcels on the west side of Harlem Avenue and the north Village 
boundary along the Chicago Transit Authority (“CTA”)/Union Pacific Railroad (“UPPR”) rail 
tracks, and generally bounded by Madison Street to the south, the CTA/UPPR rail tracks and the 
Village boundary to the north, Harlem Avenue to the east, and Lathrop Avenue to the west, and 
includes all adjacent rights of way, including to the centerline of Harlem Avenue, the east 
boundary of the Village. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

8 
1163114.2 

EXHIBIT C 

Boundary Map 



   

9 
1163114.2 

 



 

1 
1163116.1 

ORDINANCE NO. O-______-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK,  
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, ADOPTING TAX INCREMENT 
ALLOCATION FINANCING FOR THE CIRCLE HARLEM 

REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the best interest of the citizens of the Village of Forest 

Park, Cook County, Illinois (the “Village”), for the Village to implement tax increment 

allocation financing pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, Division 74.4 

of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended (the “Act”), for a proposed 

redevelopment plan and redevelopment project (the “Plan and Project”) within the municipal 

boundaries of the Village and within a proposed redevelopment project area (the “Area”) 

described in Section 1 of this Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Village Council of the Village (“the Corporate Authorities”) 

have heretofore by ordinance approved the Plan and Project and the Area and it is now necessary 

and desirable to adopt tax increment allocation financing pursuant to the Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Village Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1.  Tax Increment Financing Adopted.  That tax increment allocation financing is 

hereby adopted to pay redevelopment project costs as defined in the Act and as set forth in the 

Plan and Project within the Area as legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and 

incorporated herein as if set out in full by this reference.  The general street location for the Area 

is described in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full by this 



 

2 
1163116.1 

reference.  The map of the Area is depicted in Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein 

as if set out in full by this reference. 

Section 2.  Allocation of Ad Valorem Taxes.  That pursuant to the Act, the ad valorem 

taxes, if any, arising from the levies upon taxable real property in the Area by taxing districts and 

tax rates determined in the manner provided in Section 11-74.4-9(c) of the Act each year after 

the effective date of this Ordinance until the redevelopment project costs incurred and 

obligations issued in respect thereto have been paid shall be divided as follows: 

a. That portion of taxes levied upon each taxable lot, block, tract, or parcel of 

real property that is attributable to the lower of the current equalized assessed value or the 

initial equalized assessed value of each such taxable lot, block, tract, or parcel of real 

property in the Area shall be allocated to and when collected shall be paid by the county 

collector to the respective affected taxing districts in the manner required by law in the 

absence of the adoption of tax increment allocation financing. 

b. That portion, if any, of such taxes that is attributable to the increase in the 

current equalized assessed valuation of each lot, block, tract, or parcel of real property in 

the Area shall be allocated to and when collected shall be paid to the Treasurer of the 

Village of Forest Park, who shall deposit said taxes into a special fund, hereby created, 

and designated the “Harlem Circle Redevelopment Project Area Special Tax Allocation 

Fund” of the Village.  Such taxes shall be used for the purpose of paying redevelopment 

project costs incurred and obligations incurred in the payment thereof. 

Section 3.  Invalidity of Any Section.  That if any section, paragraph, or provision of 

this Ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 



 

3 
1163116.1 

unenforceability of such section, paragraph, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 4.  Superseder and Effective Date.  That all ordinances, resolutions, motions, or 

orders in conflict herewith shall be, and the same hereby are, repealed to the extent of such 

conflict, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval in the manner provided by law. 

PASSED and APPROVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, 

Illinois, this 27th day of November, 2023. 

 
 AYES: ________________________ 
 
 NAYS: ________________________ 
 
 ABSENT: ______________________ 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



 

4 
1163116.1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description 
 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39, RANGE 
12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SAID SECTION 12; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY, FOR A POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF 
THE SOUTH LINE OF AN EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH 
OF MADISON STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND 
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING 
NORTH OF MADISON STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF A NORTH-SOUTH 20 FOOT PUBLIC 
ALLEY LYING WEST OF HARLEM AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST 
LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH 20 FOOT PUBLIC ALLEY LYING WEST OF HARLEM 
AVENUE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET; 
THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET 
TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF THE WEST 34 FEET OF THE EAST 53 FEET OF LOTS 6 AND 9 IN BLOCK 1 IN 
RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AS RECORDED NOVEMBER 26, 1858; THENCE 
NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 34 FEET OF THE EAST 53 FEET OF 
LOTS 6 AND 9 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF AN EAST-WEST 20-
FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE 
WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC 
ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 
WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ELGIN AVE; THENCE NORTH ALONG 
SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ELGIN AVE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG 
SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO THE A POINT ON 
THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 4 FEET OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 2 IN SAID RAILROAD 
ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 4 
FEET OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 2 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AND THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE 
EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN 
STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST-WEST 20-FOOT-
WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORTH OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT ON 
THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MARENGO AVE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID 
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MARENGO AVE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 
WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 100 FEET 



 

5 
1163116.1 

OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE WEST 
ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 100 
FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM TO A POINT 
ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID 
WEST LINE OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 
SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A RADIAL LINE TO 
CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO SAID NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 IN BLOCK 3, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE 50 FEET 
SOUTHWESTERLY OF (MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY) AND PARALLEL WITH 
THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY THE 
CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, 
JOSEPH GOLDSTEIN, EVA GOLDSTEIN AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN BY QUIT CLAIM 
DEED RECORDED AUGUST 23, 1963 AS DOCUMENT NO. 18893094; THENCE 
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID LINE 50 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF (MEASURED 
PERPENDICULARLY) AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE 
TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED BY THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY 
COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, JOSEPH GOLDSTEIN, EVA GOLDSTEIN AND 
BESSIE GOLDSTEIN TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE 102 FEET SOUTH 
OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND 
NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED 
WEST; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID LINE 102 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL 
WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN 
RAILWAY COMPANY A DISTANCE OF 230 FEET, MORE OR LESS; THENCE SOUTH 
ALONG A LINE BEING AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF 
THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM 
AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST TO A POINT ON A LINE BEING 8.50 FEET SOUTH OF 
AND PARALLEL WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NUMBER 367 OF 
SAID CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY; THENCE WEST 
ALONG SAID LINE BEING 8.50 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE 
CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NUMBER 367 OF THE CHICAGO AND 
NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, 162 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE DRAWN 
PERPENDICULAR TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET THROUGH A 
POINT THEREIN WHICH IS 41.0 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID LINE 
DRAWN PERPENDICULAR TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET 
THROUGH A POINT THEREIN WHICH IS 41.0 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, 187.30 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE A DISTANCE OF 64.4 FEET TO A POINT 
90 FEET NORTHWESTERLY OF AND MEASURED RADIALLY TO THE 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE ALONG A LINE 



 

6 
1163116.1 

DRAWN FROM A POINT ON SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
CIRCLE AVENUE, 121.5 FEET CHORD DISTANCE FROM SAID INTERSECTION OF 
THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE 
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE LAST DESCRIBED LINE TO SAID POINT BEING 121.5 
FEET CHORD DISTANCE FROM SAID INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT BEING 
OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 
3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE 
TO SAID NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD 
ADDITION TO HARLEM; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 4 IN 
SAID BLOCK 3 IN RAILROAD ADDITION TO HARLEM AND THE SOUTHERLY 
EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
FRANKLIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH SAID SOUTHEASTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG 
SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE TO A POINT 
BEING OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT  TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION OF SAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE AND THE SOUTH 
LINE OF THE NORTH 108 FEET OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 IN THE SUBDIVISION BY THE 
CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY OF PART OF THE 
RESERVATION FOR RAILROAD PURPOSES, AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF 
RAILROAD ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF HARLEM, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 14, 1881 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 358829; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A LINE TO SAID POINT OF INTERSECTION; 
THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 108 FEET OF LOT 1 IN 
BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 8.0 FEET OF SAID LOT 1 IN 
BLOCK 1; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 8.0 FEET OF SAID 
LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN 
STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN 
STREET TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO A POINT BEING 606.90 FEET 
WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID 
FRANKLIN STREET AND SAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE 
AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE TO SAID POINT BEING 606.90 FEET WEST 
OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN 
STREET AND THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE; 
THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET, A DISTANCE OF 324.79 FEET TO A POINT 9 
FEET NORTHERLY, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE OF 
SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NO. 760 OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY 
COMPANY, AS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A 
LINE PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTERLINE OF THE SPUR TRACK, A DISTANCE OF 
135.99 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3 IN “BROWN STREET STATION” 
RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 IN SILVER MOON SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO 



 

7 
1163116.1 

THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED SEPTEMBER 20, 1996 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 96-
722111 AND RESUBDIVISION OF PLAT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
97833582; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 
3 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE 
WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 3 TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 IN 
SAID “BROWN STREET STATION” RESUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 
ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2, 
SAID NORTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN 
THE AFORESAID “BROWN STREET STATION” RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 IN 
SILVER MOON SUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID LOT 1 TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG 
SAID NORTH LINE ON A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST TO A POINT OF 
NON-TANGENCY; THENCE CONTINUING WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH LINE TO 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE WEST ALONG THE WESTERLY 
EXTENSION OF SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH 
THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 12; THENCE 
NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12 TO 
A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG 
SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN 
RAILWAY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
 



 

8 
1163116.1 

EXHIBIT B 

General Street Location 

The proposed Redevelopment Project Area is generally described as a contiguous area the 
boundaries of which are the parcels on the west side of Harlem Avenue and the north Village 
boundary along the Chicago Transit Authority (“CTA”)/Union Pacific Railroad (“UPPR”) rail 
tracks, and generally bounded by Madison Street to the south, the CTA/UPPR rail tracks and the 
Village boundary to the north, Harlem Avenue to the east, and Lathrop Avenue to the west, and 
includes all adjacent rights of way, including to the centerline of Harlem Avenue, the east 
boundary of the Village. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

9 
1163116.1 

EXHIBIT C 

Boundary Map 

 

 



1177590-1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-________-23 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, ILLINOIS, 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM 
THE BROWN STREET STATION-HARLEM AVENUE TIF DISTRICT 

TO THE CIRCLE HARLEM TIF DISTRICT 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the Village Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, 

Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The Finance Director of the Village of Forest Park, or her designee, is 

hereby authorized and directed to transfer all unencumbered funds in the Special Tax Allocation 

Fund of the Brown Street Station-Harlem Avenue TIF District to the Special Tax Allocation 

Fund of the Circle Harlem TIF District. 

 Section 2. The Village officials, officers, employees, consultants and agents are 

directed and authorized to take all such actions reasonably necessary to carry out the purpose and 

intent of this Resolution 

Section 3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 27th day 
of November, 2023. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 27th day of November, 2023. 
 
  
        
 ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this _______ day of November, 2023. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 







949808.2 

RESOLUTION NO. R-________-23 

 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ESTIMATED PROPERTY TAXES 

TO BE LEVIED BY THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK  

FOR THE 2023 TAX YEAR  

 

WHEREAS, the Truth-in-Taxation Law (35 ILCS 200/18-55 et seq.) requires corporate 

authorities to determine the amounts of money, exclusive of any portion attributable to the cost of 

conducting an election required by the Election Code and debt service levies, estimated to be 

necessary to be raised by taxes from year to year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1: Determination of Estimate of Taxes to be Levied. 

The corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park, Illinois, do hereby determine that 

the estimated aggregate tax levy amount for the 2023 tax year, exclusive of any portion of that 

levy attributable to the cost of conducting an election required by the general election law, is Nine 

Million Four Hundred Sixty Three Thousand One Hundred Sixty Three and 00/100 Dollars 

($9,463,163). 

Section 2: Public Hearing. 

A public hearing on the intent to adopt the aggregate tax levy for the 2023 tax year is hereby 

called for Monday, December 18, 2023, at the hour of 6:45 p.m., at the Village of Forest Park 

Village Hall, 517 Des Plaines Avenue, Forest Park, Illinois. 

Section 3: Notice.  

The notice of the time and place of such public hearing shall be prepared and published in 

an English language newspaper of general circulation published within the Village, or if there is 

no such newspaper, in an English newspaper of general circulation published within Cook County 



949808.2 

and having circulation in the Village, not more than 14 days nor less than 7 days before the date 

of the public hearing in the form and manner provided by law. 

Section 4: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 27th  

day of November, 2023. 

AYES:  ___________________ 

 

NAYS:  ___________________ 

 

ABSENT:  _________________ 

 

 APPROVED by me this 27th day of November, 2023. 

 

             

       ___________________________________ 

       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

 

ATTESTED and filed in my office 

this 27th day of November, 2023. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 

 













Be it ordained by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows:

Appropriation

OFFICE OF PUBLIC AFFAIRS
General Public Affairs
Salary for the Honorable Mayor 30,000$                    
Salary for the Liquor Commissioner 10,000$                    
Salary for Village Prosecutor 38,100$                    
Salaries for Support Staff 207,802$                  
Commissions 40,470$                    
Codification of Village Code 7,100$                      
Legal Services/Labor Negotiations 270,670$                  
Consolidated Dispatch Service 895,214$                  
Consulting Services 143,210$                  
IT Village-Wide 164,856$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 139,285$                  

     Total General Public Affairs 1,946,706$               

Police Department
Management and Office Salaries 1,624,355$               
Law Enforcement Expenses 244,725$                  
Officer Salaries 4,452,450$               

     Total Police Department 6,321,530$               

Community Center
Salaries 454,221$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 14,720$                    
Day Care Costs 23,000$                    
Events/Senior Services 133,100$                  
RTA Salaries 82,005$                    
RTA Office/Equipment Expense 2,875$                      

     Total Community Center 709,921$                  

TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF PUBLIC AFFAIRS 8,978,157$               

ORDINANCE NO. O-  -23

Section II. The following amounts of money, or as much thereof as hereby may be authorized by law, be and 
the same are hereby appropriated for the several municipal objects and purposes hereinafter specified, and to 
pay all necessary expenses and liabilities of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, for the fiscal year 
beginning May 1, 2023 and ending April 30, 2024, to wit:

GENERAL FUND

THE APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING

MAY 1, 2023 AND ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

Section I. This Ordinance is hereby termed "The Appropriation Ordinance of the Village of Forest Park, Cook 
County, Illinois, for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2023 and ending April 30, 2024."



Appropriation

OFFICE OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCE
Accounts and Finance
Commissioner of Accounts and Finance 10,000$                    
Salaries 247,651$                  
Village Clerk/HR Administrator 104,040$                  
Insurance Benefits 2,712,050$               
Audit/Consulting Services 22,024$                    
Office Equipment and Supplies 418,843$                  
Foreign Fire Insurance Tax 40,000$                    
Police Pension Cost 3,470,428$               
Fire Pension Cost 2,917,163$               
Federal Grants 2,035,098$               
State Grants 3,085,658$               
Local Grants 93,129$                    
Liability Insurance 1,156,909$               

     Total Clerk's Office 16,312,994$             

Fire Department
Management and Office Salaries 827,805$                  
Firefighter Salaries 2,610,202$               
Firefighting Equipment/Expenses 189,296$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 17,250$                    
Paramedic Services 842,386$                  

     Total Fire Department 4,486,939$               

TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCE 20,799,933$             

OFFICE OF HEALTH AND SAFETY
Commissioner 10,000$                    
Salaries 287,241$                  
Plan Review/Inspections 224,250$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 26,400$                    

TOTAL OFFICE OF HEALTH AND SAFETY 547,891$                  

OFFICE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
Commissioner 10,000$                    
Salaries 390,338$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 8,340$                      
Streets Maintenance, Equipment and Supplies 1,739,914$               

TOTAL OFFICE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 2,148,592$               

OFFICE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY
Commissioner 10,000$                    
Salaries 534,590$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 23,580$                    
Property Maintenance 313,166$                  

     Total General Public Property 881,336$                  



Appropriation

Street and Traffic Lighting 405,796$                  

Fleet Maintenance 705,900$                  

Forestry
Salaries 221,001$                  
Other Forestry Expenses 138,935$                  

     Total Forestry 359,936$                  

Playgrounds and Recreation
Playground Maintenance/Improvement 3,750$                      
Dog Park 3,750$                      

     Total for Playgrounds and Recreation 7,500$                      

TOTAL OFFICE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY 2,360,468$               

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 34,835,041$             

OFFICE OF PUBLIC AFFAIRS
Police Seizure Fund 228,725$                  

DUI Enforcement Fund 41,400$                    

U.S. Customs 377,792$                  

Police Vehicle Fund 75,000$                    

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS OFFICE OF PUBLIC AFFAIRS 722,917$                  

OFFICE OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCE
IMRF Fund 318,290$                  

Social Security Fund 390,750$                  

Brown Street Station TIF 5,208,115$               
Consulting/Legal Services 120,000$                  
Contract with Developer 30,000$                    
Infrastructure Improvement Projects 1,423,443$               
Administration Charges 3,634,472$               
Bank Service Fees 200$                         

Roosevelt/Hannah TIF 2,824,862$               
Consulting/Legal Services 120,000$                  
Contract with Developer 1,000,000$               
Infrastructure Improvement Projects 784,662$                  
Administration Charges 920,000$                  
Bank Service Fees 200$                         

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS



Appropriation

Roosevelt Road Corridor TIF 1,586,370$               
Consulting/Legal Services 120,000$                  
Contract with Developer 750,000$                  
Infrastructure Improvement Projects 716,170$                  
Bank Service Fees 200$                         

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS OFFICE OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCE 10,328,387$             

OFFICE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
Motor Fuel Tax
Maintenance of Streets and Engineering 2,337,408$               

Series 2012 Bond Fund 5,207,779$               
Infrastructure Improvement Program 4,563,404$               
Administration Charges 575,000$                  
Consulting/Legal Services 69,375$                    

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS OFFICE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENTS 7,545,187$               

OFFICE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY  
Fleet Replacement Fund
Vehicle and Equipment 800,954$                  

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND OFFICE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY 800,954$                  

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 19,397,445$             

OFFICE OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCE
Series 2012 Bond Fund 711,250$                  
Debt Service Bond Redemption 650,000$                  
Debt Service Interest Payments 60,450$                    
Debt Service Bank Fees 800$                         

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 711,250$                  

OFFICE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
Water Fund
Wages/Benefits 439,185$                  
Community Relations/Office expenses 174,119$                  
Utilities/Tools/Supplies 72,000$                    
Water Purchase/Treatment 2,844,900$               
Administration Charges 1,150,000$               
Sewer Cleaning and Repair/Water Main Repair 264,000$                  
Equipment and Capital Maintenance 470,880$                  
Infrastructure Improvements 4,276,736$               
     Total Water Fund 9,691,820$               

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND 9,691,820$               

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

ENTERPRISE FUND



Appropriation

Corporate
Salaries 1,375,000$               
Office Expenses/Equipment 573,994$                  
Circulation Collection 260,000$                  
Special Tax Expenses
Building and Grounds Maintenance 76,168$                    
Unemployment Insurance 5,000$                      
Workmen's Compensation 3,000$                      
FICA 65,000$                    
Public Liability Insurance 20,000$                    
IMRF 50,000$                    
Audit 8,000$                      

TOTAL FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND 2,436,162$               

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 67,071,718$             

Section III. The appropriations herein for the payment of "Liabilities", "Contract Liabilities", or "Unpaid Bills," if 
any, shall not be construed as an approval of any such liabilities or unpaid bills, but shall be regarded only as 
an appropriation for the payment thereof, when and if they are found to be valid and legal obligations against 
the Village of Forest Park, and are appropriated, vouchered and audited. 

FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY

Section IV. Any and all monies heretofore appropriated and not expended, which now remain in the Treasury 
of the Village of Forest Park, are hereby appropriated under the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section V. The appropriations made herein for salaries and wages for positions shall be regarded as 
maximum appropriations as to the sum appropriated, and the number of positions specified, and the length of 
time for which the incumbent of each position is to be employed. No employee shall have the right to demand 
continuous employment and compensation by reason of the appropriations, if it becomes necessary to 
discharge him or her on account of lack of work, or lack of funds. In case of any vacancy in any office or 
position herein appropriated for, the Head of the Department in which the vacancy occurs shall not be 
required to fill such office or position if, in his or her own judgment and discretion, there is no necessity 
thereof.

Section VI. All unexpended balances of any item of any appropriations made by this Ordinance may be 
expended by making good any insufficiency in any item or other appropriation made by this Ordinance.

Section VII. All Ordinances, or parts of Ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith, shall be, and the same 
are hereby repealed.



Appropriation

 Passed by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this  
27th day of  November, 2023

APPROVED

                                            
Mayor

PASSED;   This 27th day of November, 2023
APPROVED;   This 27th day of November, 2023
PUBLISHED;   This 27th day of November, 2023
 
ATTEST

                                           
Village Clerk

Section IX. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and publication 
in pamphlet form as provided by law.

Section VIII. If any item, purpose, sentence or portion thereof of this Ordinance be for any reason held invalid 
or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance, and 
that any Ordinance or parts of any Ordinance in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.



Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, certifies that the 

estimated revenue by source of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, for the fiscal year beginning

May 1, 2023 and ending April 30, 2024, is as follows:

Sub-Total

GENERAL FUND:

Taxes: Property Taxes-Corporate 1,849,100           

Personal Property Replacement Taxes 580,298              

Sales Taxes 5,050,583           

Auto Rental Tax 52,500                

Utility Taxes 1,303,250           8,835,731             

Intergovernmental Revenue: State Income Tax 3,042,543           

Local Use Tax 719,818              

Foreign Fire Insurance Tax 47,500                

IDOT Maintenance Agreement 117,671              

Federal Grants 4,633,807           

State of Illinois Grants 3,521,875           12,083,214           

      

Licenses, Permits, and Fees: Liquor Licenses 117,500              

Vehicle Licenses 247,250              

Business Licenses 138,058              

Parking Permits 345,000              

Amusement Rental Tax 1,200                  

Building & Zoning Fees 585,313              

Other Licenses & Permits 17,250                1,451,570             

Franchise Fees-Cable 247,250              247,250                

Fines: Traffic Tickets 624,450              

Code Violation Fines 42,000                

Reporting Fees 7,500                  673,950                

Fees for Services: Ambulance Service 1,748,250           

Community Center Child Care 284,050              

RTA Subsidy & Rides 73,375                

Contract Police Services 118,750              

Parking Meters & Lots 456,665              

Garbage Fees 1,244,582           

Recycling/Yard Waste Fees 245,595              4,171,269             

Rental Income: Water Towers 171,348              

Real Estate Right of Way 46,125                

Community Center 1,875                  219,348                

CERTIFICATE OF ESTIMATED REVENUE

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2024



Sub-Total

Other Revenue: Community Center Activities/Events 145,625              

Local Grants                          121,761              

Insurance Proceeds 12,563                

Sales of Assets 1,000                  

Miscellaneous Revenues 12,915                

Interest & Dividends 16,275                310,139                

General Fund Sub-Total 27,992,469           

SEPARATE GENERAL FUND TAX LEVIES:

Fire Protection Property Taxes 637,500              

Police Protection Property Taxes 637,500              1,275,000             

Forestry Property Taxes 75,000                  

Insurance Property Taxes 375,000                

FIDUCIARY FUNDS:

Police Pension:

Property Tax Levy 2,740,150           

Personal Property Replacement Tax 46,170                2,786,320             

Fire Pension:

Property Tax Levy 2,283,431           

Personal Property Replacement Tax 50,279                2,333,711             

TOTAL SEPARATE LEVIES AND PPRT 6,845,031             

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 34,837,500           

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund:

Real Estate Taxes 322,000              

Replacement Taxes 30,989                352,990                

Social Security Fund:

Real Estate Taxes 368,000              

Replacement Taxes 27,937                395,937                

Motor Fuel Tax:

Motor Fuel Tax Allotments 708,899              

Reserve Funds 1,650,000           

Interest 15,000                2,373,899             

State Seizure Fund:

Seizure Sharing Funds 82,500                

Sales of Seized Vehicles 5,000                  

Reserve Funds 150,000              

Interest 800                     238,300                



Sub-Total

DUI Enforcement Fund

Local share fines 11,900                

Reserve Funds 30,000                

Interest 100                     42,000                  

US Customs Fund:

Federal Sharing Funds 324,000              

Reserve Funds 55,000                

Interest 40                       379,040                

Brown St. Station TIF:

Property Taxes - TIF Increment 385,135              

Reserve Funds 4,817,480           

Interest 5,500                  5,208,115             

Roosevelt/Hannah TIF:

Property Taxes - TIF Increment 1,245,120           

Reserve Funds 1,750,000           

Interest 12,000                3,007,120             

Roosevelt Road Corridor TIF:

Property Taxes - TIF Increment 751,146              

Reserve Funds 850,000              

Interest 5,000                  1,606,146             

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 13,603,547           

VIP CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND:

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax 2,683,205           

Grant Revenues 779,990              

Reserve Funds 2,500,000           

Interest 8,000                  5,971,195             

CAPITAL ASSET FUNDS:

Police Vehicle Fund

Local share fines 35,950                

Sales of Assets 5,000                  

Reserve Funds 40,000                

Interest 700                     81,650                  

Fleet Replacement Fund

Municipal Motor Fuel Tax 218,750              

Sales of Assets 5,000                  

Financing Sources 350,000              

Reserve Funds 165,000              

Interest 700                     821,100                

TOTAL CAPITAL FUNDS 6,873,945             



Sub-Total

ENTERPRISE FUND:

Water Fund:

Water Billings 7,964,510           

Penalties 300,000              

Reserve Funds 1,400,000           

Miscellaneous Charges/Fees 45,000                

Interest 22,500                9,732,010             

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND 9,732,010             

FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY: Public Library:

Real Estate Taxes 2,108,058           

Replacement Taxes 40,000                

Special Tax Revenues 238,104              

Grants 25,000                

Desk Income 15,000                

Interest 10,000                2,436,162             

TOTAL FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND 2,436,162             

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUE 67,483,165$         

Dated:  ___________________________

Vanessa Moritz

Village Clerk

Letitia Olmsted

Finance Director

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me,

a Notary Public, in Cook County, Illinois,

this               Day of ____________, 2023

_________________________________

Notary Public



1177295.1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R- ________-23 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

AND THE METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT 
OF GREATER CHICAGO FOR THE GREEN ALLEY PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park and the Metropolitan Water Reclamation 

District of Greater Chicago are public agencies within the meaning of the Illinois 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, as specified in 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., and are authorized by 

said Act and Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois to enter 

into intergovernmental agreements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Resolution are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2. That certain “Intergovernmental Agreement By and Between the Village 

of Forest Park and the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago for the 

Design, Construction, Operation and Maintenance of the Green Alley Project in the Village of 

Forest Park” (“Agreement”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby 

approved. 

 Section 3. The Village authorizes acceptance of, and further agrees to use the funds 

received, pursuant to the Agreement, and that any required Village expenditure under the 

Agreement, be approved. 

 Section 4. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute, and the Village Clerk is 

hereby authorized to attest the Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A 



1177295.1 

with such changes therein as may be approved by the officials executing the same, their 

execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of such changes. 

 Section 5. The officers and employees of the Village shall take all action necessary 

or reasonably required by the parties to carry out, give effect to and consummate the 

transactions contemplated hereby under the Agreement and to take all action necessary in 

conformity therewith, including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of any 

documents required to be delivered in connection with the Agreement. 

 Section 6. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage in the manner provided by law. 

 ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 27th 

day of November, 2023. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 27th day of November, 2023. 
 
 
     
            
      _______________________________________ 
      Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
And published in pamphlet form 
This ______ day of November, 2023. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 
 



1177295.1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT 1 

PROJECT VICINITY MAP AND CONCEPTUAL DRAWING 

 



Pa
th

: N
:\F

O
R

ES
TP

AR
K

\0
02

3\
G

E
N

E
R

AL
\2

01
7\

M
W

R
D

 G
re

en
 In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

G
ra

nt
\L

oc
at

io
n 

M
ap

 M
W

R
D

 2
02

3.
m

xd

800 BLOCK CIRCLE-MARENGO ALLEY

900 BLOCK CIRCLE-MARENGO ALLEY

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
EHARVARD ST

DE
S P

LA
IN

ES
 AV

E

HA
RL

EM
 AV

E

JACKSON BLVD

LEXINGTON ST

EISENHOWER EXPY

HARRISON ST

CI
RC

LE
 AV

E

HA
NN

AH
 AV

E

EL
GI

N A
VE

ROOSEVELT RDTR
OO

ST
 AV

E

LEHMER ST

TAYLOR ST

YUBA ST

LATHROP
AVE

FILLMORE ST

LA
TH

RO
P A

VE

HA
NN

AH
 AV

E

TH
OM

AS
 AV

E

BE
LO

IT 
AV

E

FE
RD

IN
AN

D A
VE

WILCOX ST

DU
NL

OP
 AV

E

IL43

POLK ST

YORK ST

I290EB

I290EB

TO I290WB

THOMAS AVE
BE

LO
IT 

AV
E

FE
RD

IN
AN

D A
VE

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
E ELGIN AVEVAN BUREN ST

Copyright nearmap 2015

TITLE:

DSGN.

CHKD.
FILE:

DWN.

CLIENT: PROJ. NO.

DATE:

SHEET     1     OF    1

DRAWING NO.

EXH 1

PROJECT LOCATION MAP
MWRD

000023

08/17/2022

SCALE:
AUTHOR:

Location Map MWRD 2023
PLOT DATE:

DWALTERS
 8/17/2022

1:6,000
DRW

0 500 1,000250

Feet
1 inch = 500 feet N



EXHIBIT 2 

MWRDGC’S PURCHASING ACT 

 



Version 2-1-16 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.1) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.1)  
    Sec. 11.1. Sections 11.1 through 11.24 of this amendatory 
Act of 1963 shall be known and may be cited as the "Purchasing 
Act for the Metropolitan Sanitary District of Greater 
Chicago."  
(Source: P.A. 82-1046.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.2) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.2)  
    Sec. 11.2. In addition to all the rights, powers, 
privileges, duties and obligations conferred thereon in "An 
Act to create sanitary districts and to remove obstructions in 
the Des Plaines and Illinois rivers", approved May 29, 1889, 
as amended, the Metropolitan Sanitary District of Greater 
Chicago shall have the rights, powers and privileges and shall 
be subject to the duties and obligations conferred thereon by 
this amendatory Act of 1963.  
(Source: Laws 1963, p. 2498.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.3) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.3)  
    Sec. 11.3. Except as provided in Sections 11.4 and 11.5, 
all purchase orders or contracts involving amounts in excess 
of the mandatory competitive bid threshold and made by or on 
behalf of the sanitary district for labor, services or work, 
the purchase, lease or sale of personal property, materials, 
equipment or supplies, or the granting of any concession, 
shall be let by free and open competitive bidding after 
advertisement, to the lowest responsible bidder or to the 
highest responsible bidder, as the case may be, depending upon 
whether the sanitary district is to expend or receive money.  
    All such purchase orders or contracts which shall involve 
amounts that will not exceed the mandatory competitive bid 
threshold, shall also be let in the manner prescribed above 
whenever practicable, except that after solicitation of bids, 
such purchase orders or contracts may be let in the open 
market, in a manner calculated to insure the best interests of 
the public. The provisions of this section are subject to any 
contrary provisions contained in "An Act concerning the use of 
Illinois mined coal in certain plants and institutions", filed 
July 13, 1937, as heretofore and hereafter amended. For 
purposes of this Section, the "mandatory competitive bid 
threshold" is a dollar amount equal to 0.1% of the total 
general fixed assets of the district as reported in the most 
recent required audit report. In no event, however, shall the 
mandatory competitive bid threshold dollar amount be less than 
$10,000 or more than $40,000.  
    Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, the 
sanitary district is expressly authorized to establish such 
procedures as it deems appropriate to comply with state or 
federal regulations as to affirmative action and the 
utilization of small and minority businesses in construction 



Version 2-1-16 

and procurement contracts.  
(Source: P.A. 92-195, eff. 1-1-02.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.4) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.4)  
    Sec. 11.4. Contracts which by their nature are not adapted 
to award by competitive bidding, such as, but not only, 
contracts for the services of individuals possessing a high 
degree of professional skill where the ability or fitness of 
the individual plays an important part, contracts for the 
purchase or sale of utilities and contracts for materials 
economically procurable only from a single source of supply 
and leases of real property where the sanitary district is the 
lessee shall not be subject to the competitive bidding 
requirements of this Act. The sanitary district is expressly 
authorized to procure from any federal, state or local 
governmental unit or agency such surplus materials, as may be 
made available without conforming to the competitive bidding 
requirements of this Act. Regular employment contracts, 
whether classified in civil service or not, shall not be 
subject to the competitive bidding requirements of this Act.  
(Source: Laws 1963, p. 2498.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.5) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.5)  
    Sec. 11.5. In the event of an emergency affecting the 
public health or safety, so declared by action of the board of 
trustees, which declaration shall describe the nature of the 
injurious effect upon the public health or safety, contracts 
may be let to the extent necessary to resolve such emergency 
without public advertisement. The declaration shall fix the 
date upon which such emergency shall terminate. The date may 
be extended or abridged by the board of trustees as in its 
judgment the circumstances require.  
    The executive director appointed in accordance with 
Section 4 of this Act shall authorize in writing and certify 
to the director of procurement and materials management those 
officials or employees of the several departments of the 
sanitary district who may purchase in the open market without 
filing a requisition or estimate therefor, and without 
advertisement, any supplies, materials, equipment or services, 
for immediate delivery to meet bona fide operating emergencies 
where the amount thereof is not in excess of $50,000; 
provided, that the director of procurement and materials 
management shall be notified of such emergency. A full written 
account of any such emergency together with a requisition for 
the materials, supplies, equipment or services required 
therefor shall be submitted immediately by the requisitioning 
agent to the executive director and such report and 
requisition shall be submitted to the director of procurement 
and materials management and shall be open to public 
inspection for a period of at least one year subsequent to the 



Version 2-1-16 

date of such emergency purchase. The exercise of authority in 
respect to purchases for such bona fide operating emergencies 
shall not be dependent upon a declaration of emergency by the 
board of trustees under the first paragraph of this Section.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09; 96-165, eff. 8-10-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.6) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.6)  
    Sec. 11.6. The head of each department shall notify the 
director of procurement and materials management of those 
officers and employees authorized to sign requests for 
purchases. Requests for purchases shall be void unless 
executed by an authorized officer or employee and approved by 
the director of procurement and materials management. Requests 
for purchases may be executed, approved and signed manually or 
electronically.  
    Officials and employees making requests for purchases 
shall not split or otherwise partition for the purpose of 
evading the competitive bidding requirements of this Act, any 
undertaking involving amounts in excess of the mandatory 
competitive bid threshold.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.7) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.7)  
    Sec. 11.7. All proposals to award purchase orders or 
contracts involving amounts in excess of the mandatory 
competitive bid threshold shall be published at least 12 
calendar days in advance of the date announced for the 
receiving of bids, in a secular English language newspaper of 
general circulation in said sanitary district and shall be 
posted simultaneously on readily accessible bulletin boards in 
the principal office of the sanitary district. Nothing 
contained in this section shall be construed to prohibit the 
placing of additional advertisements in recognized trade 
journals. Advertisements for bids shall describe the character 
of the proposed contract or agreement in sufficient detail 
either in the advertisement itself or by reference to plans, 
specifications or other detail on file at the time of 
publication of the first announcement, to enable the bidders 
to know what their obligation will be. The advertisement shall 
also state the date, time and place assigned for the opening 
of bids. No bids shall be received at any time subsequent to 
the time indicated in the announcement; however, an extension 
of time may be granted for the opening of such bids upon 
publication in the same newspaper of general circulation in 
said sanitary district stating the date to which bid opening 
has been extended. The time of the extended bid opening shall 
not be less than 5 days after publication, Sundays and legal 
holidays excluded.  
    Cash, cashier's check or a certified check payable to the 
clerk and drawn upon a bank, as a deposit of good faith, in a 



Version 2-1-16 

reasonable amount not in excess of 10% of the contract amount, 
may be required of each bidder by the director of procurement 
and materials management on all bids involving amounts in 
excess of the mandatory competitive bid threshold. If a 
deposit is required, the advertisement for bids shall so 
specify. Instead of a deposit, the director of procurement and 
materials management may allow the use of a bid bond if the 
bond is issued by a surety company that is listed in the 
Federal Register and is authorized to do business in the State 
of Illinois.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.8) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.8)  
    Sec. 11.8. Any agreement or collusion among bidders or 
prospective bidders in restraint of freedom of competition by 
agreement to bid a fixed price, or otherwise, shall render the 
bids of such bidder void. Each bidder shall accompany his bid 
with a sworn statement, or otherwise swear or affirm, that he 
has not been a party to any such agreement or collusion. Any 
disclosure in advance of the opening of bids, on the terms of 
the bids submitted in response to an advertisement, made or 
permitted by the director of procurement and materials 
management or any officer or employee of said sanitary 
district shall render the proceedings void and shall require 
re-advertisement and re-award.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.9) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.9)  
    Sec. 11.9. All sealed bids shall be publicly opened by the 
director of procurement and materials management, or his 
designee, and such bids shall be open to public inspection for 
a period of at least 48 hours before award is made; provided, 
this provision shall not apply to the sale of bonds, tax 
anticipation warrants or other financial obligations of the 
sanitary district.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.10) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.10)  
    Sec. 11.10. Every contract or purchase order involving 
amounts in excess of the mandatory competitive bid threshold 
shall be signed by the president or other duly authorized 
officer of the board of commissioners, by the executive 
director, by the clerk and by the director of procurement and 
materials management. Each bid with the name of the bidder 
shall be entered upon a record which shall be open to public 
inspection in the office of the director of procurement and 



Version 2-1-16 

materials management. After the award is made, the bids shall 
be entered in the official records of the board of 
commissioners.  
    All purchase orders or contracts involving amounts that 
will not exceed the mandatory competitive bid threshold shall 
be let by the director of procurement and materials 
management. They shall be signed by the director of 
procurement and materials management and the clerk. All 
records pertaining to such awards shall be open to public 
inspection for a period of at least one year subsequent to the 
date of the award.  
    An official copy of each awarded purchase order or 
contract together with all necessary attachments thereto, 
including assignments and written consent of the director of 
procurement and materials management shall be retained by the 
director of procurement and materials management in an 
appropriate file open to the public for such period of time 
after termination of contract during which action against the 
municipality might ensue under applicable laws of limitation. 
Certified copies of all completed contracts and purchase 
orders shall be filed with the clerk. After the appropriate 
period, purchase orders, contracts and attachments in the 
clerk's possession may be destroyed by direction of the 
director of procurement and materials management.  
    The provisions of this Act are not applicable to joint 
purchases of personal property, supplies and services made by 
governmental units in accordance with Sections 1 through 5 of 
"An Act authorizing certain governmental units to purchase 
personal property, supplies and services jointly," approved 
August 15, 1961.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.11) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.11)  
    Sec. 11.11. In determining the responsibility of any 
bidder, the director of procurement and materials management 
may take into account, in addition to financial 
responsibility, past records of transactions with the bidder, 
experience, adequacy of equipment, ability to complete 
performance within a specific time and other pertinent 
factors, including but not limited to whether the equipment or 
material is manufactured in North America.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.12) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.12)  
    Sec. 11.12. Any and all bids received in response to an 
advertisement may be rejected by the director of procurement 
and materials management if the bidders are not deemed 
responsible, or the character or quality of the services, 
supplies, materials, equipment or labor do not conform to 
requirements, or if the public interest may be better served 



Version 2-1-16 

thereby.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.13) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.13)  
    Sec. 11.13. Bond, with sufficient sureties, in such amount 
as shall be deemed adequate by the director of procurement and 
materials management not only to insure performance of the 
contract in the time and manner specified in said contract but 
also to save, indemnify and keep harmless the sanitary 
district against all liabilities, judgments, costs and 
expenses which may in anywise accrue against said sanitary 
district in consequence of the granting of the contract or 
execution thereof shall be required for all contracts relative 
to construction, rehabilitation or repair of any of the works 
of the sanitary district and may be required of each bidder 
upon all other contracts in excess of the mandatory 
competitive bid threshold when, in the opinion of the director 
of procurement and materials management, the public interest 
will be better served thereby.  
    In accordance with the provisions of "An Act in relation 
to bonds of contractors entering into contracts for public 
construction", approved June 20, 1931, as amended, all 
contracts for construction work, to which the sanitary 
district is a party, shall require that the contractor furnish 
bond guaranteeing payment for materials and labor utilized in 
the contract.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.14) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.14)  
    Sec. 11.14. No contract to which the sanitary district is 
a party shall be assigned by the successful bidder without the 
written consent of the director of procurement and materials 
management. In no event shall a contract or any part thereof 
be assigned to a bidder who has been declared not to be a 
responsible bidder in the consideration of bids submitted upon 
the particular contract.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.15) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.15)  
    Sec. 11.15. No person shall be employed upon contracts for 
work to be done by any such sanitary district unless he or she 
is a citizen of the United States, a national of the United 
States under Section 1401 of Title 8 of the United States 
Code, an alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence under 
Section 1101 of Title 8 of the United States Code, an 
individual who has been granted asylum under Section 1158 of 



Version 2-1-16 

Title 8 of the United States Code, or an individual who is 
otherwise legally authorized to work in the United States.  
(Source: P.A. 98-280, eff. 8-9-13; 99-231, eff. 8-3-15.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.16) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.16)  
    Sec. 11.16. The executive director, with the advice and 
consent of the board of trustees, shall appoint the director 
of procurement and materials management. Any person appointed 
as the director of procurement and materials management must 
have served at least 5 years in a responsible executive 
capacity requiring knowledge and experience in large scale 
purchasing activities.  
    In making the appointment, the president shall appoint an 
advisory committee consisting of 5 persons, one of whom shall 
be the executive director, which advisory board shall submit 
not fewer than 3 names to the general superintendent for the 
appointment. The executive director shall make the appointment 
from nominees submitted by the Advisory Committee after giving 
due consideration to each nominee's executive experience and 
his ability to properly and effectively discharge the duties 
of the director of procurement and materials management.  
    The director of procurement and materials management may 
be removed for cause by the executive director. He is entitled 
to a public hearing before the executive director prior to 
such anticipated removal. The director of procurement and 
materials management is entitled to counsel of his own choice. 
The executive director shall notify the board of trustees of 
the date, time, place and nature of each hearing and he shall 
invite the board to appear at each hearing.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.17) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.17)  
    Sec. 11.17. Powers of director of procurement and 
materials management. The director of procurement and 
materials management shall: (a) adopt, promulgate and from 
time to time revise rules and regulations for the proper 
conduct of his office; (b) constitute the agent of the 
sanitary district in contracting for labor, materials, 
services, or work, the purchase, lease or sale of personal 
property, materials, equipment or supplies in conformity with 
this Act; (c) open all sealed bids; (d) determine the lowest 
or highest responsible bidder, as the case may be; (e) enforce 
written specifications describing standards established 
pursuant to this Act; (f) operate or require such physical, 
chemical or other tests as may be necessary to insure 
conformity to such specifications with respect to quality of 
materials; (g) exercise or require such control as may be 
necessary to insure conformity to contract provisions with 
respect to quantity; (h) distribute or cause to be 
distributed, to the various requisitioning agencies of such 



Version 2-1-16 

sanitary district such supplies, materials or equipment, as 
may be purchased by him; (i) transfer materials, supplies, and 
equipment to or between the various requisitioning agencies 
and to trade in, sell, donate, or dispose of any materials, 
supplies, or equipment that may become surplus, obsolete, or 
unusable; except that materials, supplies, and equipment may 
be donated only to not-for-profit institutions; (j) control 
and maintain adequate inventories and inventory records of all 
stocks of materials, supplies and equipment of common usage 
contained in any central or principal storeroom, stockyard or 
warehouse of the sanitary district; (k) assume such related 
activities as may be assigned to him from time to time by the 
board of trustees; and (m) submit to the board of trustees an 
annual report describing the activities of his office. The 
report shall be placed upon the official records of the 
sanitary district or given comparable public distribution.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.18) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.18)  
    Sec. 11.18. The board of trustees is expressly authorized 
to establish a revolving fund to enable the director of 
procurement and materials management to purchase items of 
common usage in advance of immediate need. The revolving fund 
shall be reimbursed from appropriations of the using agencies. 
No officer or employee of a sanitary district organized 
pursuant to this Act shall be financially interested, directly 
or indirectly, in any bid, purchase order, lease or contract 
to which such sanitary district is a party. For purposes of 
this Section an officer or employee of the sanitary district 
is deemed to have a direct financial interest in a bid, 
purchase order, lease or contract with the district, if the 
officer or employee is employed by the district and is 
simultaneously employed by a person or corporation that is a 
party to any bid, purchase order, lease or contract with the 
sanitary district.  
    Any officer or employee convicted of a violation of this 
section shall forfeit his office or employment and in addition 
shall be guilty of a Class 4 felony.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.19) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.19)  
    Sec. 11.19. No department, office, agency or 
instrumentality, officer or employe of the sanitary district, 
shall be empowered to execute any purchase order or contract 
except as expressly authorized by this Act.  
(Source: Laws 1963, p. 2498.)  

 
 



Version 2-1-16 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.19a) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.19a)  
    Sec. 11.19a. Purchases made pursuant to this Act shall be 
made in compliance with the "Local Government Prompt Payment 
Act", approved by the Eighty-fourth General Assembly.  
(Source: P.A. 84-731.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.20) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.20)  
    Sec. 11.20. There shall be a board of standardization, 
composed of the director of procurement and materials 
management of the sanitary district who shall be chairman, and 
4 other members who shall be appointed by the president of the 
board of trustees of the sanitary district. The members shall 
be responsible heads of a major office or department of the 
sanitary district and shall receive no compensation for their 
services on the board. The board shall meet at least once each 
3 calendar months upon notification by the chairman at least 5 
days in advance of the date announced for such meeting. 
Official action of the board shall require the vote of a 
majority of all members of the board. The chairman shall cause 
to be prepared a report describing the proceedings of each 
meeting. The report shall be transmitted to each member and 
shall be made available to the president and board of trustees 
of such sanitary district within 5 days subsequent to the date 
of the meeting and all such reports shall be open to public 
inspection, excluding Sundays and legal holidays.  
    The board of standardization shall: (a) classify the 
requirements of the sanitary district, including the 
departments, offices and other boards thereof, with respect to 
supplies, materials and equipment; (b) adopt as standards, the 
smallest numbers of the various qualities, sizes and varieties 
of such supplies, materials and equipment as may be consistent 
with the efficient operation of the sanitary district; and (c) 
prepare, adopt, promulgate, and from time to time revise, 
written specifications describing such standards.  
    Specifications describing in detail the physical, chemical 
and other characteristics of supplies, material or equipment 
to be acquired by purchase order or contract shall be prepared 
by the board of standardization. However, all specifications 
pertaining to the construction, alteration, rehabilitation or 
repair of any real property of such sanitary district shall be 
prepared by the engineering agency engaged in the design of 
such construction, alteration, rehabilitation or repair, prior 
to approval by the director of procurement and materials 
management. The specification shall form a part of the 
purchase order or contract, and the performance of all such 
contracts shall be supervised by the engineering agency 
designated in the contracts.  
    In the preparation or revision of standard specifications 
the board of standardization shall solicit the advice, 
assistance and cooperation of the several requisitioning 
agencies and shall be empowered to consult such public or non-
public laboratory or technical services as may be deemed 
expedient. After adoption, each standard specification shall, 



Version 2-1-16 

until rescinded, apply alike in terms and effect to every 
purchase order or contract for the purchase of any commodity, 
material, supply or equipment. The specifications shall be 
made available to the public upon request.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.21) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.21)  
    Sec. 11.21. Official ordinances authorized by this Act 
shall be adopted by formal action of the board of trustees of 
the sanitary district and shall be published for the 
information of the public.  
(Source: Laws 1963, p. 2498.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.22) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.22)  
    Sec. 11.22. Any purchase order or contract executed in 
violation of this Act shall be null and void. Public funds 
which have been expended thereon, may be recovered in the name 
of the sanitary district in any court of competent 
jurisdiction.  
(Source: Laws 1963, p. 2498.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.23) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.23)  
    Sec. 11.23. The comptroller of the sanitary district shall 
conduct audits of all expenditures incident to all purchase 
orders and contracts awarded by the director of procurement 
and materials management. The comptroller shall report the 
results of such audits to the president and board of trustees.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 
 

    (70 ILCS 2605/11.24) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.24)  
    Sec. 11.24. (a) A person or business entity shall be 
disqualified from doing business with The Metropolitan 
Sanitary District of Greater Chicago for a period of 5 years 
from the date of conviction or entry of a plea or admission of 
guilt, if that person or business entity:  
        1. has been convicted of an act of bribery or  

     

attempting to bribe an officer or employee of the federal 
government or of a unit of any state or local government 
or school district in that officer's or employee's 
official capacity; or 

 

        2. has been convicted of an act of bid-rigging or  

     
attempting to rig bids as defined in the Federal Sherman 
Anti-Trust Act and Clayton Act; or 

 



Version 2-1-16 

        3. has been convicted of bid-rigging or attempting  

     
to rig bids under the laws of the State of Illinois or any 
other state; or 

 

        4. has been convicted of an act of price-fixing or  

     
attempting to fix prices as defined by the Federal Sherman 
Anti-Trust Act and Clayton Act; or 

 

        5. has been convicted of price-fixing or attempting  

     
to fix prices under the laws of the State of Illinois or 
any other state; or 

 

        6. has been convicted of defrauding or attempting to  

     
defraud the Federal government or a unit of any state or 
local government or school district; or 

 

        7. has made an admission of guilt of such conduct as  

     

set forth in subsections 1 through 6 above, which 
admission is a matter of record, whether or not such 
person or business entity was subject to prosecution for 
the offense or offenses admitted to; or 

 

        8. has entered a plea of nolo contendere to charges  

     
of bribery, price-fixing, bid-rigging, or fraud as set 
forth in subsections 1 through 6 above. 

 

    (b) "Business entity" as used in this section means a 
corporation, partnership, trust, association, unincorporated 
business or individually owned business.  
    (c) A business entity shall be disqualified if the 
following persons are convicted of, have made an admission of 
guilt, or enter a plea of nolo contendere to a disqualifying 
act described in paragraph (a), subsections 1 through 6, 
regardless of whether or not the disqualifying act was 
committed on behalf or for the benefit of such business 
entity:  
        (1) a person owning or controlling, directly or  
     indirectly, 20% or more of its outstanding shares; or 
 

        (2) a member of its board of directors; or  
        (3) an agent, officer or employee of such business  
     entity. 
 

    (d) Disqualification Procedure. After bids are received, 
whether in response to a solicitation for bids or public 
advertising for bids, if it shall come to the attention of the 
director of procurement and materials management that a bidder 
has been convicted, made an admission of guilt, a plea of nolo 
contendere, or otherwise falls within one or more of the 
categories set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) of this 
Section, the director of procurement and materials management 
shall notify the bidder by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, that such bidder is disqualified from doing 
business with the Sanitary District. The notice shall specify 
the reasons for disqualification.  
    (e) Review Board. A review board consisting of 3 
individuals shall be appointed by the Executive Director of 
the Sanitary District. The board shall select a chairman from 
its own members. A majority of the members shall constitute a 
quorum and all matters coming before the board shall be 
determined by a majority. All members of the review board 
shall serve without compensation, but shall be reimbursed 
actual expenses.  
    (f) Review. The director of procurement and materials 
management's determination of disqualification shall be final 



Version 2-1-16 

as of the date of the notice of disqualification unless, 
within 10 calendar days thereafter, the disqualified bidder 
files with the director of procurement and materials 
management a notice of appeal. The notice of appeal shall 
specify the exceptions to the director of procurement and 
materials management's determination and shall include a 
request for a hearing, if one is desired. Upon receipt of the 
notice of appeal, the director of procurement and materials 
management shall provide a copy to each member of the review 
board. If the notice does not contain a request for a hearing, 
the director of procurement and materials management may 
request one within 5 days after receipt of the notice of 
appeal. If a hearing is not requested, the review board may, 
but need not, hold a hearing.  
    If a hearing is not requested, the review board, unless it 
decides to hold a hearing, shall review the notice of 
disqualification, the notice of appeal and any other 
supporting documents which may be filed by either party. 
Within 15 days after the notice of appeal is filed, the review 
board shall either affirm or reverse the director of 
procurement and materials management's determination of 
disqualification and shall transmit a copy to each party by 
certified mail, return receipt requested.  
    If there is a hearing, the hearing shall commence within 
15 days after the filing of the notice of appeal. A notice of 
hearing shall be transmitted to the director of procurement 
and materials management and the disqualified bidder not later 
than 12 calendar days prior to the hearing date, by certified 
mail, return receipt requested.  
    Evidence shall be limited to the factual issues involved. 
Either party may present evidence and persons with relevant 
information may testify, under oath, before a certified 
reporter. Strict rules of evidence shall not apply to the 
proceedings, but the review board shall strive to elicit the 
facts fully and in credible form. The disqualified bidder may 
be represented by an attorney.  
    Within 10 calendar days after the conclusion of the 
hearing, the review board shall make a finding as to whether 
or not the reasons given in the director of procurement and 
materials management's notice of disqualification apply to the 
bidder, and an appropriate order shall be entered. A copy of 
the order shall be transmitted to the director of procurement 
and materials management and the bidder by certified mail, 
return receipt requested.  
    (g) All final decisions of the review board shall be 
subject to review under the Administrative Review Law.  
    (h) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section to 
the contrary, the Sanitary District may do business with any 
person or business entity when it is determined by the 
director of procurement and materials management to be in the 
best interest of the Sanitary District, such as, but not 
limited to contracts for materials or services economically 
procurable only from a single source.  
(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.)  

 



EXHIBIT 3 

MWRDGC’S MULTI-PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT (MPLA) 

 



MULTI-PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT (COOK COUNT"S')

With

CERTIFICATE OF COMPI.IANC~

CONTAINS:

1) MPLA -EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 6, 2017

2) CERTIFICATE Or COMPLIANCE

MPLA-CC-01



G~NF,T2AL REQLJI:CZi;NI:~NTS UN.D~R TI3~
11~UL'I'I-Pn4J~C,"l, LA1i0it AGIZ~EM~NT

The followi►ib is n briefswn~.xia~y ot'a Bidder's responsibilities uncle►• the MPLn. T'leasc refer to tl~c terms of

the Ml'LA for a full And complete statement of its requirements.

Your firm is required to complete t}~e CertificAte of CompliAnce indicating that your firm i~ytends to

comply with the Multi-Project Labor Agreement. The Certificate of Compliance must be signed by an

autl~orixed Officer of die firm. Tius may be submitted with the bid or prior to award of contract. To he

ciibible k'or award, your firm ►rust comply with. tl~e Multi-Project Labor Agreement and sign the

certificzte. failure of the Bidder to comply with the MPLA will result in a rejection of the Uicl, and

possible retention oFthe bid deposit. Com}~linnce with the MT'LA, is as fgllaws:

I:fthe bidder or any other enrity performing work under the contract is not already

signatory to a current collective l~ar~;aiz~ix~g agreement rviih a union or labor organization

affiliated ~vitl.~ the ArT.-CTO ~3uilding Trades DeparGnent and the Chicago and Cook

County 13~~ilding and Construction'T'rades Council, or their aFFiliutes which blue

jurisdiction over the ~vark to be performed pursuant to this Contract, (hereafter referred

to as a "participating trade Stroup") it must become ~ member.

Note: The MPLA is not applicable wheia the performance of work is outside Cook County, Tliinnis, or if

repair and it~ainlenancc work on equipment is pc~•fonned ul a Bidder's facilii~~.

Revised October 2017

MPLA-CC-02



METR~PQLITAN WATER ftECLAMATfON DISTRICT OF GREATER CHICAC~~

MUFTI-PROJEGI" LABOR AGREEMENT FOR C(30K COUNIY

This Multi-Project Labor Agreement t"Agreement") is entered into by and between the

Metropol'slan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chica~a ("MWRD" or "District"), a public body, as

Owner, in fts proper capacity, on bchaif of itself and each of its contractors and subcontractors of

whatever tier ("Contractors") and shat( be applicable to Construction Work an Covered Projects, both

defiined herein, to be perforated by the pistrtct's Contractors ainng witf7 each of the undersigned labor

organizations signatory to the Chicago and Cook County auitdfn~ and Construction Trades Council and,

as appropriate, the Teamsters Joint Council No. 25, or their affiliates who become s(gn~tory hereto

(collectively "Union(s)").

This Agreement is entered into in accordance with all applicable local state and federal laws. The District

recognizes tt~e public interest in timely construction and labor stability.

WNEf~~AS, MWRD is responsible forfhe actual construction, demolition, rehabilitation,

deconstruction, and/orrenovation work ("Construction Work") of projects overseen by MWRD in the

gen~raphical boundaries ofCnok County. Alf ofthe pistrict's ConstrucCion Work within thn~e ~aundari~s

("Covered projects") will be recogn(zed as covered under the terms of this Agreement regardless of the

source nFChe Funds forthe Protect. Due to the size, scope, cost, timing, and duration of the multitude of

Covered Projects traditionally performed by MWRD, the Parties to this AgreemenC have determined that

it is in tiie~r interests to have these Covered Projects completed in the ►host productive, economical, and

orderly manner possible and without labor disruptions of any kind that might interfere with, ar delay,

any ofsaid Covered Projects; and

WHEREAS, 'the Warties have determined that it is desirable to eliminate the potential far friction

and disruption of these Covered Projects by using their best efforts to ensure ttyat all Construct(on Work

is perforired by the Unions that are signatory hereto and which have Craditiona)ly performed and have

trade and geographic jurisdiction over such work regardless of the source of the Funds for the Project.

Experience has provan the value oFsuch cooperation and mutual undertakings; and

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that the District is not to be considered an employer of any

employee of any Contractor covered under this Agreement, and the District acknvwlecfges that it has a

serious and ongoing concern regarding labor relations associated with its Covered Projects, irrespective

of the existence of a callect3ve bargaining relationship with any of the signaCory Unions.

NOW'i'FtFREFORE, in orderto further these goals and objectives and to maintain a spirit of

harmony, labor-management cooperation, and stability, the Parties agree as follows:

1. During the term of this Agreement, MWRD shall neither contract, nor permit any other person, firm,

company, car entity to contract or subcontract for any Construction Work on any Covered Protect under

this A~reernent, unless such work is perFormed by a person, firm, or company signatory, or willing to

V become signatory, to the current applicable area-wide collective bargaining agreements) with the

appropriate trade/craft Unian(s) affiliated with the Ghicaga &Cook County Building &Construction

Trades Councilor, as appropriate, the Teamsters` Joint Council No. 25. Copies of akl applicable, current

collective bargaining agreements constituCe Appendix A of this Agreement, attached hereto and made

an integral prirt hereof, and as may be modified from time to time during the term of this agreement.

MPLA-CG03



5epternber G, 2017

Said provisions of this Agreement shall be include8 in all advertised contracts, excluding non-

CanstrucCion Work, and shall be explicitly f~cluded in all contracts or subcontracts oPwhatsoevertier by
all Contractors on Covered Projects.

a. The Parties agree that the repair of heavy equipment, thermographic inspection, and

landscaping shall be defined and/or designated as Construction Wark on ati Covered Arajectr.

b. The Unions acknow{ed~e that some preassembled or prefabricated equipment and material

wilt be used on Covered Projects. 7o the extent consistent with existing collective bargaining

agreements and ~pp(icable law, there will be no refusal by the Unions to handle, transport,

install, or connect such equipment or materials. Further, equipmen~C and material procured from

sources outside of the geographic boundaries of Cook County may be delivered by independent

cargo, haulers, rail, ship and/or truck drrvers and such delivery will be made without any

disruption as the District will request ifis Contractors to request Union-affiliate employees to

make deliveries Co the Covered Project s(tes.

c, Notwithstanding anytP~ing to tt~e contrary herein, the terms of this Agreement shall not

apply to work performed at the Contractor's facility far repair and maintenance of equipment or

where repair, maintenance, or inspection services are done byhighly-skilled technicians trained

in servicing equipment, unless otherwise provided by the relevant callectiv~ bargaining

agreement.

d. Nothing herein shall prohibit or otherwise affect tl7p District's right to cancel or otherwise

terminate a contract.

e. Apre-construction rimeeting attended by representaCives of the District, the Contractors, and

Unions shall be scheduled for a date prior to commencement Qf a Covered Aroject. The nature

of the project, Che May ~5, 2017 Covered Construction Work, the work ass(gnments, and any

other matters of mutual interest will be discussed. All parties participating Pn the pre-job

cnnierences shall sign apre-Job-sign-in sheet. lluring the pre job conference, or shortly

thereafter, and before the commencement of the project, the contactor or subcontractor shall

ensure that ehere has been submitted to the District a letter of good standing for the applicable

trades explaining that the contractor orsubcantractor is not deiinqu~r~t with respect to any

dues owed to the appropriate fabororg~nization orwith respect to any fringe contributions

owed to the appropriate fringe benefit fund(s), if a union or fringe benefit fund does not

produce a letter of good stand(ng within seven (7) days after a requesfi is made no such letter of

good standing shall be requEred forthat particular trade.

f. l"he Unions agree Co reasonably cooperate with the fv1WRD and Contractors in orderto

assist tf~em in achieving the Worker Percentage Participation ~aals as defined in subsection (1)

and (2) below, The Worker Percentage Participation foals are governed by federal requirements

regarding federal construction contracts. 7a the extent these federal worker percentage

particlgation goals are modified in the future, such modifications will automatically apply:

{1) 19.64'a of tt~e tots{ aggregate of construction hours worked by employees of

contractors and their subcontractors will be performed by African-American, Hispanic,
Native American, Asian-Pacific, and Subcontinent Asian American workers.
{2) 6.9% of the total aggregate of construction hours worked by employees of the
contractors and their subcontractors will be performed by female workers.

2

M P LA-C C-04



September 6, 2017

2. A contractor or subcontractor which is a successful bidder with respect to Coverer! Projects, but

wl~fch fs not sEgnatory to the applicable area-wide cotlective bargaining ~greernents incorporated herein,

shall be required to execute such applicable area-wide cpllective bargaining agreements within seven (7)

days of being desPgnated a successful bidder. tf such an agreement is not executed within that time

periacl, said contractor or subcontractor will be disqualified. In no event shall a contractor or

suErcontractor be required to sign any of the applicable agreements constituting Appendix A if the

rontractor or subcontractor does not employ the trade covered by the applicable Appendix A contract.

3. During the term of this l~~reement, no Union signatory hereto nar any of its members, officers,

stewards, agenCs, representatives, nor any employee, shall instigate, authorize, support, sanction,

maintain, or participate in any strike walkout, work stoppage, work slowdown, work curtailment,

cessation, ar interruption of production, or In any picketing of any Covered Project site covered by this

Agreement for any reason whatsoever, including, but not limited to, the expiration of any collective

bargaining agreement referred to in Appendix A, a dispute between the Parties and any Union or

employee, or as a show of support or sympathy for any other Union employee or any other group. In the

event of an economic strike or other job action upon the termination of an exisCing collective bargaining

agreement, no adverse job action shall be directed against any Covered Project sites. All provisions of

arty subsequently negotiated'collecCive bargaining agreement shall be retroactive for aft employees

working on the Covered Project.

4. Each UniUn si~natary hereto agrees that it wilt use its best efforts to prevent any of the acts

for~(dden in Paragraph 4, and that in the event any such act Cakes piac~ or is engaged in by any

employee or group of employees, each Union signatory hereto further agrees that it will use its best

eFForts (including its full disciplinary Hower under its Constitution and/or E3y-Laws) to cause an

immediate cessat(on thereof. Each union also agrees that if any union, individual or group of employees

on covered projecCs engages In any handb111ing, picl<etin~, strike, walkout, work stoppage, work

slowdown, work curtailment, cessation or interruption, the ether unions will consider such picketing or

other work ~ctinn as unauthorized and will refuse to honor any picket tine established and the unions

further agree to insCrucC their members to cross such unauthorfxed Imes. failure of any union or groups

of employees to cress such unauthorized picket lines on any covered project shall be a violation of this

agreement.

5. Any Contractor signatory or otherwise bound, stipulated to, or required to abide by any provisions

of this Agreement may implement reasonable project rules and regulations, and these rules and

regulations shall be distributed to all employees on tf~e Covered Project. Rrovided, however, that such

rules and regulations shall not be inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement or any applicable area-

widecollective bargaining agreement. Any Contractarshall have the right to discharge or discipline its

Union employees wP~o violate the provisions of thin Agreement or any Covered ProJect's rules and

regulations. Such discharge ar discipline by a Contractor shall be subjectto the Grievance/ Arbitration

procedure of the applicable area-wide collective bargaining agreement only as to the fact of such

employee's violation afthis Agreement. If such fact is established, the penalty imposed shall not be

subject to review ar disturbed. Construction Work at any Covered Project site under this Agreement

shah continue without disruption or hindrance of ar~y kind during any Grievance/Arbitration procedure.

3

MPLA-CC-05



September 6, 2017

6. The Unions understand and acknowledge that the D{strict's Contractors are responsible to perform

Construction Work as required by the District. The Contractors have complete authority to do the

following, subject to District approval, if required, and if consistent with the terms of the collective

bargaining agreements attached hereto;

a. Play, direct, and control the operations of all work;

b. Hire and lay off employees as the Contractor deems appropriate to meet work

requirements;

c. Determine work methods ai d procedures;

d, Determine the need and number of foremen;

e. Require a(I employees to observe Contractor and/ar District rules and regulations;

f. Require all employees to work safely and observe all safety regulations prescribed by the

ContracCor and/or the District; and

g. bischarge, suspend, or disc(pline employees for proper cause.

h. Abide by Che rules set Forth in each respective Trade Unions' Collective{y Bargained

Agreernent pertaining to apprentice to journeymen ratios.

7. Nothing in the foregoing shall prohibit or restrict any Party from otherwise judfciaUy enforcing any

provision of its collective bargaCning agreement between any Union and a Contractor with whom It has a

collective bargaining relationship.

S. This Agreement shaA be incorporated into all advertised contract documents after the Board of

Commissioners adopts and rafiifies this Agreement.

9. The term ofithis Agreement shall be five (5) years and shall be automatically extended from yearto

year unless the District orthe Council issues a written notice to terminate priorto ninety (90) days in

advance of any expiration. Any Covered Project commenced during and/or covered by the terms ofthis

AgreemenC shall continue to be covered by its terms until the final completion and acceptance of the

Covered Project by the District.

10. In the evenC a dispute shat{ arise between a conLractar or subcontractor any signatory un€on and/or

fringe benefit fund as to the obligation and/or payment of fringe benefits provided for under the

appropriate CollecCive Barga;nfng Agreement, upon notice Yo the District by the appropriate union

signatory hereto of a claim for such benefEts, the District shalt forward such nati~cation to the surety

upon the contract, and to the general contractor,

11. )n the event of a jurisdictional dispute by and between any Unions, such Unions shall take all steps

necessary to promptly resolve the dispute, In the event of a dispute relit+ng to trade or work

jurisdiction, F~arties, including Contractors, consent to and agree that a final and binding resolution of

the dispute shall be achiever! in accordance with the terms of paragraph nine of the Joint conference
board Standard AgreemenC between the Chicago ~. Cook County Building Trades Counciland the
Construction employers' Association, attached I~ereto as Appendix B, and as may be modified frpm time
to time during the term of this Agreement.

4

MPLA-CC-06



SepCember 6, 2017

12. This Agreement shall be incorporated into and become a part of the collective bargaining

agreements between the Unions signatory hereto and Contractors and their subcontractors. !n the

event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and any c~lfective bargaining agreement, the terms

of this Agreernene shall supersede end prevail, fn khe event of any inconsistency between this

Agreement and any col(ectiv~: bar~ain(ng agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall supersede and

prevail excep•tfor al!work performed underYhe NTP Articles of Agreement, the National Stack/Chimney
A~reernent,'the National Cooling Tower Agreement, al! instruction calibration work and loop checking

shall be performed under the terms of the UA/IBEW }oint National Agreement for instrument anci

Contra! systems1'~chnicians, and Lhe NaYiana! Agreement offihe International Union afi Elevator

Contractors with the exception of the content and subject matter of Artie{e V, V1, anc~ Vfl ofi the AFL-

GO's Building & Consfiructian Trades Department model Project Labor /~greernent.

13. 1'he Parfiies agree that in the implementation and administration of this Rgreemen~, it is vitally

necessary to maintain effective and immediate. communication so as to mi~~Smize the potential of labor

relations disputes arising Qut cif this Agreement. To that end, each Party hereto agrees to designate, in

writing, a representative to whom problems which arise during the term of this Agreement may be

directed. Wiehin forty-eight (48j hours after notice of the existence of any problem, a representative of

each Party sFtial) meet to discuss and, where possible, resolve such problems. The representative of the

Unions shall be President of the Chicago &Conk County Building &Construction Trades Councilor

his/her designee. l"he repres~ntaCive of MWRD sh~Il be the District's Assistant Director of Engineering,

Construction Division orhis/her designee.

14. The distt~ictand the Contractors agree thatthe applicable substance abuse policy (i.e., drug, alcohol,

etc.) ors any Covered ProJed shall be that as contained or ottierwfse prpvided for in the relevant are~-

wide coitective bargaining agreements attached as Appendix A to this Agreement. Nothing in the

foregoing shall limit the District and/or Contractors from initPatTng their own substance aUuse policy

~Qverning other ernp(oyees performing work an a projece not otherwise covered under this Agreement.

In the event there is no substance abuse policy in the applicable collective bargaining agreements, the

policy adopCE~d by the District and/or ContracCor may apply. The District is noC responsible for

administering; any substance abuse policy for non-District employees.

15. The Parties recognize a desire to facilitate the entry into Lhe building and construction trades of

veterans whc> are interested in careers in the building and construction industry.7he Contractors and

Unions agree to utilize the services of the Centerfor Military Recruitment, Assessment and Veterans
Employment ("Center"),the Center's Helmets to Nardhats program, and the Veteran's In Aiping {V.i.P)
program tthis only pertains to the United Association Piperitters Local 597, Plumbers Local 130, and
S~~rinEcler F(tter's local 281j, to serve as a resource for preliminary orientation, assessment of
construction aptitude, and referral to apprenticeship programs ar hiring halls, counseling and
menCnrin~, support network, employment opportunities, and otf~er needs as identified by the Parties,
TE7e Contractors and Unipns also agree to Coordinate with the Center to create and maintain an
integrated database of veterans interested En working on Covered Projects, Including apprenticeship and
employment opportunities on such projects. 7o the extent permitCed by law, the ParCies will give

S

MPLA-CC-07



September G, 2017

appropriate credit to such veCerans for bona fide, provable past experience in the building and

cons#ruction industry.

16. The Parties agree that Coniractars working under the terms of this Agreement shah be required to

utilize the maximum number of apprentices an Covered ProJe~ts as permitted under the applicable

area-wide collective bargaining agreements contained in Appendix A, where feasible and practical.

17. Neither the District, the Contractors, nar the Unions shall discriminate against any ernpioyecs of a

protected class, including @ut not limited to on the basis of race, creed, color, naLianal origin, ale, or

sex, in accordance with all applicable state 'and federal laws and regulations.

~.8. If any prevision or other portion of this Agreement shat! be determined by any court of competent

jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in whole or In part, and such determination shall

became final, it shall b~ deemed to be severed or limited, but only to the extent required to render the

remaining provisions and nort~ions of this Agreement enforceable. This Agreement, as amended, shall be

enforced spas to give effect to the intention of the Parties insofar as passible,

19. Under this Agreement, any liabi{ity of the Parties shall be several and not joint. The District shall not

be liable for any vPolations of Phis Agreement by any Contractor or Unfon, and any Contractor or Union

shall not be liable for any violations of this Agreement by the District, any other Contractor, or any other

Union. In the event any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable

as specified in Paragraph 18, neither the District, nor any Contractor or Union, shall be liable for any

action taken or eat taken to comply wiCh any court order.

20. 1'he Parties are mutually committed to promoting a safe working environment for ail personnel at

tl7e job site. It shall b~ 'the responsibility of each employer to which this Agreement applies to provide a

work environment free of illegal drugs and any concealed weapons, to maintain safe working conditions

for its employees, and to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local health and safety laws and

regulations.

21. The use c>r fi~rnlshing of alcohol, weapons, or illegal drubs and the conducC of any other illegal

activities at the Job site is strictly prohibited. The Parties shall take every practical measure consistent

with the terms of the applicable area-wide collective barga(ning agreement to ensure tha t the joD site is

free of weapons, al~of~ol, and illegal drugs.

22. Each Union representing workers engaged in Construction Work an a Covered Project is found tc~

this Agreement with Pull authority to negotiate and sf~n this Agreement with the District.

23, loll Parties represent that they have Che ful} legal authority to enter into this Agreement.

24. ThSs document, with the attached Appendices, constitutes the entire Agreement of the Parties and

may not be modified or changed except by subsequent written agreement of the Parties.

6

M P LA-CC-OS



September 6, 20].7

25. Having been adopted by the Board of Cammissioners on August 3, 2017, and ratifred and effective

as of the last date on the signature page, this agreement supersedes any other Multi-Project Labor

Agreement previously entered into by the parties as of the date of ratification.

~Yten~aindez- o.f page intentianzll~ Ie~t ~lauk. Signature page foll.or~vs.~

7

M P LA-CC-09



September 6, 2017

The tuidersi~ied, as a Party Hereto, hereby ag~:ees to all the terms and coudztions of this
Abree~neni.

Dated 'this S~ day o:f _~ ~rF~ 2017 in Chicago, Cook Cuun.ty, Itli.nois.

On t7elia~f of foie 1VYetropolitab '4"~ater Reclamation x}istrict of Grente~• Ci~ic~iga

t / j

David St. l~z~rre Aa~rlene A. LoCascio

I~xecuti~~e X:>ireciox Dixector of Proeuren~ent and Materials
Managei~.ierrt

Approved as to corm ~-►d Lc alxt~~

~ ~~ ~

Z~elen Shields-~~Jxi~l~i Q~~t.,

I-Iead t~.ssistant Attorne~~

~'• .,_---r r

:~qu~liife To~"i'es

xrector of ~inazice/Clerk

l~
Susan T, Moxakalis

Actzii~ General Cauiasel

Frank Avila

Cl~airinai7 o!'I~iriance

Approved

Mariyana T,.~yropout~s.

Chairman, Conirxaitl:ee on abor ~d
Xndusirial R.elatioiis

~~ JX ~ ~

. 

r''••.

S

MPLA-CC-10



September 6, 2017

The wndexsigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the tezms and conditions of this
Agreenien~

Dated t'~is th%~~day ofd/ M~P~L, 2417 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On behalt'of: Teamsters Local Union No. 731
labor Organization

APPRmVED:

Gl~z~~~F~~.1
Tfs Duly Auth~zixed Officer Terrence J. Hancock, President

MPLA-CC-11



~1~~~ ~~
September 6, 2017

The unciersigaed, as a Parfy Ixezeta, agrees to all the terms and conditions of this
Agreennen~.

Dated this thel3th ~Iay p~' September , 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, ~ili~aois.

On behalfof:_S~z~.nkler Fitters Unzon Local. 281, TJ.A.

x,a~ox o~~,~ano,~

~rxovED:

s Du y Au 'ze Officer

Dennis J. Fleming, Business Manager



~1~~~ ~~

September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Paxty hereto, agrees to all the terms anal conditions of dais
Agreement.

bated taus ttze 1~.day of _',~~~, > 2017 in C}ucago, Cook Cownty, Illinois.

Ors behalff of: ,S/~7~.~ ~ ~~ r •~. ~ ~~~5'
Labor Organization

AI'PROVBD:

Its Duly Authorized Officer

MPLA-CC-13



September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the terlus and conditions of this

Agreement.

Dated this the ~, day of ~> tzQZ~w,.h~.~, 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On behal~of: 1~~uC~('S~l,..?o~.}x,C'p~C~U~ fS ~1f
Labor Organization

APPROVED:

Its Duly A.uthori Officer

MPLA-CC-14



September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the teams and conditions of this
Agreement.

Dated this the ~ day of ✓~, 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Iltinois.

On behalf of: ~~U~~G~iS ̀ o ~A f /3 II !~
Y,abor OrgAnization

'PROVED:

~~~. % .

Its y Authorized Offic

D

MPLA-CC-15



September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the teems and conditions of this

Agreement.

Dated Phis the~~day of ~ 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

Om behalf of: Ti~~'/~c~Tc~~ ~aC,~( ~~

Labor Organization

APPROVED:

'~ %~~

~ . -. • i

D

M PLA-C C-16



~f~J2,r~ P~-4

September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

Dated this the%-D-day of ~ :. ,2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Tllanois.

On behalf of: 1 ~^ ~ ~ S f ~ lG~ ~ ~'`~ 
r

Labor Organization

APPROVED:

It Dul Authori O cer

MPLA-CC-17



September 6, 2017

The w~dersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

Dated this ttle`~ day of~~~~ , 2017 in Chioago, Conk County, Illinois.

On behal4 of: ~~~`~«~-7 ~ — ~~
Labor Orgs~nixation

M PLA-CC-18

APPROVED:



~w2~ ~~„~
September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all t~xe terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

Dated this the ~~ day of S~' ~~, 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On behalf of: ! ~l~ri~f,C~C" ~/ ~ ~~,
Labor Organization

APPROVED:

Its Duly Authorized 0 cer

9

MPLA-CC-19



~'~~~ ~~
September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the ternas and conditions of this

Agreement.

Dated this the ~~- day of~~~~'~,Bz~Q-, 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On beha];F of: ~,~l~~i~~~ ~s~,~LG~ C.%~u.~~~~'

Labor Organixation

APp120VEb:

y

~~ 

.s lluly Authorize ices

~]

MPLA-CG20



September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to alt the terms and conditions of this
Agreemant

Dated this tke'`~~//-hlay of ~}~•Il~r 17 in Cbacago, Cook County, lllinais.

Labor Orgs+uizatiou

APPROVED:

~ ~~5~~ ~ 1

9

MPLA-CG21



September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

Dated t}ais the ,, f~~iay of , 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On behalf of: .v ~~~~ ~~~~
abor Organization

~A.PPROVED:

.. ~

Its Duly Authorized Officer

MPLA-CG22



~~~~ ~~ A
September 6, 2417

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to atl the teams and conditions of this

Agreement.

Dated this the may of ~Ft.~, 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On behalf of: —~— 2 ~(~
Labor Organization

APPROVED:

Its Duly Au orized Officer

MPLA-CC-23



September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to atl the terms and conditions of ties
Agreement.

Dated tkus the la~hday of~~,,~,..~,-2017 in Chicago, Cook County, ~Ilinois.

On behalf of:~,~,2cc-~.-6- ~~ro~~- ~r15~~~u~~~r.S ~„dt.~ ~ ~ ~
LaUor Organization

A~'PRO'VLD:

l~V ~ ,~.... ,.~,.~

Tts Duty Auth iz d Officer

MPLA-CC-24



~w.2~ ~~.,~-
September 6, 2017

7'he undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the tezms and conclitions of this

Agreement.

Dated tYais the ,~, dad of T~t~~L., 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, IIlznozs.

On behalf of: ~ V C ~- ~ 0 C+~„ 2.....

Labor Organization

AP~'ROVED:

Its Duly Authorized Officer

MPtA-CG25



if/~r~r~ ~~~-
September 6, 2017

The widersigued, as a Yaxty hereto, agrees. to all kite terms and conditio~~s of this

Ag1•eement.

Dated this the ,~ day of S ~ f ~ , 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On behaiff of: ~ ~ c.~ ~ ~ 3`( . L Q -Gt,-~

L~.bor ~rganiizxtion

APPROVED:

Its Holy Authorized Ufiicer

MPLA-CC-26



September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the teams and conditions of this

Agreement.

Dated this the ,~ day of , 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

~ ~f r .-~~ ~~

.~

r'
.~ ~ ..

Authorized

MPLA-CC-27



September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the teams and conclitions of this
Agzeemei~t.

Dafed this the ~~- day of ~AT~'~~~2017 in Chicago, Cook Counfy, Illinois.

On behalf ofd--~~'.~•/~6ti~d~'1.~,5'
Y,abor Organization

A~'PROV~D:

--- ~~

~ts Duly Authorized Officer

D

MPLA-CC-28



J~~~~ ~~~
September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

Dated this the f~ dad of~4 ~►tf~~~lZ , 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On behalf of; ~ ~z.Q ~G L~! ~fJ ` ~~ / ̀ t~

Labor rganization

A~'PROVEn:

Its Du Authorized Officer

D

MPLA-CC-29



''~~ ̀~-v p.~ g

September 6, 2017

The undersigned, as a Party hereto, agrees to all the terms and conditions of this

Agreement

Dated this the J~ day of ^, 2017 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On bebal~af:~,~~ ~:~~~,r~~~r~~~~~~J'~a~~~'~~/ c~'C
Labox Organization

APPROVED:

Duly Authorized Officer

9

M PLA-CC-30



September 6, 2t?17

APPENDIX A

For copies of Collective Bargaining Agreements, please go to the MWRD Website and click on:

Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)/Category of Records

1.0

MPLA-CC-31



September 6, 2017

APPENDIX B

11

MPLA-CC-32



bocuSign Envelope ID: 5GD9C849-&98U-4E39-SA30-1EG42D256425

JOINT CONFERENCE BOARD
STANDARD AGIZEEM~N'T

6/1~IS -- 5/31/20

Construction Employers' Association
And

Chicago &Cook County Buitding &
Construction TYades Council

MPLA-CC-33



~ocuSlgn Envelope ID: 5DD9C849.6898-4E39-8A30-1E6~32D256425

The Standard Agreement
between

The Construction Employers' Association
and

The Chicago &Cook County

Building &Construction Trades Council

Establishing

The Joint Conference ~3oard

MPLA-CC-34



docuSign Envelope ID: 5DU9C849-G998-4E39-8A30-1E642D256425

CHRONOLOGY

ADOPTED NOVEMBER I8, 1926

AMENDED AND READOPTED JANUARY 11, 1929

AMENDED AND READAPTED JUNE 24, 1942
READOPTED APRIL 28, 1947

AMENDED AND READOPTED MARCH 19, 1952

READOPTED FBTiRUARY 12, 1957

AMENDED AND READOPTED MAY 13, 1958

AMENDED AND READOPTED FEBRUARY 11, 1960

AMENDED AND READOPTED MAY 21, 1963

AMENDED NOVEMBER I6, 1965
AMENDED MARCH l4, 1967

AMENDED AND READOPTED MARC13 4, 1968

AMENDED AND RE.ADOT'TED NOVEMBER 11, 1971

READOT'TED NOVEMBER 20, 1973
READOPTED DECEM~3ER 12, 1978
READ4PT~D APRIL 12, 1983
READ(aP7'ED MARCH 31, 1988

AMENDED AND READOPTED APIZTL 25, 1989

REFORMATTED, AMENDED AND READOPTED JtJNL 1, 1994

AMENDED AND READOPTED JUNE 1, 7999
AMENDED APRIL 1, 2003

AMENDED AND READAPTED JUNE 1, 2004

AMENDED AND READOATBD JUNE 1, 2005 .

AMENDED AND READOPTED NNE 25, 2008

AMENDED AND READOPTED FEBRUARY 15, 2010

AMENDED AND READOPTED MAY 28, 2015

Expiration Date: MAY 31, 2020

MPLA-CC-35



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5Dp9C649-6998-4E3&8A30-tE642D258425

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Article Page
Preamble .................................................... ..............................1
Declaration of Principies ............................................................2
Articles of Agreement ................................................................3
I. No Work Stoppage ............................................................3
lY. Stipulation .........................................................................3
TII. Rights ................................................................................3

Paragraph 1 Abandonment of Work ..............................3
Paragraph 2 Cotlecfion of Wages ...................................3
Paragraph 3 Contraciin~ .................................................3

TV. Apprenticeship ..................................................................4
V. Joint Conference Board ....................................................4
VT. Arbitrator's Criteria ..........................................................4
VII. Ai•bitration .........................................................................6

Paragraph 1 Annual Meeting .................................... 6
Parag~ph 2 Mace Up of JCB ....................................6
Paragraph 3 Selection of Arbitrators ..........................6
Paragaph 4 Unfilled Terms .......................................6
Paragraph 5 Substitutes at Meetings ..........................fi
Paragraph 6 Notice of Meetings .................................7
Paragraph 7 Quorum ..................................................7
Paragraph 8 Impartiality .............................................7
Paragraph 9 Initiation of a Hearing ............................7
Paragraph I 0 Presentations ..........................................8
Paragraph 11 Other Attendees .....................................8
Paragraph 12 Contacting the Arbitrator .......................8
Paragraph 13 Board of Arbitration ...............................~

VIII.
i'aragraph 1 Visiting Jobs ..........................................8
Para~rnph 2 Tools ......................................................9
Paragraph 3 Smat1 Tasks ............................................9
Parugxaph 4 Compliance of Agreements ....................9
Paragraph 5 Stipulation ...................................9
Paragraph 6 Labor Agreement Stipulation .............9
Paragraph 7 Area of Jurisdiction ..............................10
Para~r~ph 8 Decisions Final .....................................Y 0
Paragraph 9 Complaints ..........:...............................,10
Paragraph 10 Violations .............................................10
Paragraph 11 Notices .................................................71
Paragraph 12 Holidays ...............................................Y 1
Paragraph 13 Enforcement .........................................11
Paragaph 14 Question of Jurisdiction .......................] 1
paragraph 15 Tertns of Agreement ............................12

MPLA-CC-36



docu5lgn L-nvelope 1D: 5DD9C849-6998-4E39-8A30-1EG42D256425

PREA.IYZBLE

This Agreement is entered into to prevent strikes and lockouts and to facilitate peaceflil
adjustment of jurisdictional disputes in the building and construction industry and to
preve~rt waste and unnecessary avoidable delays And expense, and for the further purpose
of at aq times securing for the employez sufficient skiI[ed workers and so far as possible
to provide for labor continuous eznptoyment, such employment to be in accordance with
the ce~nditions and at the wages agreed upon, in the particular trade or craft, that stable
conditions may prevail in the construction industry, that costs may be as low as possible
consistent with fair wages and conditions and further to establish the necessary procedure
by which these ends may be accomplished.

This Standard Agreement shall be considered and shall constitute a part of all agreements
between Employers and Labor Unions, members of the Construction Employers'
Association, herein ca[1 the Association, and the Chiengo &Cook County Building &
Construction Trades Council, herein called the Council, as containing within its terms the
necessary protection of and assuring undisturbed conditions in the industry. Tn the event
ofany inconsistency between this Agreement and any collective bargaining agreement,
the terms of this Agreement shall supersede and prevail except for all work performed
under the NT Articles of Agreement, the National Stack/Chimney Agreement, the
National Cooling Tower Agreement, ail instrument calibration work and Joop checking
shall be perfornned under the terms of the UA/TBEW Joint National Agreement for
instrument and Control Systems Technicians, and the National Agreement of the
Tnternationat Union of Elevator Constructors with the exception of the content and
subject matter of Articles V, VT and VI1 of the AFL-CIO's Building &construction
Trades Department model project Labor Agreement,

MPLA-CC-37



~ocu5ign Envelope ID: SDD9C849-X998-4E38-8A30-1E642b25ti42S

v~cz,ax~,.Tzorr or rRnvcz~L~s

The Principles contained herein are fundamentals and no articles or section in this

Agreement or in the collective bargaining agreement pertaining to a specific trade or craft

shall be construed as being in conflict with these principles. In the event any conflict

exists between this Agreement and any collective bargaining agreement subject to the

Provisions of this Agreement and the dispute resolution provisions contained hereunder,

and pertaining to a specific trade or craft concerning the resolution of jurisdictional

disputes, the parties specifically agree that the terms of this Agreement are exclusive and

supersede any other provisions or procedures reIatin~ to the settlement of jurisdictional

disputes contained in such collective bargaining agreement.

I. There shall be no limitation as to the amount ofwork a worker shall perform

during the work day.
TI. There shall be no restriction on the use of machinery, tools or appliances.

1II. There shall be no restriction on the use of any raw or manufactured material,

except prison made.
IV. Nn person shalt have the right to interfere with workers during working hours.

V. The use of apprentices shall not be prohibited.

V7. The foreman shall be the agent of the employer.
VII. The worker is at liberty to work for whomever he or she sees fit but such worker

shall demand and receive the wages agreed upon in the collective bargaining

agreement covering the particulAr trade ar craft under and circumstances.
VIII. The employer is at liberty to employ anti discharge for just cause whomsoever the

employer sees fit.

M PLA-CC-38



DocuSipn Envelope ID: 5DD9C849-6998-4E39-SA30-1H642D256425

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT

ARTYCLE X

Therefore, with the preamble and Declaration of Principles as part of and fundamental to

this Agreement, the parties hereto hereby agree that there shall be no lockout by any

employer, or strikes, stoppage, or the abandonment of work either individually or

collectively, by concerted or separate action by any union without arbitration of any
jurisdictional dispute as hereinafter provided.

ARTICLE IT

The parties hereto hereby agree that in the manner herein set forth, they and the pArties

whozx~: they represent will submit to arbitration all jurisdictional disputes that may arise

between #hem and any misunderstanding as to the meaning or intent of all, or any part, of
this l~greement, and they further agree that work will go on undisturbed during such

arbitration, and that the decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties
heretr~ as provided in Article VT.

ARTICLE III

Paragraph I. Should a Union affiliated with the Council abandon its work without first
submitting any jurisdictional dispute to arbitration as provided herein, or should any
employees vahom it represents individually or collectively, or by separate or concerted

action, leave the work, the employer shall have the right to X11 the places of such workers
with workers who will agree to work for the employer, and the Clnion shall not have the
right io strike, or abandon the work, because of the employment of such workers.

Paragraph 2. The Union shall have the right to take the employees whom it represents

from the work for the purpose of collecting wages and fringe benefits due, but such
matter shall immediately be referred to arbitration. Should there be a dispute as to the
amount due, the matter shall he first referred to arbitration as herein set forth.

Paragraph 3. The parties recognize the importance of tzavinb all work performed in a
satisfactory nnanner by competent cra~smen. Because the anions affiliates! with the
Council have through apprenticeship and other training programs consistently striven to
create an adequate supply of such skilled workers, and because it is desirable that the
unions continue to do so, the Association, for itself and for each einptoyer whom it
represents agrees, to the extent permitted bylaw, that it will contract or subcontract any
work to be done at the site of the construction, alteration, painting, or repair of a building,
structure, or other work, only with or to a contractor who is a party to a collective
bargaining agreement with a union a~itiated with the Council and, accordingly, is bound
by all the terms and provisions of this Standard Agreement.

MPIA-CC-39



[~oCuSign Envelope ID: 5DD9C849-6998-4E39-8A30-1E642D256428

ARTICLE IV

The parties recognize the importance of having avAilable and furnishing at a1J times
during the life of this Agreement sufficient skilled workers, capable of performing the
woxk of their txade, and to constantly endeavor to improve the ability of such workers and
further to have in the making, through apprenticeship training, workers who can enter the
trade properly equipped to perform the work, and to the extent possible, the parties agree
to do everything within their power to cooperate in carrying out these puzposes. Joint
apprenticeship committees shall have the right to maintain schools for the training of
apprentices registered under the terms of the particular collective bargaining agreement
involved and such apprentices shall be cons'sdered skilled and qualified journeymen when
adjudged competent by a committee composed of the members of the parties to the
particular collective bargaining agreement involved. However, this article shall not be
construed to disturb present systems wherein the Labor organization which is a parry to the
particular collective bargaining agreement involved compels apprentices to atiend trade
school.

ARTICLE 'V

A Joint Conference Board is hereby created by agreement between the Association and
the Council, which shall be binding upon the members and affiliates of each, and it is
hereby agreed by the parties hereto, together with their members and affiliates, that they
will recognize the authority of said Joint Conference Board and that its decisions shall be
final and binding upon them as provided in Article VI. The administration of the Joint
Conference Board shall be executed by the Secretary of the Board. All normal operating
and all extraordinary expenses shall be home equally.

ARTICLE VY

The Joint Conference Board shall be responsible for the administaation of this
Agreement. The primary concern of the Joint Conference Board shall be the adjustment
of jurisdictional disputes by arbitrators selected by the Board. Decisions rendered by any
arbitrator under this Agreement appointed by the .point Conference Board relating to
jurisdictional disputes shall be only fox the speei~c job under consideration and shall
become effective immediately and complied with by all parties. Tn rendering a decision,
the Arbitrator shall determine:

a) 1 first whather a previous Agreement of.Record or applicable agreement, including
a disclaimer agreement, between the National or International Unions to the
dispute governs.

b) Only if the Arbitrator Ends that the dispute is not covered by an appropriate or
applicable Agreement of Record or agreement between the National or
International Unions to the dispute, he shall then consider the established trade
practice in the industry and prevailing practice in the Locality. Where there is a

M PLA-CC-40



DocuSign Envelope ID: 50D8C849-8998-4E39-8A30-1E642D256425

previous Decision of Record governing the case, the Arbitrator shall dive equal
weight to such Decision of Record, unless the prevailing practice in the Iocality in
the past ten years favors one craft. In that case, the Arbitrator shall base his

decision on the prevailing practice in the locality. ExcepC, that if the A.rbitratar

finds that a craft has improperly obtained the prevailing practice in the locality

through raiding, the undercutting of wages or by the use of vertical agreements,

the Arbitrator shall rely on the Decision of Record and established trade practice

in the industry rather than the prevailing practice in the locality.

c) In order to determine the established trade practice in the industry and prevailing

practice in the locality, the Arbitrator may rely on applicable agreements between

the Local Unions involved in the dispute, prior decisions of the Joint Conference

Board for specific jobs, decisions of the National Plan and the National Labor

Relations Board or other jurisdictional dispute decisions, along with any other

relevant evidence or testimony presented by those participating in the hearing.

d) Only if none of the above criteria is found to exist, the Arbihator shall then

considez~ that because efficiency, cost or continuity and good management are

essential to the well being of the industry, the interests of the consumer or the past

practices of the employer shall not be ignored.

Agreements of Record are those agreements between National and International Unions

that have been "attested" by the predecessor of the National Plan and approved by the

APL-CIO Building and Construction Trades Department and are contained in the Green
Book. Such Agreements of Record are binding on employers stipulated to the Plan for

the Settlement or Jurisdictional Disputes in the Construction Industry (the "National

Plan"), the National Plan's predecessor joint boards or stipulated to the Joint Confezence

Board. Agreements of Record are applicable only to the crafts signatory to such
agreements. Decisions of Record are decisions by the National Arbitration Panel or its

predecessors and recognized under the provisions of the Constitution of the A.FL-CIO

Building and Consiruetion Trades Department and the National Plan. Decisions of
Record are appiicable to alt crafts.

The .Arbitrator shall set forth the basis for his decision and shall explain his findings

regarding the applicability of the above criteria. If lower-ranked criteria are relied upon,
the Arbitrator shalE explain why the higher-ranked criteria were not deemed applicable.

The Arbitrator's decision shall only apply to the job 9n dispute. Such decisions of the
Arbitrator shall be final and binding subject only to an appeal, if such an appeal is
available under conditions determined by the Building and Construction Trades
Department of the American Federation of Labor and Congress of Industrial
Organizations under the National Plan or any successor plan for the settlement of
jurisdictional disputes.

M PLA-CC-41



DocuSign Envelope I0: 5DD9C849-6998-4E38-8A30-1E842p256425

ARTICLE VII

This is an arbitration agreement acid the intent of this agreement is that all unresolved
jurisdictional disputes must be arbitrated under the authority of the Joint Conference
Board and that the decisions, subject to the right of appeal provided in Article V7, shall be
final and binding upon the parties hereto and upon their ~liates and the members of
such affiliates, and that there shall be no abandonment of the work during such arbitration
or in violation of the arbitration decision. The Joint Conference Board shall administer

the neutral arbitration system of this agreement. Any party bound to this Agreement
through a collective bargaining agreement with any Vocal Union affiliated with the
Council shall be bound to this Agreement for ali jurisdictional disputes that may arise
between any Local Unions affiliated wifi~i the Council. Employers bound to this
Ab Bement shall require that this Agreement be a part o~all agreements with contractors
or subcontractors covering work performed by any trade or craft af~liaCed with the
Council. AIi parties to this Agreement release the Board from any liabiiiry arising from
its action oz inaction and covenant not to sue the Baard. Any damages incurred by the
Board for any breach of this covenant shall include, but are not limited to, the Board's
costs, expenses and attorneys fees incurred as a result of said legal proceedings.

Paragraph l - The annual meeting of the Joint Conference Board shall be held in June,
unless another date is agreed upon by the parties.

Paragraph 2 -The parties hereto shall designate an equal number of members who shall
serve upon the Joint Conference Board. The members of the $osrd shall annually be
certified by the AssociatSon and the Council in written communications addressed to the
Board by the President and Secretary of the respective organizations. Bach year the Joint
Conference Board shall select a Chairman from among its members: The 3oint Con-
ference Board shalt also select from among its members a Vice Chairman. The Board
shall also select a SecreCary. All members shall serve for one year or until their
successors have been selected.

Paragraph 3 - At the annual meeting, the Association and Council shat] each name at least
five and up to te►i impartial arbitrators.

Paragraph 4 - In the event the Chairman or Vice-Chairman is unable to serve by reason of
resignation, death or otherwise, a successor may be selected for the remainder of the term

by the party which made the original selection. Should a member of the Joint Conference
hoard be unable to serve, because of resignation, death or any other reason, the successor
shall he selected by the Association or Council respectively in which such member holds

membership.

Paragraph 5 -Should and member of the Board for and reason be unable to attend any
meeting of the Board, the President of his respective organization sha11 be empowered to
name a substitute for each absentee for that meeting.

M PLA-CC-42



DocuSign Envelope ID: SOID9C849-S998~4E39-BA30-1E642D25&425

ParaF;raph 6 -Meetings of the Board rraay be called at any time by the Chairman,
Secretary or three members of the Board. Seventy-two hours written notice of such
meeting must be given to each member ofthe Board.

Paragraph 7 -Twelve members of the Board, six from each of the parties, present at the
executive session, shall be a quorum for the transaction of business. The Chairman, or
Vice-Chairman, when presiding, shall not be counted for the parpose of determining a
quorum. Whenever the number of members present from each party at the executive

.session are unequal, he party with the fewer members present shall be entitled to cast a
total namber of votes equal to the number of the present members of the other parry with
the additional votes of said party being cast in accordance with the vote of the majority of
its members who are present.

Paragraph 8 - If it is brought to the attention of the Chairman that any member (other than
the Chairman) is not impartial with respect to a particular matter before the Board, the
Chairman may excuse such member from the executive session if the Chairman
concludes that such member has a conflict of interest with respect to such matter.

Paragraph 9 - Should a jurisdictional dispute arise between the parties hereto, among ox
between any members or affiliates of the parties hereto, or among or between any
members or affiliates of the parties hereto and some other body of employers or
employees, the disposition of such dispute shall be as follows:

a) The crafts involved shall meet on the jobsite or a mutually agreed location to
resolve the jurisdictional dispute.

b) If the said dispute is not settled it shall be submitted immediately in writing to the
Secretary of the Joint Conference Board. Unless agreed to in writing
(correspondence, email, etc.) by the trades involved in the dispute, the trades and
contractors shall make themselves available to meet within ~2 hours at a neutral
site with representatives ofthe Chicago &Cook County Building &Construction
Trades Council and the Construction Employers' Association to resolve this
jurisdictional issue.

c} Failure fo meetwithin seventy-two (72) hours of receiving written notice or e-
mail to the meetings contemplated in "a" or "b" above will automatically advance
the case to the next leve3 of adjudication.

d) Should this jurisdictional issue be unresolved ,the matter shall, within 72 hours
not counting. Saturday, Sunday and Holidays, hereafter, be referred to an
Arbitrator for adjudication if requested in writing by any party. The Arbitrator
shall hear the evidence and render a prompt decision within forty-eight (48 hours)
of the conclusion of the hearing based on the criteria in Article VI. The
arbitrator chosen shall be randomly selected based on availability from the list

MPLA-CC-43



DocuStgn Envelope ID: 5Dg8C849-6898-4E39-8A3o-1E6a2D256425

submitted in Article Vn Paragraph 3. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be
subject to appeal only undez the terrns of Article VI. The written dceision shall be
final artd binding upon all parties to the dispute and may be a short form decision.
The fees and costs of the arbitrator shall be divided evenly between the contesting
parties except that any party wishing a full opinion and decision beyond the short
form decision shall bear the reasonable #'ees and costs of such full opinion.

c) Should said dispute not be so zeferred by either or both of the parties, the Joint
Conference Board may, upon its own initiative, or at the request of others
interested, take up and decide such dispute, and its decision shall be final and
binding upon the parties hereto and upon their members and affiliates as provided
for in Article VI.

In either circumstance all of the parties are committed to a case unril it is finalized, even
if there is an appeal. However, in cases of jurisdictional or other disputes between a
union and another union, which is a member of the same TntemationaI Union, the matter
in dispute shall be settled in the manner set forth by their International Constitution, but
there shall be no abandonment of the work pending such settlement.

Paragraph 10 -All interested parties shall be entitled to make presentations to the
Arbitrator. Any interested party present at the bearing, whether making a presentation or
not, by such presence shall be deemed to accept the jurisdiction ofthe arbitrator and to
agree to be bound by its decision and further agrees to be bound by the Standard
Agreement, for that case only if not otherwise so boand.

Paragraph 11 -Upon approval of the Arbitrator other parties not directt~ involved in the
dispute may be invited to be present during the presentation and discussion portions of atz
arbitration hearing. Attorneys shalt not be permitted to attend or participate in any
portion of a hearing.

Paragraph I2 —At no time shall any party to a pending dispute uniJateraIly or
independently contact the Arbitrator assigned to hear the case. All inquiries must be
submitted to the Secretary of the Joint Conference Board.

Paragraph 13 -The Joint Conference Board may also serve as a board of arbitration in
other disputes, including wages, but only when requested to do so by a1J parties involved
in the particular dispute or controversy. It is not the intention of this Agreement that the
Joint Conference Saard shall take part in such disputes except by mutual consent of aII
parties involved.

A~2TTCLE VIII

1'aragi~aph 1 -The duty authorized representatives of members of affiliates of either party
hereto, if having in their possession proper credentials, shall be permitted to visit jobs

MPLA-CC-44



DocuSign Envolope ID: 5DD9C849.6998-4E38-BA30-1E8~32D256425

during working hours, to interview the contractor or the workers, but they shall in no way
interfere with the progress of the work.

Paragraph 2 -The handling of tools, machinery and appliances necessary in the
perfozmance of the work covered by a particular collective bazgaining agreement, shall be
done by j~umeymen covered by such agreement and by helpers and apprentices in that

trade, but similar tools, machinery and appliances used by other trades in the performance
of their work shall be handled in accordance with the particular collective bargaining

agreement of that trade.

Paragraph 3 - In the interest of the public economy and at the discretion of the employer
or foreman, all small tasks covered by a particular collective bargaining agreement may

be done by workers or laborers of ocher trades, if mechanics or laborers of this trade are
not o►.~ the building or job, but same are not to be of longer duration than one-half hour in

any one day. The Joint Conference Board may render a decision involving a composite

crew,

Paragraph 4 - It is fundamental to the Standard Agreement that all members and affiliates

of the parties to this Agreement be stipulated to the Standard Agreement and the Joint

Conference Board. All current members of the Chicago and Cook County Building and

Construction Trades Council, and their affiliates, by this Agreement are stipulated to the

Standard Agreement and Joint Conference Board for the term of the current Standard

Agreement. The area labor agreements of the members and affiliates of t1~e parties setting

forth language stipulating those parties to the Standard Agreement and Joint Conference

Board shall be filed with the Secretary of the Joint Conference Board annually, tzt the time

of the Joint Conference $oard appointments. Current trade or craft agreements wi11

prevail as interim agreements in the event labor negotiations are incomplete or in process

at the time of the annual meeting.

Paragraph 5 -All members and affiliates of the parties with labor agreements containing

language stipulating those parties to the Standard Agreement and Joint Conference Board

shall remain stipulated for the term of the carcent Standard Agreement. Any members or

affiliates of the parties who negotiate language stipulating the parties to the Standard

Agreement anci/or the Joint Conference Board in their area labor agreement shall remain

stipulated for the term of the current Standard Agreement. Any Association that

incorporates Standard Agreement and/or Joint Conference Board stipulation language

into their collective bargaining agreement will automatically have representation on the

Joint Conference Board.

Paragraph 6 -Only those crafts with stipulation language in their area labor agreements

will be allowed to bring jurisdictional dispute cases to the Joint Conference Board. Those
crafts without stipulation language in their area labor agreements will be allowed to
participate if a jurisdictional dispute case is brought against their craft xnd will have the
right to appeal any decision, if such nn appeal is available, as provided in Article VI of
this Agreement.

MPLA-CC-45



DocuSlgn Envelope ID: 5DD9C849-6998-4E33-SA30.1E642D256425

Paragraph 7 -This agreement applies only to work performed within Cook County,
Illinois.

Paragraph $ - As herein before provided in Article VTI, decisions or awards as to
jurisdictional claims and decisions determining whether or not said decisions or awards
have been violated rendered by the Joint Conference Board shall be final, binding and
conclusive on all the parties hereto, on all of their members and affiliates, and nn all
employers subject only to the right of appeal herein provided for in Article Vl.

Paragraph 9 - To further implement the decision of the ,point Conference Boaxd, it is
agreed that and party hereto, any of their members or affiliates, and any employer may at
any time file a 'Verified Complaint in writing with the 3oint Conference Board alleging a
violation of a decision or award previousI~ made. The Board shall thereupott set a
hearing, to be held within three days of receipt of the Verified Complaint with respecf to
the alleged violation, and shall notify all interested parties of the time and place thereof.
An Arbitrator selected pursuant to Article VTI, Paragraph 9(c) shall conduct a hearing at
the time and place specified in its notice. All parties shall be given an opportunity to
testify and to present documentary evidence relating to the subject matter of the hearing
within forty-eight (48) hours ai~er the conclusion thereof, the Arbitrator shall render a
written decision in the matter and shall state whether or not there has been a violation of
its prior decision or award. Copies of the decision shall be served, by certified mail or by
personal service, upon all parties hereto.

Para~;c~aph 10 -Should the Arbitrator determine that there has been a violation of the
Board's prior decision or award, the Arbitrator shall order immediate compliance by the
offending party oz parties. The Arbitrator may take one or more of the following courses
of action in order to enforce compliance with the Board's decision:

a) The Arbitrator may assess liquidated damages not to exceed $5,000 for each
violation by individual members of, or employees represented by the parties
hereto, and may assess liquidated damages not to exceed $ t 0,000 for each
violation by either party hereto, or any of its officers or representatives. If a one is
rendered by the Arbitrator, it should be commensurate with the seriousness of the
violation having a relationship to lost hours for the Unions and lost efficiency for
the employer. Fach of the parties hereto hereby agrees for itselF, and its members,
to pay to the other party within thirty days any sum, or sums, so assessed because
of violations of a decision or award by itself, its offtaers, or representatives, or its
member or members. Shou[d either party to this agreement, or any of its
members fail to pay the amount so assessed within thirty days of its assessment,
the party or member so failing to pay shall be deprived of all the benefits of this
agreement until such time as the matter is adjusted to the satisfaction of the
Arbitrator.

10

MPLA-CC-46



~ocuSfgn~Envelope ID: 5Dp9C649-6998-4E38-8A30.1E642D256425

b) It may order cessation of all work by the employers and the employees on the job

or project involved.

Paragraph 1 l -All Notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and sent by the

Administrator of the Joint Conference Board via facsimile or email, ~'or al! noti~catians
to affii'ra~es of the Chicago $c Cook County Building and Construction Trades Cotancil,

the Administrator may re}y up the facsimile numbers, addresses and email addresses in

the current directory of the Council. For notifications to al(contractors and

subcontractors, the Administrator may rely on corporate information on the Illinois

Secretary of State website or other appropriate databases. Original Notices of al) Joint

Conference Board decisions will be sent to each of the parties involved via certified mail.
The notice provisions shall not include Saturday, Sunday or legal holidays.

Paragraph 12 -The following days shall be recognized as legal holidays: New Years
Day, Memorial Day, Xndependence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas
Day.

Paragraph 13 -The Board shall have na authority to undertake any action to enforce its
decision after a hearing beyond informing the affected parties of its decision. Rather, it
shall be the responsibility of the prevailing party to seek appropriate enforcement of a
decision, including findings, orders or awards of the Board determining non-compliance
with a prior award ox decision. ̀ i'he prevailing party in any enforcement proceeding shall
be entitled to recover tts costs and attorneys fees from the non-prevailing party. Zn the
event the Board is made a party to, or is otherwise required to participate in any such
enforcement proceeding for whatc~+er reason, the non-prevailing party shall bear all costs,
attorneys fees, and any other expenses incurred by the Board in those proceedings.

Paragraph ] 4 - In establishing the juresdiction of the Joint Conference Board over all
parties to the dispute, the primary responsibility for the judicial determination of the
arbitrabi3ity of a dispute and the jurisdiction ofthe Joint Conference Board shall be borne
by the party requesting the Board to hear the underlying jurisdictional dispute. If all of
the parties to the dispute do not attend the arbitration hearing or otherwise agree in
writing that the parties are stipulated to the Joint Conference Board and Standard
Agreement, the affected party or parties may proceed at the joint Conference Board even
in the absence of ane or more parties to the dispate, 7n such instances, the issue of
jurisdiction is an additional item that must be determined in the first instance by the
Arbitrator who shat) set forth basis of his determination in his decision. The Joint
Conference Board may participate in any proceedings seeking a declaration or
determination that the underlying dispute is subject to the jurisdiction and process of the
Joint Conference Board. In any such proceedings, the non-prevailing party and/or the
party cha(1en~ing the jurisdiction of the Joint Conference Board shall bear all the costs,
expensas and attorneys fees incurred by the Board in establishing its jurisdiction. The
provision of Paragraph 13 regarding obtaining attorney fees shall apply.

11

MPLA-CC-47



DocuSfgn Envelope 10: 5DD9C849-6998-4E39-8A30-1E642D256425

Paragraph 15 ~ It is agreed by the parties hereto that this agreement shall remain in full

force and effect until June 1, 2020 unless otherwise amended b~ agreement of parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this document to be executed

at Chicago, Illinois this 28th day of May, 20l S.

CONSTRUCTION EMPLOYERS'
ASSOCIATION

DoeuSlpned 4y:

~,~CctY~t,S US~LLY'~ ~Y'.

BY Charles M. Usher

12

CHICAGO &COOK COUNTY
BUiI,D1TIG &CONSTRUCTION
TRADES C~UNCXL

Dxu3lpn~d 6y:

~o3w ~}i.2Q~.oaa.

BY Thomas Villanova

MPLA-CC-48



    

Contract No.  ____________________ 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 
WITH MULTI‐PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT (MPLA) 

 
I ____________________________ (name of Company) hereby acknowledge that  I have read the Metropolitan Water 

Reclamation District of Greater Chicago’s 2017 Multi Project Labor Agreement (MPLA).  I certify that my company and all 

subcontractors are in compliance with the MPLA in that my company and all subcontractors agree to be bound by and 

operate under a current collective bargaining agreement with a union or  labor organization affiliate with  the AFL‐CIO 

Building Trades Department and the Chicago and Cook County Building and Construction Trades Council , or their affiliates 

which  have  jurisdiction  over  the  work  to  be  performed  pursuant  to  this  Contract,  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  a 

“participating trade group”) for all applicable work. 

My company is currently a signatory with the following trade groups: 

(e.g. Operating Engineers 150) ____________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

If bidder is not currently signatory with a participating union or labor organization, complete one of the following: 

____ The work to be performed by my company will occur at the company’s facility and is exempt from the application 

of the MPLA.  All other work for which the MPLA is applicable will be performed by signatories to the following 

participating trade groups: ________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Identify all such participating unions or labor organizations.  Attach a separate sheet if necessary).  

 

____ I commit to comply with the MPLA by entering into a collective bargaining agreement with the following 

participating trade group(s): ______________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Identify all such participating unions or labor organizations.  Attach a separate sheet if necessary).  
 
 
_________________________________ 
Name of Company 
 
 
By:   __________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Officer 
 
Attest:  __________________________ 

Secretary 
 
Dated:  __________________________ 

                 

Revised: October 2019 

MPLA‐CC‐49 

                                                                                                                           



EXHIBIT 4 

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION ORDINANCE, REVISED APPENDIX D 

 





































































EXHIBIT 5 

VETERAN’S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE CONTRACTING POLICY, APPENDIX V 



 

V-1 

 

APPENDIX V 

 

VETERAN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE CONTRACTING POLICY REQUIREMENTS 

 

Section 1. Purpose 

 

 The purpose of the Veteran-Owned Business Enterprise Contracting Policy (“Policy”) is to 

increase contracting opportunities with the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago 

(“District”) for veteran-owned and operated small business enterprises.  

 

Section 2. Definitions 

 

(a) “Contract Goals” means the numerical percentage goals for MBE, WBE, and VBE 

participation to be applied to an eligible District contract subject to Affirmative Action 

Ordinance Revised Appendix D of the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater 

Chicago and this Appendix V for the participation of MBEs, WBEs, and VBEs based upon 

the scope of work of the contract and the availability of MBEs, WBEs, and VBEs to meet the 

goal, and the District’s progress towards meeting its annual MBE and WBE goals. 

 

(b) “Eligible Veteran” means an individual who has been a member of the armed forces of the 

United States and served for a total of at least six (6) months, or for the duration of hostilities 

regardless of the length of engagement, and  

(i) was discharged on the basis of hardship; or  

(ii) was released from active duty because of a service-connected disability; or 

(iii) was discharged under honorable conditions. 

 

Former members of the military with the following type of discharges are excluded from the 

Policy: 

(i) dishonorably discharge; or 

(ii) bad conduct discharge; or 

(iii) general discharge under other-than-honorable conditions. 

 

(c) “Good Faith Efforts” means honest, fair, and commercially reasonable actions undertaken by 

a prime contractor or consultant to meet the VBE Contract Goal, which by their scope, 

intensity, and appropriateness to the objective, can reasonably be expected to fulfill the 

Contract Goals.   

 

(d) “Local Business” means a business located within the District’s geographic market area as 

established by the 2021 Disparity Study, namely the counties of Cook , DuPage, Kane, Lake, 

McHenry, or Will, in the State of Illinois. 

 

(e) “Minority-owned Business Enterprise” or “MBE” means a local small business entity, 

including a sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, joint 

venture, or any other business or professional entity, which is at least fifty-one (51) percent 

owned by one or more socially and economically disadvantaged individuals who are members 

of one or more minority groups, or, in the case of a publicly held corporation, at least fifty-one 

(51) percent of the stock of which is owned by one or more members of one or more minority 

groups, and whose management, policies, major decisions, and daily business operations are 

controlled by one or more minority individuals. 

 



 

V-2 

 

(f) “Small Business Enterprise” or “SBE” means a small business as defined by the United 

States Small Business Administration (SBA), pursuant to the business size standard found in 

13 CFR Part 121, that is relevant to the scope of work the business seeks to perform on 

District contracts. A business is not an eligible SBE in any calendar fiscal year in which its 

gross receipts, averaged over the business’ previous five (5) fiscal years, exceed the size 

standards of 13 CFR Part 121.  

 

(g) “Veteran-owned Business Enterprise” or “VBE” means a local small business entity, 

including a sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, joint 

venture or any other business or professional entity, which is at least fifty-one (51) percent 

owned by one or more eligible veterans, or in the case of a publicly held corporation, at least 

fifty-one (51) percent of the stock which is owned by one or more eligible veterans, and 

whose control and management of the business including long-term goals for the company as 

well as day-to-day operations are controlled by one or more eligible veterans.  

 

(h) “Women-owned Business Enterprise” or “WBE” means a local small business entity which is 

at least fifty-one (51) percent owned by one or more socially and economically disadvantaged 

individuals who are women, or in the case of a publicly held corporation, fifty-one (51) 

percent of the stock of which is owned by one or more women, and whose management and 

daily business operations are controlled by one or more women. Determination of whether a 

business is at least fifty-one (51) percent owned by a woman or women will be made without 

regard to community property laws. 

 

Section 3. Certification Eligibility  

 

(a) Only a business owned, managed, and controlled by an Eligible Veteran may be certified as a 

VBE. 

 

(i) Ownership by one or more Eligible Veterans must be direct and unconditional; and   

(ii) Subsidiaries owned or controlled by one or more Eligible Veterans is not acceptable. 

 

(b) For the purposes of this policy, there is no distinction between service-disabled and non-service 

disabled veteran-owned businesses.      

 

 Section 4.  Contract Goals 

 

(a) The standard Contract Goal for VBEs is three (3) percent, unless otherwise specified in the 

language of the contract, specifically the Invitation to Bid. This goal is applicable to contracts 

awarded by the District where the total approved expenditure is in excess of one hundred 

thousand dollars ($100,000.00).  

 

(b) VBE Contract Goals are separate and distinct from the MBE and WBE Contract Goals. An 

Eligible Veteran who is also a MBE or WBE may be utilized to fulfill the MBE, WBE, and 

VBE Contract Goals, as applicable. However, the three (3) percent VBE Contract Goal must 

be fulfilled in addition to the MBE and WBE Contract Goals set forth. 

 

(c) If a MBE or WBE is utilized to accomplish the VBE Contract Goal, the VBE commitment 

amount must be entered as a separate dollar amount on all contract documents.  

 



 

V-3 

 

(d) VBE Contract Goals will only be applied to a contract when there are at least two (2) qualified 

VBE contractors or professional services consultants registered on the District’s vendor list 

that are capable of performing the anticipated subcontracting functions of the contract.  

 
Section 5.  Good Faith Efforts 

 

 A prime contractor must undertake Good Faith Efforts to ensure that qualified VBE businesses are 

utilized in the performance of the contract and provide maximum opportunities for VBE participation, 

notwithstanding the fact that the contractor may have the capability to complete the contract without the 

use of subcontractors.  

 

Section 6.  VBE Commitment Form Submission  

 

When completing a Utilization Plan for a contract bid document, a prime contractor must complete 

the VBE Commitment Form by doing the following: 

 

(a) Provide the name, contact information, and qualifications for prospective VBE businesses. 

Delineate the various anticipated categories and disciplines of services to be provided by VBE 

businesses and provide the dollar amount to be allocated to each business; and 

 

(b) Summarize commitment to comply with the VBE Contract Goal for  the project. Compliance 

documents must be submitted as detailed in the bid solicitation. The Administrator will review 

compliance documents for each bid submission to determine whether it meets the requirements 

herein; and 

 

(c) Where a prime contractor or consultant is a business owned and controlled by a VBE or where 

the prime contractor or consultant utilizes a VBE in a joint venture or as a subcontractor, a 

prime contractor or consultant may count toward the achievement of its VBE Contract Goals 

the utilization of any VBE that also satisfies the definition of a SBE.  

 
Section 7.  Effective Date 

 

 This Policy is effective as of December 31, 2022 and applies only to qualifying contracts advertised 

after the effective date. 

 

 

 
  Adopted pursuant to an Order of the Board dated November 15, 2018 

 

Revised May 1, 2023 



EXHIBIT 6 

M/WBE UTILIZATION PLAN 



REVISED DECEMBER, 2022 

 

METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT OF 

GREATER CHICAGO 
 

 

MBE/WBE UTILIZATION PLAN 
 

 

For Local and Small business entities - Definitions for terms used below can be found in 

Appendix D: MBE - Section 5(u); WBE - Section 5(ff); SBE - Section 5(z). 
 

NOTE: The Bidder shall submit with the Bid, originals or facsimile copies 

of all MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent furnished to all MBEs and 

WBEs. IF A BIDDER FAILS TO INCLUDE signed copies of the MBE/WBE 

Utilization Plan and all signed MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent 

with its bid, said bid will be deemed nonresponsive and rejected. 

 
All Bidders must sign the signature page UP-4 of the 

Utilization Plan, even if a waiver is requested. 

 
Name of Bidder:   

 

 

Contract No.:   

 

 

Affirmative Action Contact & Phone No.:   

 

 

E-Mail Address:   

 

 

Total Bid:   

 

 

MBE/WBE UTILIZATION PLAN AND ALL SIGNED MBE/WBE 

SUBCONTRACTOR’S LETTER OF INTENT MUST BE 

COMPLETED, SIGNED AND ACCOMPANY YOUR BID!!! 



 

  

 

 

 

MBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of MBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number:   Email Address:    

Address:     

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:    

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:  

Total Dollar Amount Participation:   

 

 

      The MBE/WBE Utilization Plan and the MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  

 

MBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of MBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number:   Email Address:    

Address:    

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:    

   

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:  

Total Dollar Amount Participation:    

 

 

      The MBE/WBE Utilization Plan and the MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  

 

MBE UTILIZATION 

 

 

Name of MBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number:   Email Address:    

Address:     

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:    

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:  

Total Dollar Amount Participation:   

 
 

 

      The MBE/WBE Utilization Plan and the MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  
 
 

 

 
 

 

(Attach additional sheets as needed) 

 

 

 

UP-2



 

WBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of WBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number:   Email Address:    

Address:     

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:    

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:  

Total Dollar Amount Participation:   

 

 

      The MBE/WBE Utilization Plan and the MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  

 

WBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of WBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number:   Email Address:    

Address:     

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:    

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:  

Total Dollar Amount Participation:   

 

 

      The MBE/WBE Utilization Plan and the MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  

 

WBE UTILIZATION 

 

 

Name of WBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number:   Email Address:    

Address:     

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:    

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:  

Total Dollar Amount Participation:   

 
 
 

      The MBE/WBE Utilization Plan and the MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

(Attach additional sheets as needed) 

 
 

 

UP-3



 

 

SIGNATURE SECTION 

 
On Behalf of   I/We hereby acknowledge that 

(name of company) 

I/WE have read Revised Appendix D, will comply with the provisions of Revised Appendix D, and intend to use the 

MBEs and WBEs listed above in the performance of this contract and/or have completed the Waiver Request Form. 

To the best of my knowledge, information and belief, the facts and representations contained in this Exhibit are true, 

and no material facts have been omitted. 

 

I do solemnly declare and affirm under penalties of perjury that the contents of the foregoing 

document are true and correct, and that I am authorized, on behalf of the bidder, to make this 

affidavit. 
 

 

 

Date Signature of Authorized officer 
 

 

ATTEST: 

Print name and title 
 

 

 

Secretary 
 

Phone number 

1) The Bidder is required to sign and execute this 

page, EVEN IF A WAIVER IS BEING 

REQUESTED. 
 

2) Failure to do so will result in a nonresponsive bid 

and rejection of the bid. 
 

3) If a waiver is requested, the bidder must also 

complete the following “WAIVER REQUEST 

FORM.” 
 

       The MBE/ WBE Utilization Plan and the MBE/ WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  

 

 

UP-4



 

 

WAIVER REQUEST FORM 

If a waiver is requested, the Bidder is required to sign 

and execute this page. 
 

Contract No.:   
 

Name of Bidder:   
 

Contact Person and Phone Number:   

With respect to the contract specified above, the Bidder hereby requests a 

total or partial waiver of the requirement that, pursuant to Section 15 (a)- 

(d) of the Affirmative Action Ordinance, Revised Appendix D, it files a MBE/ 

WBE Utilization Plan or achieve a particular goal for MBE/WBE participation in 

the contract. The reasons for the request are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

On Behalf of   I/We hereby acknowledge that 
(name of company) 

I/WE have read Affirmative Action Ordinance, Revised Appendix D, will comply with the provisions of Affirmative 

Action Ordinance, Revised Appendix D, and intend to use the MBEs and WBEs listed in the MBE/WBE Utilization 

Plan in the performance of this contract and have completed the Waiver Request Form. To the best of my 

knowledge, information and belief, the facts and representations contained in this Waiver Request Form are true, 

and no material facts have been omitted. 

 
I do solemnly declare and affirm under penalties of perjury that the contents of the foregoing document are true and 

correct, and that I am authorized, on behalf of the contractor, to make this affidavit. 

 
 

Date Signature of Authorized officer 

 

ATTEST: 

Print name and title 

 
 

Secretary 
 

Phone number 

NOTE TO BIDDERS 
All Waiver requests are evaluated carefully by the District. The 

evaluation is based on your firm’s documented GOOD FAITH 

EFFORTS. 

The GOOD FAITH EFFORTS MUST be 

Undertaken PRIOR to your bid submittal to the District. 

Good Faith Efforts are identified on pp. D21–D22, 

Section 15. Utilization Plan Submission (e), (i)(1)-(8). 

       The MBE/ WBE Utilization Plan and the MBE/ WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  
 

 

 

 

 

 

UP-5



 

MBE/ WBE SUBCONTRACTOR’S LETTER OF INTENT 

To: (Name of Bidder)   and the MWRDGC 

RE: Contract Name:(Insert Name)   

Contract Number: (Insert Number)   

From: (Name of MBE/WBE Firm)   MBE: Yes  N o   

WBE: Yes  N o    

 

The MBE/WBE status of the undersigned is confirmed by the attached letter of 

Certification. A certification letter must be attached hereto. 

The undersigned is prepared to provide the following described services or 

supply the following described goods in connection with the above named 

project/contract: 

 
 

 
 

If more space is needed to fully describe the MBE/WBE firms’ proposed scope 

of work and/or payment schedule, attach additional sheets. 

The above described performance is offered for the following total price: 

$     

(Written in Figures) (Written in Words) 

In the event of a discrepancy between the “Written in Words” price and the 

“Written in Figures” price, the “Written in Words” price shall govern.” 

The undersigned will enter into a formal written agreement for the above work 

with the Prime Contractor, conditioned upon the execution of a contract by 

the Prime contractor with the MWRDGC. 

 

(Signature of Owner, President or Authorized Agent of MBE/WBE) 

 

Name/Title (Print) 

Date Phone  

 

THIS SIGNED DOCUMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH THE BID. 

FAILURE TO DO SO WILL RESULT IN A NONRESPONSIVE BID AND 

REJECTION OF THE BID. 

All bidders shall submit with the Bid, copies of MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent in paper form with 

signatures, which were furnished to each MBE and WBE listed in its MBE/WBE Utilization Plan and must be 

submitted to the District with its bid as part of its bid packet with either a copy of each MBE and WBE current Letter 

of Certification from a state or local government or agency or documentation demonstrating that the MBE and WBE 

is a MBE or WBE within the meaning of this Revised Appendix D. Failure to submit the MBE/WBE 

Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent signed by each MBE and WBE subcontractor will be viewed as nonresponsive and 

the bid will be rejected. All MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent must conform to the MBE/WBE Utilization 

Plan submitted with the bid. An original or facsimile copy of MBE/WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent will be 

acceptable. 

       The MBE/ WBE Utilization Plan and the MBE/ WBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  

 

 

UP-6 



EXHIBIT 7 

VBE COMMITMENT FORM 



 

V-4 

 

VBE COMMITMENT FORM 

 

1. Name of VBE:   _______________________________________________________________________  

 Identify MBE, WBE Status:  ______  Address:   ____________________________________________  

 City, State, Zip Code:   _________________________________________________________________  

 Contact Person:  ____________________________  Telephone Number:   _______________________  

 eMail Address:  _______________________________________________________________________  

 *Dollar Amount of Participation:  $____________________  Percent of Participation:  ____________% 

 Scope of Work:  _______________________________________________________________________  

 

2. Name of VBE:   _______________________________________________________________________  

 Identify MBE, WBE Status:  ______  Address:   ____________________________________________  

 City, State Zip Code:   __________________________________________________________________  

 Contact Person:  ____________________________  Telephone Number:   _______________________  

 eMail Address:  _______________________________________________________________________  

 *Dollar Amount of Participation:  $____________________  Percent of Participation:  ____________% 

 Scope of Work:  _______________________________________________________________________  

 

3. Name of VBE:   _______________________________________________________________________  

 Identify MBE, WBE Status:  ______  Address:   ____________________________________________  

 City, State Zip Code:   __________________________________________________________________  

 Contact Person:  ____________________________  Telephone Number:   _______________________  

 eMail Address:  _______________________________________________________________________  

 *Dollar Amount of Participation:  $____________________  Percent of Participation:  ____________% 

 Scope of Work:  _______________________________________________________________________  

 

4. Name of VBE:   _______________________________________________________________________  

 Identify MBE, WBE Status:  ______  Address:   ____________________________________________  

 City, State, Zip Code:   _________________________________________________________________  

 Contact Person:  ____________________________  Telephone Number:   _______________________  

 eMail Address:  _______________________________________________________________________  

 *Dollar Amount of Participation:  $____________________  Percent of Participation:  ____________% 

 Scope of Work:  _______________________________________________________________________  

* If a MBE or WBE will be utilized to accomplish the VBE Contract Goal, then the VBE commitment amount must be entered as a separate 

dollar amount.  VBE Contract Goals are separate and distinct from the MBE and WBE Contract Goals.  

 

Attach a copy of qualifications for each VBE business. 



EXHIBIT 8 

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION STATUS REPORT



 

AFFIDAVIT - AFFIRMATIVE ACTION STATUS REPORT 

Notice: This report is required to be submitted at 25%, 50%, 75%, and 100% completion of construction.   
 

Contract Title:    

Contract Number:____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Prime Contractor’s Name:    Month    Year    

Prime’s Contact Name:    Estimated Completion Date:    

Prime’s Contact Phone #:    (         )    Status Report No.:  25%  -  50%  -  75%  -  100% 

 
(CIRCLE ONE) 

In connection with the above-captioned contract:  
 

For each MBE, WBE, and SBE subcontractor, including third tier contracts awarded by your MBE/WBE/SBE company, 

describe the work or goods or services provided in relation to this contract (indicate line items, if applicable) performed 

during the report period. 

 
MBE, WBE, and SBE Subcontractor MBE / WBE 

/ SBE 

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT AMOUNT PAID TO DATE 

    

DESCRIPTION OF 

WORK/SERVICES AND/OR 

GOODS PROVIDED. BE 

SPECIFIC. 

 

 

 
MBE, WBE, and SBE Subcontractor MBE / WBE 

/ SBE 

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT AMOUNT PAID TO DATE 

    

DESCRIPTION OF 

WORK/SERVICES AND/OR 

GOODS PROVIDED. BE 

SPECIFIC. 

 

 

 
MBE, WBE, and SBE Subcontractor MBE / WBE 

/ SBE 

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT AMOUNT PAID TO DATE 

    

DESCRIPTION OF 

WORK/SERVICES AND/OR 

GOODS PROVIDED. BE 

SPECIFIC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Page 2 of 2 

MBE, WBE, and SBE Subcontractor MBE / WBE 

/ SBE 

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT AMOUNT PAID TO DATE 

    

DESCRIPTION OF 

WORK/SERVICES AND/OR 

GOODS PROVIDED. BE 

SPECIFIC. 

 

 

 
MBE, WBE, and SBE Subcontractor MBE / WBE 

/ SBE 

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT AMOUNT PAID TO DATE 

    

DESCRIPTION OF 

WORK/SERVICES AND/OR 

GOODS PROVIDED. BE 

SPECIFIC. 

 

 

I DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE AND AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY THAT THE CONTENTS OF 

THIS DOCUMENT ARE TRUE AND CORRECT, AND THAT I AM AUTHORIZED TO MAKE THIS AFFIDAVIT.  I 

CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE NAMED FIRMS WERE AWARDED CONTRACT(S),  PERFORMED THE WORK WITH 

THEIR OWN FORCES, AMOUNTS LISTED ARE ACCURATE AND PAYMENTS WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS.  CANCELLED CHECKS AND/OR SUPPORTING INFORMATION WILL BE 

ON FILE FOR INSPECTION OR AUDIT. 

 

Name of Affiant:    

Title:  ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature:   
 (Signature of Affiant) 

 

Date:_____________________________________________________________________________________________  

State of    County (City) of    
 

This instrument was SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO before me on __________________________________________   

________________________________________ 
Signature of Notary Public 

 



EXHIBIT 9 

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN, INSPECTION LOG 

 



EXHIBIT 10 

PROJECT SITE PROPERTY INTEREST DOCUMENTS OR AFFIDAVIT 

 



Page 1 of 3 

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
OPERATION & MAINTENANCE PLAN 

FOR 
GREEN ALLEY PROJECT 

 
Inspection Schedule 
 
By December 31st of each year following final completion of the Project, the Village of Forest Park must 
prepare and submit to MWRDGC a report using the inspection form attached to this Operation & 
Maintenance (O&M) Plan detailing its annual inspection, signed by the head of the department 
responsible for maintenance duties. The report must also include clear photographs that show the 
condition of the entire Project area. For the first three years, MWRDGC and the Village of Forest Park will 
conduct joint annual inspections. Beginning in the fourth year and continuing through the required 
maintenance cycle indicated in the IGA, the Village of Forest Park will conduct solo inspections to ensure 
the work as described in this O&M Plan is being properly conducted. 
 
Permeable Pavement Systems O&M Plan  
 
The minimum Operation & Maintenance (O&M) requirements outlined in this document shall be 
incorporated into the Village of Forest Park‘s inspection and maintenance regimen and shall contain 
specific information for each Best Management Practice (BMP). Upon completion of project 
construction, the following O&M procedures shall take effect and be conducted per the terms of the IGA 
from the date that construction was completed. 

 
1. Permeable pavement systems shall be inspected annually and after a rainfall exceeding 1.5 inches. 

Any corrective actions determined in the inspection should be performed in a timely manner. 
Inspections shall follow the attached Inspection Form. 

a. Joint filler in a permeable pavement system must be kept flush with the top of brick. 
b. Remove any vegetation growth. 
c. Inspect observation wells verify that the aggregate storage reservoir is drawing down 

effectively. 
d. Inspect all drainage structures for proper operation. 
e. Repair any settlement, deformations or cracking that are significant enough to adversely 

impact the function of the overall permeable pavement system. 
2. The Owner shall keep records of all inspections and significant maintenance activities.  
3. Landscaped areas adjacent to permeable pavement systems shall be maintained to prevent soil or 

other debris from clogging the permeable pavement system. 
4. Surface cleaning of the permeable pavement shall occur at least three (3) times per year (Spring, 

Summer, and Fall) and following any rainfall exceeding 1.5 inches. 
a. If surface infiltration rates decline, or clogging is occurring, vacuum cleaning is highly 

recommended. 
5. Winter de-icing solutions such as beet juice molasses, calcium chloride and sodium chloride are 

acceptable, except on permeable concrete. Unacceptable solutions include sand, magnesium 
chloride, calcium magnesium acetate, potassium chloride, and potassium acetate.  

6. The following activities shall be prohibited from occurring on the permeable pavement surface: 
a. Temporary or permanent stockpiling of soil or other material that can potentially cause or 

contribute to clogging. 



Page 2 of 3 

b. Application of pavement seal-coating. 
c. Application of excessive load, so as to cause cracking and deformation. 
d. Application of sand for improving traction. 
e. Application of salt on permeable concrete. 
f. Applications of chemicals for weed control  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Sign-off by Director of Public Works or equivalent: 
 
I attest that I have reviewed this plan and can commit the necessary resources towards implementing it. 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Printed name Title Signature Date 

 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

Inspection Log for Permeable Pavements 
• Refer to the “Village of Forest Park’s Operation & Maintenance Plan for Green Alley Project” for detailed requirements. 
• Inspection of the permeable pavement system is required at least once per year and after significant rainfall events 

exceeding 1.5 inches 
• Fill out one form for each permeable pavement area inspected. 

Inspector: 
Date:     Time: 
Time Passed Since Last Rain Event: 

Project #:  
Project Name:  
 

Permeable/Porous Pavement Area: 
General Site Conditions: 

Inspection Items Satisfactory (S) or 
Unsatisfactory (U) 

Comments/Corrective Action, Issue 
Location 

Surface Infiltration 

No sedimentation or signs of sedimentation on permeable 
pavement and between pavers in joint aggregate material 

  

No water ponding or evidence of ponding on permeable 
pavement 

  

Verify surface infiltration via garden hose test at areas 
where sedimentation and/or ponding are suspected 

  

Pavement Condition 

No evidence of deterioration   

No cuts from utilities visible   

No evidence of improper load applied (deformation, 
settlement or cracking) 

  

No stockpiling of materials and no seal coating   

No vegetation growth between paver joints (if applicable)   

Joint material filled to “lip” of pavers (if applicable)   

      Depth between top of joint material and top edge of paver = _________ 

Controlling Run-On 

Adjacent vegetated areas show no signs of erosion and 
run-on to permeable pavement 

  

Salt/Deicing (Early Spring only) 

No evidence for the use of traction sand   

Piles of accumulated salt removed in spring   

Drainage Structure Inspection (Early Spring/Late Fall/After >1.5 inches of rainfall) 

No evidence of blockage   

Good condition, no need for cleaning/repair   

Observation wells show water has drained within 72 hours   

Signage 
Signage for no stockpiling/seal coating, etc. is present   

Educational signage is present and in good condition   

Additional Comments, Recommendations: 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  

*Use additional sheet, if necessary 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 

COUNTY OF COOK 

AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP 
 

______________________________________, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says: 
                       (Print Name of Affiant) 

1. I am the _________________________ of the Village of Forest Park (Village), and duly authorized to  
                    (Print Title)             

execute and deliver this affidavit to the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago 
(“District”) for the purpose of establishing the dedication of, or ownership over, the Project site for which 
the parties have entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”), described and referred to as:    
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 
FOREST PARK AND THE METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT 

OF GREATER CHICAGO FOR THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, AND 
MAINTENANCE OF THE GREEN ALLEY PROJECT IN FOREST PARK, ILLINOIS 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
(IGA Title) 

2. I caused a search of reasonably accessible real property records to be conducted, and that no evidence of 
dedication, perpetual easement, or ownership of the Project site was found, thus necessitating execution of 
this affidavit.   

 
3. The Village represents that the site on which the Project will be constructed (“Project site”) lies entirely 

within a dedicated public right-of-way, perpetual easement, or property owned solely by the Village and 
is located at: 

two (2) successive north-south alleys bounded by an east-west alley just south of Harrison Street to 
the north, Marengo Avenue to the east, Harvard Street to the south, and Circle Avenue to the west 

      _____________________________________________________________________________________   
                                                     (Print Street Address)*    

4. The Village represents that the most current Cook County Tax map (also known as “Sidwell map”) 
depicting the area(s) encompassing the entire Project site can be found at www.cookcountyclerk.com and 
confirms paragraph 3 above.  
 

5. The Village represents that it will maintain an exclusive and uninterrupted property interest the Project site 
as a dedicated public right-of-way, perpetual easement, or solely owned property for the duration of the 
IGA term. 

 
6. The Village will immediately advise the District in writing of changes or modifications to the information 

disclosed in this Affidavit. 
 

7. This Affidavit is made for the purpose of complying with Article 4, paragraph 1 of the IGA.   
 
 

___________________________________________   
            (Affiant) 

ATTEST:    

__________________________________________ ________________________________________________ 
                             Clerk    Date 

http://www.cookcountyclerk.com/


 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 1 of 21 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 
FOREST PARK AND THE METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT 

OF GREATER CHICAGO FOR THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, AND 
MAINTENANCE OF THE GREEN ALLEY PROJECT IN FOREST PARK, ILLINOIS 

 
THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and 

between the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago (“MWRDGC”), a unit 

of local government and corporate and body politic organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Illinois, and the Village of Forest Park (“Village”), a municipal corporation and non-home 

rule unit of government organized and existing under Article VII, Section 7 of the 1970 

Constitution of the State of Illinois. Together, the MWRDGC and the Village may be referred to 

as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, on November 17, 2004, Public Act 093-1049 amended the Metropolitan 

Water Reclamation District Act (“Act”) in various ways; and 

WHEREAS, the Act, as amended, declares that stormwater management in Cook County, 

Illinois is under the general supervision of the MWRDGC; and 

WHEREAS, Public Act 098-0652 amended the Act again on June 18, 2014 by specifically 

authorizing the MWRDGC to plan, implement, and finance activities relating to local stormwater 

management projects in Cook County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, one component of the MWRDGC’s stormwater management program 

includes green infrastructure, which is defined as the range of stormwater control measures that 

use plant/soil systems, permeable pavement, stormwater harvest and reuse, or native landscaping 

to store, infiltrate, and/or evapotranspirate stormwater and reduce flows to sewer systems or to 

surface waters as set forth at 33 U.S.C. § 1362 (27); and 

WHEREAS, the MWRDGC is committed to implementing a Green Infrastructure 

Program Plan in conformance with Appendix E, Section II (C) of the consent decree entered into 

in United States, et al., v. Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago, Case No. 

1:11-cv-08859 (N.D. Ill. 2014), and the MWRDGC’s formal commitment in this Agreement is 

intended to satisfy that obligation; and 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 2 of 21 

WHEREAS, the Village is located within the boundaries of Cook County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Division 110 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, the 

Village is empowered to construct and maintain green infrastructure and manage water, sewers, 

and stormwater within its corporate limits; and 

WHEREAS, the Village proposes constructing two (2) permeable alleys using permeable 

pavers in the following locations in Forest Park, Illinois, for the public benefit of reducing flooding 

and providing green infrastructure in the general area (“Public Benefit”): two (2) successive north-

south alleys bounded by an east-west alley just south of Harrison Street to the north, Marengo 

Avenue to the east, Harvard Street to the south, and Circle Avenue to the west; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed green infrastructure installations at the above-cited location(s) 

will further the MWRDGC’s goal of informing the public of the value of green infrastructure and 

will provide the total design retention capacity set forth in Article 2 of this Agreement, which is in 

addition to any retention capacity that the Village must comply with under local, regional, state, 

or other regulations for stormwater management; and 

WHEREAS, the Village intends to design, construct, operate, maintain, and own the 

proposed green infrastructure installations; and 

WHEREAS, the Village’s plans to construct the proposed green infrastructure 

installations may be accomplished more effectively, economically, and comprehensively with the 

Village and the MWRDGC cooperating and using their joint efforts and resources; and 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., and Section 

10 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution, allow and encourage intergovernmental cooperation; 

and 

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2023, the MWRDGC’s Board of Commissioners authorized the 

execution of an intergovernmental agreement with the Village; and 

WHEREAS, on _______________, 2023, the Mayor and Village Council of the Village 

authorized the execution of an intergovernmental agreement with the MWRDGC; and 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 3 of 21 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained 

in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the MWRDGC and the Village 

agree as follows: 

Article 1. Incorporation of Recitals  

The above recitals are incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

Article 2. Scope of Work 

1. The work contemplated by this Agreement will include design, construction, operation, and 

maintenance of permeable alleys (“Project”). These improvements are categorized by the 

MWRDGC as “green infrastructure”. 

2. The Village, at its sole cost and expense, will prepare construction drawings, specifications, 

and details (“Construction Documents”) for the Project. 

3. The Project will be constructed to maximize the design retention capacity. The green 

infrastructure components of the Project will be designed to capture a minimum of forty-seven 

thousand seven hundred (47,700) gallons of stormwater in any given rain event. 

4. The Project will realize the Public Benefit of helping to alleviate flooding by, among other 

things, routing runoff from impervious tributary areas to the green infrastructure installation 

so as to reduce flooding and ponding located within and around the Project area, as shown in 

Exhibit 1. 

5. Upon execution of this Agreement and until commencement of Project construction, the 

Village will provide monthly updates to the MWRDGC on (1) the status and progress of 

Project design and (2) the schedule for Bid Advertisement and Award for the Project. 

6. The Village will provide the MWRDGC with a copy of thirty percent (30%), sixty percent 

(60%), and ninety-eight percent (98%) complete Construction Documents for the MWRDGC’s 

approval as to the Public Benefit. The MWRDGC will review and provide written comments 

to the Village within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt. The Village will incorporate the 

MWRDGC’s review comments into the Construction Documents. At the sixty percent (60%) 

completion stage, the Village will include a report of the geotechnical investigation which must 

include the infiltration rate of the underlying soil and the depth of the seasonably high ground 

water level at the Project location. At the ninety-eight percent (98%) completion stage, the 

Village will include a detailed opinion regarding probable cost of construction and will include 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 4 of 21 

a breakdown of design, construction, construction engineering, and any other Project-related 

costs incurred or that the Village expects to incur.  

7. Upon award of any Project-related construction contracts, the Village will provide monthly 

updates to the MWRDGC as to (1) construction progress and (2) anticipated timeframes for 

submission of reimbursement requests, with the final request being submitted no later than 

sixty (60) calendar days upon final completion of the Project construction. Also, upon award, 

the Village will provide the following to the MWRDGC: (1) a copy of its bid advertisement, 

including all newspaper, on-line, or any other media utilized by the Village; (2) a summary or 

tabulation of bids received; and (3) a copy of the Village’s approval, resolution, or equivalent 

awarding the contract. 

8. After construction, the Village will provide the MWRDGC with a copy of as-built drawings 

and related Project documentation, including any addenda, change orders, stormwater-related 

shop drawings, and field changes. 

9. The MWRDGC retains the discretion to adjust the amount of its reimbursement commitment 

if, based upon the MWRDGC’s review of the final Construction Documents—including any 

addenda, change orders, shop drawings, or field changes—it determines that the Project will 

not provide sufficient design retention capacity and the intended Public Benefit. 

10. Although the MWRDGC will reimburse the Village for a portion of the Project, the Village 

bears sole responsibility for the overall cost, expense, and payment for the Project, which the 

Village will construct in accordance with the final Construction Documents.  

11. To the extent practicable, the Village, its agents, contractors, or employees may elect to use 

the MWRDGC’s biosolids in any amendments performed to the soil of the Project area, 

including but not limited to landscaping. Subject to availability, the MWRDGC will provide 

biosolids free of charge. The Village may be required to arrange and pay for the transportation 

necessary to deliver the biosolids to the Project area. 

12. The Village will publicly advertise the Project and publicly award all Project-related 

construction contracts to the lowest responsible bidder as determined by the Village. The 

Village will consider and act in general accord with the applicable standards of the 

MWRDGC’s Purchasing Act, 70 ILCS 2605/11.1-11.24 (attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 

2), when advertising and awarding the construction contracts. The Village will also require a 

payment bond and performance bond for all Project-related construction contracts in general 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 5 of 21 

accord with the applicable standards of Exhibit 2. The Village may impose more stringent 

requirements than those contained in Exhibit 2 when awarding Project-related construction 

contracts, but in no event will the Village’s requirements fall below the MWRDGC’s 

applicable general standards. Although the Village need not include Exhibit 2 as part of its bid 

documents, the Village is responsible for ensuring that these applicable minimum requirements 

are met.  

13. The Village agrees that the Project is a “Covered Project” as defined in the MWRDGC’s Multi-

Project Labor Agreement for Cook County (“MPLA”) (attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 

3). As such, the Village agrees to be obligated as the MWRDGC would be in the MPLA and 

will ensure that the standards and requirements for “Covered Projects” will be met for the 

Project, as applicable. The Village may impose more stringent requirements than those 

contained in the MPLA when awarding Project-related construction contracts, but in no event 

will the Village’s requirements fall below the standards for “Covered Projects” detailed in it. 

Although Exhibit 3 need not be included as part of the Project’s bid documents, the Village is 

responsible for ensuring that its applicable minimum requirements are met.  

14. The Village must comply with the applicable portions of the MWRDGC’s Affirmative Action 

Ordinance and Diversity Policies. Revised Appendix D governs Affirmative Action goal 

requirements for subcontracting with Minority and Women Owned Business Enterprises 

(attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 4). Appendix V governs the diversity policy 

requirements for subcontracting with Veteran-owned Business Enterprises (attached to this 

Agreement as Exhibit 5.) Collectively these goals are referred to as “participation goals”.  

15. The Village must meet the following participation goals applicable to the Project before 

construction is completed: twenty percent (20%) of the total amount of reimbursement 

provided by the MWRDGC for the Project must be applied to work performed by Minority-

owned Business Enterprises (“MBE”) and/or Women-owned Business Enterprises (“WBE”). 

16. The Village should meet the following participation goal applicable to the Project before 

construction is completed: three percent (3%) of the total amount of reimbursement provided 

by the MWRDGC for the Project should be applied to work performed by Veteran-owned 

Business Enterprises (“VBE”).  

17. The determination as to whether the Village has complied with the requirements of this 

Agreement by attaining the MWRDGC’s participation goals is solely in the MWRDGC’s 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 6 of 21 

discretion. If the Village fails to attain each goal as determined by the MWRDGC, the 

MWRDGC may withhold payments to the Village up to or equal to the dollar amount by 

which the Village failed to attain the participation goal(s). 

18. The Village will provide the MWRDGC access to inspect, with reasonable notice, any records 

or documentation related to the Village’s compliance with the MWRDGC’s participation 

goals and requirements. 

19. To evidence compliance with the MWRDGC’s participation goals, the Village must submit 

the following items to the MWRDGC’s Diversity Administrator prior to the start of 

construction: (1) a completed Utilization Plan for MBE/WBE participation, attached to this 

Agreement as Exhibit 6 and a completed VBE Commitment Form, attached to this Agreement 

as Exhibit 7 and (2) a current letter from a certifying agency that verifies as appropriate the 

MBE/WBE/VBE status of each vendor listed as a subcontractor on the MBE/WBE Utilization 

Plan and VBE Commitment Form. A certification letter will be deemed current so long as its 

expiration date is after the date of the Utilization Plan or Commitment Form. Failure to timely 

submit a Utilization Plan, Commitment Form, or certifying letter may result in a payment 

delay or denial.  

20. Together with each and every reimbursement request, the Village must submit to the 

MWRDGC the following: (1) a MBE/WBE and VBE Status Report (“Status Report”), attached 

to this Agreement as Exhibit 8; (2) full or partial lien waivers from the participating 

MBE/WBE/VBE vendors, as applicable; and (3) proof of payment to the participating 

MBE/WBE/VBE vendors (e.g., canceled checks), as applicable. Failure to submit a Status 

Report and any supporting documentation may result in a payment delay or denial.  

21. The Village will comply with the Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/0.01 et seq. Current 

prevailing wage rates for Cook County are determined by the Illinois Department of Labor and 

are available on the Illinois Department of Labor’s official website. It is the responsibility of 

the Village to obtain and comply with any revisions to the rates should they change during the 

construction phase of this Agreement. 

22. The Village, at its sole cost and expense, will provide (1) the final design of the Project; (2) 

land acquisition and remediation, if any; and (3) construction oversight and administrative 

support for the Project.  



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 7 of 21 

23. The Village will submit an Operation and Maintenance Plan (“O&M Plan”) for the 

MWRDGC’s review and approval. The O&M Plan will be included as part of this Agreement 

as Exhibit 9. At its sole cost and expense, the Village will operate and maintain the Project in 

accordance with the O&M Plan. 

24. The MWRDGC will reimburse the Village for seventy and 10/100 percent (70.1%) 

(“Maximum Reimbursement Percentage”) of the total construction cost of the Project, but in 

no event will that amount exceed four hundred ninety-four thousand and 00/100 dollars 

($494,000.00) (“Maximum Reimbursement Amount”). For purposes of this Agreement, 

“construction” will mean all work necessary to build the Project as depicted in the Construction 

Documents. The Village will be responsible for securing funding or contributing its own funds 

for all costs necessary to construct the Project in accordance with the Construction Documents. 

The Village will be solely responsible for change orders, overruns, or any other increases in 

the cost of the Project. All funding provided by the MWRDGC will be exclusively to reimburse 

the Village for construction of the Project.  

25. The MWRDGC will disburse funds to the Village in accordance with the following schedule: 

a. Twenty-five percent (25%) of the Maximum Reimbursement Amount at receipt of a 

reimbursement request for twenty-five percent (25%) completion of construction; 

b. Twenty-five percent (25%) of the Maximum Reimbursement Amount at receipt of a 

reimbursement request for fifty percent (50%) completion of construction;  

c. Twenty-five percent (25%) of the Maximum Reimbursement Amount at receipt of a 

reimbursement request for seventy-five percent (75%) completion of construction; and  

d. Subject to the Maximum Reimbursement Amount, the remaining amount necessary to 

cover the Maximum Reimbursement Percentage of the total construction cost will be 

paid upon receipt of invoices for final completion and after final inspection by the 

MWRDGC. 

The Village must submit invoices for the representative percentage of construction within 

thirty (30) calendar days of meeting its respective completion percentage, through seventy-

five percent (75%) completion, and within sixty (60) calendar days of final completion for the 

final reimbursement cost. However, all invoices must be received no later than December 31, 

2024. The MWRDGC will only pay invoices submitted in strict accordance with the foregoing 

schedule. The MWRDGC may opt not to pay any late reimbursement requests or invoices.  



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 8 of 21 

26. The MWRDGC’s Maximum Reimbursement Amount under this Agreement is based on the 

funding amount that the MWRDGC’s Board of Commissioners approved and appropriated for 

the calendar year in which this Agreement is executed. Any additional funding sought from 

the MWRDGC beyond that which was approved and appropriated for the initial calendar year 

is subject to the approval of the MWRDGC’s Board of Commissioners. 

27. The Village is responsible for all other Project costs including engineering, property 

acquisition, remediation, other design-related costs, construction inspection, and the remainder 

of the construction cost that is not reimbursed by the MWRDGC.  

28. As a condition for reimbursement, the Village must submit copies of construction invoices to 

the MWRDGC for review along with the respective reimbursement requests.  

Article 3. Permits and Fees 

1. Federal, State, and County Requirements. The Village will obtain all federal, state, county, and 

local permits required by law for the construction of the Project and will assume any costs in 

procuring said permits. Additionally, the Village will obtain all consents and approvals 

required by federal, state, and county regulations for the construction of the Project and will 

assume any costs incurred in procuring all such consents and approvals. 

2. Operation and Maintenance. The Village will obtain any and all permits necessary for the 

performance of any operations or maintenance work associated with the improvements to be 

constructed by the Village in connection with the Project, and in accordance with Article 6 of 

this Agreement. 

Article 4. Environmental Site Assessment 

1. The MWRDGC and the Village agree that an environmental site assessment may be completed 

at the Project site prior to any work being performed in accordance with this Agreement. 

2. The MWRDGC will reimburse the Village for the Maximum Reimbursement Percentage of 

the total cost of the environmental site assessment, but in no event will that amount exceed ten 

thousand dollars ($10,000.00). 

3. The Village is responsible for contracting with a company to provide the environmental site 

assessment. The Village must ensure that the company is properly licensed and insured to 

perform the necessary work. 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 9 of 21 

4. The Village must provide the invoice for the environmental site assessment within ten (10) 

calendar days of receipt for reimbursement by the MWRDGC. 

5. The funds to be provided by the MWRDGC to the Village for the environmental site 

assessment will be separate and distinct from the funds to be provided for the Project, as 

described in Article 2 Paragraph 24 of this Agreement. 

6. The Village will provide the MWRDGC with a copy of the environmental site assessment 

report within ten (10) calendar days of receipt for the MWRDGC’s review. 

7. If, after review of the environmental site assessment report, it is determined that remediation 

of the Project site is required, the Village and the MWRDGC will meet to determine if it is 

appropriate for the Project to proceed. If the MWRDGC decides to proceed with the Project, 

the Village will be responsible for all Project site remediation which must be performed 

consistent with all applicable state and federal law. If the Village is unwilling or incapable of 

remediating the Project site, and no alternative plan is feasible, this Agreement will be 

terminated by the MWRDC. 

Article 5. Property Interests 

1. If the Project site is located entirely within a right of way, perpetual easement, or on other 

property represented to be owned solely by and within the Village, prior to execution of this 

Agreement, the Village must have an enforceable property interest in the Project site and 

provide proof of that interest to the MWRDGC. If the Project site is situated entirely in a right 

of way, perpetual easement, or on other property owned solely by and within the Village, and 

no proof of dedication, perpetual easement, or ownership is available, the Village may request 

and submit the form affidavit from the MWRDGC, which must be executed by an authorized 

officer of the Village. Acceptance of the affidavit is at the MWRDGC’s discretion. Exhibit 10 

appended to this Agreement contains the executed affidavit or, in the alternative, all relevant 

documentary evidence of dedication, perpetual easement, or ownership. 

2. For all surrounding property impacting or being impacted by the Project, prior to starting 

construction of the Project, the Village will acquire any temporary or permanent easements, 

license agreements, or fee simple title necessary for access to the Project site, as well as 

construction and maintenance of the Project. Any property interests acquired by the Village 

must be consistent with the MWRDGC’s right to access the Project to conduct an inspection 

or perform maintenance as set out in Article 6 of this Agreement. 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 10 of 21 

3. Should acquisition of property interests via condemnation be necessary, the Village will incur 

all associated costs, including purchase price and easement fees, as well as any attorney’s fees. 

When necessary, the Village will be required to provide relocation assistance consistent with 

the obligations of all applicable state and federal law. 

4. If it is determined during the design and/or construction phases of the Project, as performed by 

the Village, that hazardous substances are located in, on, or under the Project site, the Village 

must notify the MWRDGC in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of this information 

becoming available. Following notification, the Village and the MWRDGC will meet to 

determine if it is appropriate for the Project to proceed. If the MWRDGC decides to proceed 

with the Project, the Village will be responsible for all Project site remediation which must be 

performed consistent with all applicable state and federal law. If the Village is unwilling or 

incapable of remediating the Project site, and no alternative plan is feasible, this Agreement 

will be terminated by the MWRDC. 

5. The Village will record all easements, licenses, or deeds acquired for the Project. 

6. The Village will own all the improvements constructed for the Project. Nothing in this 

Agreement creates an ownership or property interest for the MWRDGC in any part of the 

Project. 

7. The Village may not lease, sell, or transfer the Project site or property owned by the Village 

that is necessary for construction, maintenance, and access to the Project site, in whole or part, 

to a third-party during the term of the IGA without the MWRDGC’s prior written approval. 

The Village must provide the MWRDGC with at least sixty (60) calendar days’ written notice 

of the date on which it intends to execute a lease, sell, or transfer the property. Failure to 

comply with this Paragraph of the Agreement during the construction phase of the Project may 

result in termination by the MWRDGC pursuant to Article 9 of this Agreement and may require 

the Village to return all or a portion of the funds received from the MWRDGC, at the 

MWRDGC’s sole discretion. Alternatively, failure to comply with this Paragraph during the 

maintenance phase of the Project may result in the MWRDGC seeking full or partial repayment 

of funds provided to the Village from the MWRDGC for the Project, at the MWRDGC’s sole 

discretion.  



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 11 of 21 

Article 6. Maintenance 

1. The Village, at its sole cost and expense, will maintain the Project in accordance with the 

MWRDGC-approved O&M Plan for at least twenty-five (25) years and must ensure that the 

Project perpetually provides the intended Public Benefit or that the Village replaces the Project 

after twenty-five (25) years with improvements that provide equal or greater stormwater 

benefit to the public. 

2. The Village must conduct annual inspections to ensure adequate maintenance of the Project in 

accordance with the O&M Plan approved by the MWRDGC. The Village will prepare a report 

detailing its annual inspection, observations, and conclusions including whether the Project is 

operating as designed, functioning, and providing the intended Public Benefit. The annual 

inspection report must either be stamped by a Professional Engineer licensed by the State of 

Illinois or signed by the head of the department responsible for maintenance duties. The 

stamped or signed annual inspection report will be provided to the MWRDGC within thirty 

(30) calendar days of completion. 

3. The MWRDGC will have the right (including any necessary right of access) to conduct its own 

annual inspection of the constructed Project upon reasonable notice to the Village.  

4. In the event of failure of the Village to maintain the Project as described above to the 

satisfaction of the MWRDGC, the MWRDGC may issue a written notice by certified, 

registered, or electronic mail to the Village directing the Village to perform such maintenance. 

If maintenance has not been accomplished on or before thirty (30) calendar days after such 

notice, the MWRDGC may cause such maintenance to be performed and the Village will pay 

the MWRDGC the entire cost that the MWRDGC incurred to perform the required 

maintenance.  

5. In addition to Paragraph 4 of this Article, if the MWRDGC determines that the Village has 

failed to maintain the Project’s improvements to provide the intended Public Benefit, the 

MWRDGC may require the Village to repay some or all of the funding that the MWRDGC 

provided under this Agreement. The amount of repayment is at the sole discretion of the 

MWRDGC. However, this paragraph will not apply if, after twenty-five (25) years, the Village 

replaces the Project with improvements that are deemed by the MWRDGC to have equal or 

greater Public Benefit. 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 12 of 21 

6. In performing its obligations under this Article, the Village will comply with all access 

restrictions and notice requirements set forth in the easements, licenses, or deeds recorded 

pursuant to Article 5 of this Agreement. 

Article 7. Notification  

1. Bid Advertisement. The Village will provide the MWRDGC with thirty (30) calendar days’ 

notice prior to Bid Advertisement for the Project. 

2. Construction. The Village will provide the MWRDGC with a construction schedule and a 

minimum of seventy-two (72) hours’ notice before the following project milestones: 

• Start of work 

• Substantial completion 

• Completion of work 

Article 8. Notification to Residents (Public Outreach) 

1. The Village will permanently display signs at location(s) in the vicinity of the Project that are 

present and visible to the community setting forth the following information: “This project is 

a joint effort between the Village of Forest Park and the Metropolitan Water Reclamation 

District of Greater Chicago, designed to promote the use of green infrastructure as an effective 

means of stormwater management”. The signs will be maintained by the Village and will 

include educational information about the benefits of green infrastructure. The MWRDGC will 

provide examples of signage used for similar projects upon request. 

2. The Village will notify the MWRDGC of its intent to hold any ceremonies, public outreach, 

or educational events related to the Project (e.g. groundbreakings, ribbon cuttings, open houses, 

community fairs, etc.) at least two (2) weeks prior to the planned event date. The MWRDGC 

may provide materials or equipment to be used to assist the Village in disseminating Project-

related information at these events. 

Article 9. Termination 

1. Prior to commencement of construction of the Project, the Village may, at its option, and upon 

giving notice to the MWRDGC in the manner provided in Article 26 of this Agreement, 

terminate this Agreement as it pertains to the entire Project. The Village will return all Project-



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 13 of 21 

related funds received from the MWRDGC no later than fourteen (14) calendar days following 

its termination of this Agreement. 

2. Prior to Bid Advertisement of the Project, the MWRDGC may, at its option, and upon giving 

notice to the Village in the manner provided in Article 26 of this Agreement, terminate this 

Agreement as it pertains to the entire Project. The MWRDGC may also terminate this 

Agreement if: (a) the Village does not award construction of the Project within six (6) months 

from the date of execution of this Agreement or by October 1, 2024, whichever comes first or 

(b) the Project is not completed in accordance with the Construction Documents within one (1) 

year of the Village’s initial award of a construction contract related to the Project or by 

December 1, 2024, whichever comes first. If the MWRDGC elects to terminate this Agreement 

based upon either (a) or (b) listed above, the Village must return all funds provided by the 

MWRDGC within fourteen (14) calendar days of termination. In its sole discretion, the 

MWRDGC may approve an extension for delays outside the Village’s control and where the 

Village has made good faith efforts to advance the Project. 

3. If, pursuant to Article 4 and Article 5 of this Agreement, the Village is unwilling or incapable 

of remediating the Project site, and no alternative plan is feasible, this Agreement will be 

terminated by the MWRDC. The MWRDGC will provide thirty (30) calendar days’ written 

notice to the Village of intent to terminate. Any funds received by the Village from the 

MWRDGC must be returned within thirty (30) calendar days of such termination. 

4. If during the term of this Agreement, either Party fails to comply with any of the provisions 

contained in this Agreement, the other Party may seek to terminate this Agreement upon thirty 

(30) calendar days’ written notice. Upon receiving written notice of desire to terminate, the 

Parties will commence discussion regarding conformance with this Agreement. If a resolution 

is reached, this Agreement will proceed. If no resolution is reached, this Agreement will be 

deemed terminated. Within thirty (30) calendar days of such termination, all funds received 

from the MWRDGC will be returned, unless other arrangements are agreed upon in writing. 

5. If it is determined that the Village provided false, incorrect, or misleading information 

regarding the Project or the funding thereof, the MWRDGC may terminate this Agreement and 

require the Village to return a portion or all of the Project-related funds received from the 

MWRDGC no later than fourteen (14) calendar days following termination of this Agreement. 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 14 of 21 

The determination as to whether the Village has violated this Paragraph of the Agreement, and 

the amount of funds to be returned, is solely in the MWRDGC’s discretion.  

Article 10. Effective Date 

This Agreement becomes effective on the date that the last signature is affixed to the signature 

pages.  

Article 11. Duration 

Subject to the terms and conditions of Article 9 of this Agreement, this Agreement will remain in 

full force and effect for perpetuity.  

Article 12. Non-Assignment 

Neither Party may assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written 

consent of the other Party. 

Article 13. Waiver of Personal Liability 

No official, employee, or agent of either Party to this Agreement will be charged personally by the 

other Party with any liability or expenses of defense incurred as a result of the exercise of any 

rights, privileges, or authority granted in this Agreement, nor will he or she be held personally 

liable under any term, provision, or paragraph of this Agreement, or because of a Party’s execution 

or attempted execution of this Agreement, or because of any breach of this Agreement. 

Article 14. Indemnification 

The Village will defend, indemnify, and release from liability the MWRDGC, its Commissioners, 

officers, employees, and other agents (“MWRDGC Parties”) from liabilities of every kind, 

including losses, damages and reasonable costs, payments and expenses (such as, but not limited 

to, court costs and reasonable attorney fees and disbursements), claims, demands, actions, suits, 

proceedings, judgments, or settlements, any or all of which are asserted by any individual, private 

entity, or public entity against the MWRDGC Parties and arise out of or are in any way related to: 

(1) design, construction, operation, or maintenance of the Project that is the subject of this 

Agreement or (2) the exercise of any right, privilege, or authority granted to the Village under this 

Agreement. 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 15 of 21 

Article 15. Representations of the Village 

The Village covenants, represents, and warrants as follows: 

1. The Village has full authority to execute, deliver, and perform or cause to be performed this 

Agreement; and 

2. The individuals signing this Agreement and all other documents executed on behalf of the 

Village are duly authorized to sign on behalf of and to bind the Village; and 

3. The execution and delivery of this Agreement, consummation of the transactions provided for 

in this Agreement, and the fulfillment of the terms will not result in any breach of any of the 

terms or provisions of or constitute a default under any agreement of the Village or any 

instrument to which the Village is bound or any judgment, decree, or order of any court, 

governmental body, or any applicable law, rule, or regulation; and 

4. The funds allocated by the Village for this Project are separate from and in addition to the 

funds that the MWRDGC will provide under this Agreement.  

Article 16. Representations of the MWRDGC  

The MWRDGC covenants, represents, and warrants as follows: 

1. The MWRDGC has full authority to execute, deliver, and perform or cause to be performed 

this Agreement; and 

2. The individuals signing this Agreement and all other documents executed on behalf of the 

MWRDGC are duly authorized to sign on behalf of and to bind the MWRDGC; and 

3. The execution and delivery of this Agreement, consummation of the transactions provided for 

in this Agreement, and the fulfillment of its terms will not result in any breach of any of the 

terms or provisions of or constitute a default under any agreement of the MWRDGC or any 

instrument to which the MWRDGC is bound or any judgment, decree, or order of any court, 

governmental body, or any applicable law, rule, or regulation. 

Article 17. Disclaimers  

This Agreement is not intended, nor will it be construed, to confer any rights, privileges, or 

authority not permitted by Illinois law. Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to establish a 

contractual relationship between the MWRDGC and any party other than the Village. 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 16 of 21 

Article 18. Waivers 

Whenever a Party to this Agreement by proper authority waives the other Party’s performance in 

any respect or waives a requirement or condition to performance, the waiver so granted, whether 

express or implied, will only apply to the particular instance and will not be deemed a waiver for 

subsequent instances of the performance, requirement, or condition. No such waiver will be 

construed as a modification of this Agreement regardless of the number of times the performance, 

requirement, or condition may have been waived. 

Article 19. Severability 

If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, such invalidity, 

illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other provisions of this Agreement, and this 

Agreement will be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been 

contained herein. The remaining provisions will remain in full force and will not be affected by 

the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision or by its severance. In lieu of such illegal, invalid, 

or unenforceable provision, there will be added automatically as part of this Agreement a provision 

as similar in its terms to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision as may be possible and 

be legal, valid, and enforceable. 

Article 20. Necessary Documents 

Each Party agrees to execute and deliver all further documents, and take all further action 

reasonably necessary, to effectuate the purpose of this Agreement. Upon the completion of the 

Project, the Village will provide the MWRDGC with a full-sized copy of “As-Built” drawings for 

the Project. The drawings will be affixed with the “As-Built” printed mark and must be signed by 

both the Village resident engineer and the contractor.  

Article 21. Compliance with Applicable Laws and Deemed Inclusion of Same  

1. The Parties agree to observe and comply with all federal, state, and local laws, codes, and 

ordinances applicable to the Project. Provisions required (as of the effective date) by law, 

ordinances, rules, regulations, or executive orders to be inserted in this Agreement are deemed 

inserted in this Agreement whether or not they appear in this Agreement or, upon application 

by either Party, this Agreement will be amended to make the insertions. However, in no event 

will the failure to insert such provisions before or after this Agreement is signed prevent its 

enforcement.  



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 17 of 21 

2. The Parties to this Agreement will comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 

rules, and regulations in carrying out the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the 

Equal Opportunity clause set forth in Appendix A to the Illinois Department of Human Rights’ 

regulations, which is incorporated by reference in its entirety as though fully set forth in this 

Agreement. 

3. The Village agrees that it will ensure that all contractors and subcontractors that perform work 

on the Project are properly registered to transact business with the Illinois Secretary of State, 

are properly licensed for the work to be performed, and are properly insured at all times while 

performing work under this Agreement. 

Article 22. Entire Agreement  

This Agreement, and any exhibits or riders attached hereto, constitute the entire agreement 

between the Parties. No other warranties, inducements, considerations, promises, or interpretations 

may be implied that are not expressly set forth in this Agreement. 

Article 23. Amendments  

This Agreement will not be amended unless it is done so in writing and signed by the authorized 

representatives of both Parties. 

Article 24. References to Documents  

All references in this Agreement to any exhibit or document will be deemed to include all 

supplements and authorized amendments to any such exhibits or documents to which both Parties 

hereto are privy. 

Article 25. Judicial and Administrative Remedies 

1. The Parties agree that this Agreement and any subsequent amendments will be governed by, 

and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of Illinois in all respects, 

including matters of construction, validity, and performance. The Parties further agree that the 

proper venue to resolve any dispute which may arise out of this Agreement is the appropriate 

court of competent jurisdiction located in Cook County, Illinois. 

2. The rights and remedies of the MWRDGC or the Village will be cumulative, and election by 

the MWRDGC or the Village of any single remedy will not constitute a waiver of any other 

remedy that such Party may pursue under this Agreement. 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 18 of 21 

Article 26. Notices 

1. Unless otherwise stated in this Agreement, all notices given in connection with this Agreement 

will be deemed adequately given only if in writing and addressed to the Party for whom such 

notices are intended at the addresses set forth in Article 27 of this Agreement. All notices will 

be sent by personal delivery, overnight messenger service, first class registered or certified 

mail with postage prepaid and return receipt requested, or by electronic mail. A written notice 

will be deemed to have been given to the recipient Party on the earlier of (a) the date it is hand-

delivered to the address required by this Agreement; (b) with respect to notices sent by 

overnight courier service, on the next business day following deposit with the overnight 

courier; (c) with respect to notices sent by mail, two (2) calendar days (excluding Sundays and 

federal holidays) following the date it is properly addressed and placed in the U.S. Mail, with 

proper postage prepaid; or (d) with respect to notices sent by electronic mail, on the date of 

notification of delivery receipt, if delivery was during normal business hours of the recipient, 

or on the next business day, if delivery was outside normal business hours of the recipient. In 

the heading of all notices, the Parties must identify the Project by stating as follows: “IGA 

between Village of Forest Park and the MWRDGC for the Green Alley Project in Forest Park”. 

2. The Parties must address all notices referred to in this Agreement, or that either Party desires 

to give to the other, as set forth in Article 27 of this Agreement, as applicable, unless otherwise 

specified and agreed to by the Parties. 

Article 27. Representatives  

1. Immediately upon execution of this Agreement, the following individuals will represent the 

Parties as primary contacts and must receive notice in all matters under this Agreement. 

For the MWRDGC: For the Village: 
Director of Engineering Village Administrator 
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of 
Greater Chicago 

Village of Forest Park 

100 East Erie Street 517 Des Plaines Avenue 
Chicago, Illinois 60611 Forest Park, Illinois 60130 
Phone: (312) 751-7905 Phone: 708-615-6201 
Email: oconnorc@mwrd.org Email: rentler@forestpark.net 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 19 of 21 

 
 

2. Each Party agrees to promptly notify the other Party of any change in its designated 

representative, and provide the new representative’s name, address, telephone number, and 

electronic mail address.  

Article 28. Interpretation and Execution  

1. The Parties agree that this Agreement will not be construed against a Party by reason of who 

prepared it. 

2. Each Party agrees to provide a certified copy of the ordinance, bylaw, or other authority 

demonstrating that the person(s) signing this Agreement is/are authorized to do so and that this 

Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Party. 

3. The Parties will execute this Agreement in quadruplicate with original signatures, unless the 

Parties otherwise agree to execute electronically. 

Article 29. Exhibits and Attachments  

The following Exhibits are attached and incorporated into this Agreement, with amended versions 

attached, as applicable: 

Exhibit 1:  Project Vicinity Map and Project Conceptual Drawing 

Exhibit 2:  MWRDGC’s Purchasing Act, 70 ILCS 2605/11.1-11.24 

Exhibit 3:  MWRDGC’s Multi-Project Labor Agreement (Cook County) with Certificate 

of Compliance (effective date of October 6, 2017) (“MPLA”) 

Exhibit 4: Affirmative Action Ordinance, Revised Appendix D 

Exhibit 5: Veteran’s Business Enterprise Contracting Policy, Appendix V 

Exhibit 6: MBE/WBE Utilization Plan 

Exhibit 7: VBE Commitment Form 

Exhibit 8: Affirmative Action Status Report 

Exhibit 9: Operation and Maintenance Plan, Inspection Log  

Exhibit 10: Project site property interest documents or Affidavit 



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 20 of 21 

The Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago and Village of Forest 

Park have executed this Agreement, by their authorized officers, duly attested and their seals 

affixed, as of the date of the last signature affixed hereto. 

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
 

By: _________________________________ 
                                                                                                         Rory Hoskins, Mayor 

 
Date:   
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
  
     Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk  
 
Date:   



 

23-IGA-17; SRD1156795.2 Page 21 of 21 

METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT OF GREATER CHICAGO 

 

   
Chairman of the Committee on Finance Date 

   
Executive Director Date 

ATTEST: 

   
Clerk Date 

APPROVED AS TO ENGINEERING AND TECHNICAL MATTERS: 

   
Director of Engineering Date 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

   
Head Assistant Attorney Date 

   
General Counsel Date 



1177307-1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-________-23 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION  
OF A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES PROPOSAL FOR  

THE LEAD SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT #1 LOAN  
APPLICATION ASSISTANCE AND BIDDING DOCUMENTS BY AND  

BETWEEN CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD.  
AND THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK  

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park ("Village") proposes to apply for an Illinois 

Environmental Protection Agency (“IEPA”) Loan for Lead Line Replacement Project #1 

("Project"); and 

 WHEREAS, due to the nature of the Project, it is hereby determined that the professional 

services of a professional engineer are required to facilitate implementation of the Project and the 

ability and fitness of Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. ("Burke") will be integral in the 

completion of the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village has a prior, satisfactory relationship with Burke, and it is 

advisable, necessary and in the best interest of the Village to enter into a contract with Burke to 

provide professional engineering services to coordinate, implement and provide oversight for the 

Project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preambles to this Resolution are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2. It is hereby determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 

interest that the Village contract for the professional engineering services for the oversight of the 

Project. 

 Section 3. That certain "Professional Engineering Services Proposal for Construction 

Engineering for the Village Hall Parking Lot Improvements" between the Village and Burke for 

the estimated fee of Sixty-Three Thousand Six Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($63,600.00) 

("Proposal"), a copy of which is attached hereto marked as Exhibit A, for the Project is hereby 

approved. 

Section 4. The Mayor be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute and the 

Village Clerk to attest on behalf of the Village the Proposal for the Project substantially in the 



1177307-1 

form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with such changes therein as may be approved by the officials 

executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of the approval of 

such changes, if any. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 27th day 
of November, 2023. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 27th day of November, 2023. 
 
  
        
 ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this _______ day of November, 2023. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



1177307-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Professional Engineering Services Proposal for  
Lead Service Line Replacement Project #1  

IEPA Loan Application Assistance and Bidding Documents 
 
 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 



1177307-1 

 
 
 



ion 1. The corpora 

 
RESOLUTION  NO. R-     -23 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION FOR 

NORTH CENTRAL COUNCIL OF MAYORS 
SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM (STP) FUNDS 

(Circle Avenue - From Franklin to Roosevelt) 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park 
 

as follows: 
 

Sect 

 
 

 
 

te authorities of the Village of Forest Park ("Village") hereby 

authorize and direct that an application be made to the North Central Council of Mayors for 

Surface Transportation Program funds ("STP Application") in the amount of One Million Six 

Hundred Eleven Thousand Four Hundred Fifty Six Dollars ($1,611,456.00) ("STP Funding"), to 

partially fund a total project cost Two Million One Hundred Sixty Thousand Eight Hundred 

Sixteen Dollars ($2,160, 816.00) for the following project: 

CIRCLE AVENUE FROM FRANKLIN TO ROOSEVELT 
 

The project is generally described as the improvement of Circle Avenue from 
Franklin to Roosevelt, consisting of rehabilitation and reconstruction of the 
pavement. Improvements will include grinding; patching and resurfacing or 
reconstruction and pavement markings, depending on the variable pavement 
conditions, consistent with the requirements of the intersecting roadways, with 
curb and gutter, crosswalks and ADA improvements implemented, as required, 

 
all as identified in the Village’s STP Application ("Project"). 

 
Section 2. The Mayor and Village Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and attest, 

respectively, the STP Application and the various subsidiary forms contained therein, to make all 

required submissions and to take all steps necessary in connection with said STP Application for 

the requested STP Funding for the Project, a copy of which STP Application is on file with the 

Village Clerk. 

 
 
 
 



Section 3.   Upon award of the STP Funding, and electing to proceed, the Village  will 

be required to appropriate the expenditure of the Village's matching funds, equal to 

approximately Five Hundred Forty Nine Thousand Three Hundred Sixty Dollars ($549,360.00). 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 27th 

day of November, 2023. 

AYES: ___________________ 
 
NAYS: ___________________ 
 
ABSENT: _________________ 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

 

 
North Central Council of Mayors 

Call for Projects 2024 
October 25, 2023 – December 20, 2023 

Supplemental Project Application 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

 

Introduction 
On September 25, 2019, the North Central Council of Mayors approved and adopted a new methodology that 
would be used to select projects for the Council’s STP-L allocation in the 2020 Call for Projects (CFP).  This new 
methodology can be found on the West Central Municipal Conference Website. Further, a methodology 
update was performed by staff in December 2021 and further updated in 2023.  This methodology, also found 
on the West Central Municipal Conference Website will be used to select projects for the Council’s STP-L 
allocation in the 2024 CFP.  
 
Please make sure to read this entire document, the eTIP manual, and the Methodology prior to contacting the 
Planning Liaison.  Also be advised that failure to submit both the application and eTIP information will result in 
the project not being considered for funding. 
 
Applications for the current CFP requires two distinct steps.  First, the sponsor agency must fill out the 
pertinent information on CMAP’s TIP Portal under the North Central CFP.  Instructions for this are located later 
in a separate document also found on the WCMC website.  Consultants must notify kdobbs@cmap.illinois.gov 
which council they will be submitting applications for prior to establishing user credentials.  Secondly, the 
sponsor agency must fill in the information in this supplemental project application, which will be uploaded to 
the CMAP TIP site in MS Word format. ONLY submit the Supplemental Project Application portion of this 
document to the eTIP. 
 
Questions should be directed to the Planning Liaison, Leonard B. Cannata, 708-453-9100, 
Lcannata@westcook.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:kdobbs@cmap.illinois.gov
mailto:Lcannata@westcook.org


3 

 

 
 
 
 

STP-L 2024 Call for Projects Timeline 
October 25, 2023 – Call for projects open 
December 20, 2023 – Call for projects closes 
On or about February 1, 2024 -Staff releases recommended program 
February 1, 2024 – February 28, 2024 – Recommended program public comment period 
April 2024 – Final program presented for adoption by the North Central Council 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 

 

Application Check List 
 
⃝ Complete all fields in eTIP 
 
⃝ Map the project in eTIP 
 
⃝ Fill in necessary Project IDs in eTIP if from previous project 
 
⃝ Upload Supplemental Application in MS WORD format in eTIP and supporting documentation, Cost 
Estimate, Resolution Authorizing STP Grant 
 
⃝ Submit application by “Saving as Final” before December 20, 2023 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 

 

 
 

Supplemental Application 
 
This information will be used to score individual projects.  More details can be found within the Council 
methodology.  Please indicate point totals that will be awarded for phases of a project in the Total Points 
section of each section.  This is a means of self-scoring to give local sponsors an idea of where their project 
may rank.  Staff will make any necessary corrections.   
 
Project Information 
 
Sponsor Agency:   Village of Forest Park 
Sponsor Agency Mayor:  Mayor Rory E. Hoskins 
Sponsor Agency Mayor’s Email: mayorhoskins@forestpark.net  
 
Sponsor Agency Project Manager (Not Consultant): Rachell Entler 
Sponsor Agency Project Manager Email:  Rentler@forestpark.net  
 
Consultant Name:   James Amelio 
Consultant Email:   jamelio@cbbel.com 
 
Project Previous TIP Number:  04-22-0006 
Project CFP Number (found in eTIP submission): 
 
Desired Year for Project:  2029 
 
If project phase previously funded, please indicate the reason for delay.  These projects will be considered for 
funding after all new eligible projects with any remaining funds: 
 
Any Other Notes about project: 
 

1. Project Readiness (15 Max Points)– Please mark the pertinent box or boxes with the letter X indicating 
which phase of engineering has been completed.  Please also upload documentation verifying this 
information in eTIP. 
 

Mark Project Readiness Points 

 Phase II substantially complete/ready to submit to 
IDOT 

12.5 

 Phase II engineering contract executed 10 

 Phase I engineering Report completed 10 

 Phase I engineering report (PDR) draft submitted to 
IDOT 

7.5 

X ROW clear or not needed 2.5 

 TOTAL Points 2.5 
 

 

mailto:mayorhoskins@forestpark.net
mailto:Rentler@forestpark.net


6 

 

2. Multiple Jurisdiction participation (10 Max Points)–  please indicate which additional entities will 
participate in the project.  Please upload documentation such as an IGA or letter of intent from the 
additional entities stating that they are contributing at least 2.5% of the total phase cost in dollars.  
Hard financial commitments only.  Staff time will not be eligible. 
 

Entity Name Points 

 2.5 

 2.5 

 2.5 

 2.5 

TOTAL Points  
 

 
3. Traffic Volumes – ADT (10 Max Points) – Please consult the methodology for more information.  If the 

entire roadway is the same ADT in excess of 7,500, then please indicate 10 in the Total points section. 
If there are various segments with different ADT’s, then please perform the calculation. 
 

Roadway Segment ADT Multiplier Divided By % of Project Points 

Circle Avenue 4750 10 7500 100 6.33 

  10 7500   

  10 7500   

  10 7500   

Total Points     6.33 

 
4. Other Fund Sources (5 Max Points)– If the project has other fund sources, excluding local funds, please 

indicate the fund source and award the project 5 points. Please upload documentation such as a 
program award letter indicating the fund source and amount. 
 

Other Fund Source Points 

  

Total Points  

 
5. Safety (10 Max Points)– Please see methodology for more information.  Please provide a narrative 

regarding safety improvements on the project as well as proof indicating the scoring of the roadway 
according to IDOT. Please then mark which safety classification the roadway falls under and award 
points according to the methodology. 

 

Mark Safety Classification  

 Critical  

 High  

 Medium  

 Low  

x Minimal 2 

 New Alignment  

 Total Points  

 



7 

 

6. Pavement Condition Rating (25 Max Points)– Please consult the below website to indicate the roadway 
condition.  Please also upload proof of this roadway condition.  If there are multiple segments with 
different ratings, then the length weighted average will be used.  

 
https://lakecountyil.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9e0e25a18680427085a6c2efdad32
bf5 
 

Mark Pavement Condition  

X  Poor (0-45) 33% x25 8.25 

X Fair (46-60) 67% x 20 13.4 

 Satisfactory (61-75)  

 Excellent (76-100)  

   

 New Alignment  

 Total Points 21.65 

 
7. Planning Factor (5 Max Points)– Inclusive Growth – Please provide documentation regarding the 

minority population within the sponsor municipality. 

Mark Population Points 

x Greater than 50% 5 

 40-49.99%  

 30-39.99%  

 20-29.99%  

 Total Points 5 

 
8. Planning Factor (5 Max Points)– Green Infrastructure – Please provide documentation of Green 

Infrastructure components within the project or the community’s green infrastructure plan. 
 
Components or Plan (List Components)   Points 5 

• Green Streets Policy     5 Points 
 
 

9. Planning Factor (5 Max Points) – Freight Movement – Please provide documentation indicating freight 
movement as well. 

 

Roadway Segment Freight Classifier Point Multiplier Points 

    

    

    

    

  Total Points  

 
 
 
 

https://lakecountyil.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9e0e25a18680427085a6c2efdad32bf5
https://lakecountyil.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9e0e25a18680427085a6c2efdad32bf5


8 

 

10. Planning Factor (5 Max Points) – Complete Streets – Please indicate and upload proof of a complete 
streets policy or complete streets components within the project. 

 
Components or Plan (List Components)   Points 5 

• Complete Streets Policy    5 Points 
 

11. Planning Factor (5 Max Points) – Transit Supportive Density – Please provide prove of zoning within 
one quarter mile of the project area.  Please indicate the highest density according to an approved 
zoning map showing either the max height of non-residential buildings or the number of possible 
dwelling units per acre.  The highest density will be used to determine points allocation.  

 
 

Level of Density Points 

R-3 320 Circle St 5 

  

Total  Points 5 

 
 
 











V I L L A G E  O F  F O R E S T  PA R K  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 29

Zoning 
District

MAXIMUM 
BUILDING 
HEIGHT

LOT SIZE 
(sq. ft.)

LOT 
WIDTH

LOT 
DEPTH

SETBACKS MAXIMUM 
LOT 

COVERAGEFRONT SIDE REAR

R-1 Low 
Residential District

2.5 stories 
or 35’ 6,250 50’ 125’ 20’ or 15% of lot area 3’ or 10% of 

lot area
25’ or 20% 
of lot area 40%

R-2 Medium 
Density Residential 

District

2.5 stories 
or 35’

5,000 
single family;

3,000 two-family; 
2,000 row or 

townhome

40’ single and 
two family; 

18’ row or 
townhome

120’ 20’ or 15% of lot area 3’ or 10% of 
lot area

25’ or 20% 
of lot area 45%

R-3 High Density 
Residential District

5 stories 
or 60’

6,250;

2,500 per family 
two-family dwelling 
& multiple dwelling 
unit type specific 

requirements; 2,000 
row or townhome

50’ 125’ 20’ or 15% 
of lot area Same as R-1 Same as R-1 40%

B-1 Neighborhood 
Shopping District

5 stories 
or 60’

If living facilities
1,250 per family n/a n/a 20’/non-required if 

for business purpose

5’ unless 
buildable 
width less 
than 25’

25’ or 20% 80%

B-2 Community 
Shopping District

7 stories 
or 75’ n/a n/a n/a 20’/non-required if 

for business purpose n/a n/a n/a

DBD Downtown 
Business District

4 stories 
or 50’ n/a n/a n/a Same as adjoining 

structure or property none 25’ or 20% none

I-1 Light Industrial 
District

6 stories 
or 75’ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

I-2 Industrial 
District

6 stories 
or 75’ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

The following table summarizes the zoning bulk requirements:



Village of Forest Park

STP Project

Circle Ave.  (Franklin St - Roosevelt Rd) 

Engineers Opinion of Probable Cost

CIRCLE AVE

SP ITEM NO. ITEM UNITS QUANTITY  Unit Price  Item Price 

20101100 TREE TRUNK PROTECTION EACH 25  $               200.00 5,000.00$            

20101200 TREE ROOT PRUNING EACH 200  $               125.00 25,000.00$          

20800150 TRENCH BACKFILL CU YD 200  $                 45.00 9,000.00$            

21101615 TOPSOIL FURNISH AND PLACE,  4" SQ YD 850  $                 10.00 8,500.00$            

25200110 SODDING, SALT TOLERANT SQ YD 850  $                 12.00 10,200.00$          

25200200 SUPPLEMENTAL WATERING UNIT 30  $                 50.00 1,500.00$            

28000510 INLET FILTERS EACH 100 150.00$               15,000.00$          

40600290 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL (TACK COAT) POUND 32500  $                    1.00 32,500.00$          

40600825 POLYMERIZED LEVELING BINDER (MACHINE METHOD), N50 TON 1440  $               115.00 165,600.00$       

40603335 HOT-MIX ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE, MIX "D", N50 TON 2870  $               110.00 315,700.00$       

42300200 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT,  6 INCH SQ YD 420  $                 75.00 31,500.00$          

42300400 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT,  8 INCH SQ YD 340  $                 90.00 30,600.00$          

42400200 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5 INCH SQ FT 15000  $                 10.00 150,000.00$       

42400800 DETECTABLE WARNINGS SQ FT 525  $                 50.00 26,250.00$          

44000158 HOT-MIX ASPHALT SURFACE REMOVAL,  2 1/4" SQ YD 32500  $                    5.50 178,750.00$       

44000200 DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT REMOVAL SQ YD 100  $                 20.00 2,000.00$            

44000600 SIDEWALK REMOVAL SQ FT 15000  $                    2.00 30,000.00$          

550B0050 STORM SEWERS, CLASS B (PVC), TYPE 1  12" FOOT 200  $               110.00 22,000.00$          

55100300 STORM SEWER REMOVAL   8" FOOT 300  $                 18.00 5,400.00$            

55100500 STORM SEWER REMOVAL  12" FOOT 150  $                 20.00 3,000.00$            

56300100 ADJUSTING SANITARY SEWERS, 8-INCH DIAMETER OR LESS FOOT 400  $                 30.00 12,000.00$          

60200105 CATCH BASINS, TYPE A, 4'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID EACH 6  $            6,000.00 36,000.00$          

60206905 CATCH BASINS, TYPE C, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID EACH 6  $            4,500.00 27,000.00$          

60234200 INLET TYPE A, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID EACH 12  $            4,500.00 54,000.00$          

60406000 FRAMES AND LIDS, TYPE 1, OPEN LID EACH 30  $               500.00 15,000.00$          

60406100 FRAMES AND LIDS, TYPE 1, CLOSED LID EACH 50  $               500.00 25,000.00$          

78000100 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LETTERS AND SYMBOLS SQ FT 250  $                 25.00 6,250.00$            

78000400 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE  6" FOOT 650  $                    3.00 1,950.00$            

78006150 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE  12" FOOT 375  $                    5.00 1,875.00$            

78000600 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE 24" FOOT 350  $                    8.00 2,800.00$            

* X0326859 PAVEMENT IMPRINTING SQ YD 640  $               175.00 112,000.00$       

* X0326862 STRUCTURES TO BE ADJUSTED EACH 60  $               750.00 45,000.00$          

* X7010216 TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION, (SPECIAL) LSUM 1  $       100,000.00 100,000.00$       

* Z0013798 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT LSUM 1  $         15,000.00 15,000.00$          

* Z0018700 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE TO BE REMOVED EACH 12  $               600.00 7,200.00$            

* Z0056604 STORM SEWER (WATER MAIN REQUIREMENTS) 8 INCH FOOT 125  $               125.00 15,625.00$          

* N/A PRECONSTRUCTION VIDEO (SPECIAL) LSUM 1  $            2,000.00 2,000.00$            

* N/A COMB CONC CURB AND GUTTER REM AND REP (SPECIAL) FOOT 4000  $                 45.00 180,000.00$       

* N/A CLASS D PATCHES, 6 INCH (SPECIAL) SQ YD 550 60.00$                  33,000.00$          

* N/A CLASS D PATCHES, 8 INCH (SPECIAL) SQ YD 600  $                 70.00 42,000.00$          

* N/A ITEMS ORDERD BY ENGINEER DOLLAR 30000  $                    1.00 30,000.00$          

 Total 1,831,200.00$    

Construction 1,831,200.00$    

Phase 2 Engr. 146,496.00$       

Phase 3 Engr. 183,120.00$       

Total 2,160,816.00$    

FED (80%) LOCAL (20%) TOTAL

Construction 1,464,960.00$    366,240.00$       1,831,200.00$    

Phase 2 Engr. - 100% Local -$                      146,496.00$       146,496.00$       

Phase 3 Engr. 146,496.00$       36,624.00$          183,120.00$       

Total 1,611,456.00$    549,360.00$       2,160,816.00$    

Engineer's Estimate

11/16/2023













00

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

1200

1300

1400

1500

1600

00

100

200

72
00

73
00

74
00

75
00

74
00

73
00

72
00

76
00

1700

1800

1900

2000

75
00

76
00

77
00

78
00

79
00

80
00

81
00

82
00

83
00

84
00

85
00

86
00

2000

1200

1300

1400

1500

1600

1700

1800

1900

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

79
00

80
00

81
00

82
00

83
00

84
00

78
00

77
00

300

BETSY ROSS
SCHOOL

FOREST PARK
MIDDLE SCHOOL

FIELD
STEVENSON

SCHOOL

ST.
BERNARDINE

SCHOOL

GARFIELD
SCHOOL

ST. JOHN
SCHOOL

GRANT WHITE
SCHOOL

STATION PARK

POLICE/FIRE
STATION

OAK PARK
MONTESSORI

WOODLAWN
CEMETERY

U.S. POSTAL
FACILITY

JEWISH
CEMETERIES

FOREST
PARK PLAZA

JEWISH
CEMETERIES

FOREST HOME
CEMETERY

FOREST HOME
CEMETERY

WALDHEIM
CEMETARY

CONCORDIA
CEMETERY

CONCORDIA
CEMETERY

OAK PARK
YARDS

VILLAGE HALL

D
E

S
P

L A
I N

ES
R

IV
E

R

D
E

S
P

L
A

I N
E

S
R

I V
E

R

D E S
P L A I N E S

R I V E R

UUVPD 5

UUVPD 6

UUVPD 2

UUVPD 1

UUVPD 4

UUVPD 3

UUVPD 7

1S
T 

AV
E

JACKSON BLVD

DE
S

PL
AI

NE
S

AV
E

DE
S 

PL
AIN

ES
 AV

E

DE
S 

PL
AIN

ES
 A

VE

HARRISON ST

RANDOLPH ST

W LEGION ST

HA
NN

AH
A V

E

WASHINGTON ST

WARREN ST

EL
GI

N 
AV

E

S 
HA

RL
EM

 A
VE

BU
RK

HA
RD

T 
CT

S
GR

EE
NW

OO
D

AV
E

ROCKFORD CT

IL171

S
1S

T
AV

E
S 

1S
T 

AV
E

W MADISON ST W MADISON ST

W ROOSEVELT RD W ROOSEVELT RD W ROOSEVELT RD

DIXON ST

RO
CK

FO
RD

 A
VE

TR
OO

ST
 A

VE

EL
GI

N 
AV

E

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
E

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
E

14TH ST

15TH ST

S 
HA

RL
EM

 A
VE

S 
HA

RL
EM

 A
VE

BR
OW

N 
AV

E

CI
RC

LE
 A

VE
CI

RC
LE

 A
VE

CI
RC

LE
 A

VE

16TH ST

GREENBURG RD

LINCOLN CT

ADAMS ST

LEHMER ST

FR
AN

KL
IN

 A
VE

HARVARD ST

LA
TH

RO
P 

AV
E

LEXINGTON ST

FILLMORE ST

13TH ST

E WILCOX ST

S 
OR

CH
AR

D 
AV

E

AS
HL

AN
D 

AV
E

LA
TH

RO
P 

AV
E

HA
NN

AH
 A

VE

TH
OM

AS
 A

VE

BE
LO

IT 
AV

E

CERMAK RD

FE
RD

IN
AN

D 
AV

E

PA
RK

 A
VE

WILCOX ST

MONROE ST

FRANKLIN ST

HA
RL

EM
 A

VE

EL
GI

N 
AV

E

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
E

DU
NL

OP
 A

VE

MAYBROOK DR

CIRCLE AVE

WASHINGTON ST
BROWN AVE

BE
LO

IT 
AV

E

BERGMAN CT

VINE ST

POLK ST

YORK ST

YUBA ST

TAYLOR ST

HA
NN

AH
 A

VE

DE
S

PL
AIN

ES
AV

E

FE
RD

IN
AN

D 
AV

E

MAY
BR

OO
KDR

1ST AVE

W 
VA

N 
BU

RE
N 

ST

1S
T

A V
E

BE
LV

ID
ER

E 
AV

E

LA
TH

RO
P 

AV
E

TH
OM

AS
 A

VE

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
E

EL
GI

N 
AV

E

FO
RE

ST
 A

VE

TH
AT

CH
ER

 A
VE

GA
LE

 A
VE

KE
YS

TO
NE

 A
VE

GR
OV

E 
LN

W INDUSTRIAL DR

EISENHOWER EXPY

EISENHOWER EXPY

EISENHOWER EXPY

Document Path: U:\GIS_Mapping\FORESTPARK\Zoning Map\Zoning Map 2023.mxd

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARKOFFICIAL ZONING MAP
VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023

F500 0 500 1,000

Feet

INDEX OF PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS
1. MADISON COMMONS O-49-03, O-50-03
2. THE RESIDENCES AT THE GROVE O-01-05, O-02-05
3. LIFETIME STORAGE O-38-13
4. FARMINGTON O-35-15
5. DOLLAR TREE O-16-16
6. VAN BUREN TOWNHOMES O -20-17
7. 7329 W. HARRISON O-10-17

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

R-1 LOW DENSITY

R-2 MEDIUM DENSITY

R-3 HIGH DENSITY

B-1 NEIGHBORHOOD SHOPPING

B-2 COMMUNITY SHOPPING

DBD DOWNTOWN BUSINESS

L E G E N D

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESS
OVERLAY DISTRICT

VILLAGE LIMITS

VANESSA MORITZ
VILLAGE CLERK

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, ILL.

NOTE: MAP REFLECTS ALL ACTIVITY UP TO
DECEMBER 31, 2021 MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY

CHANGES, ZONING CHANGES, SUBDIVISIONS,
ETC., THAT HAVE BEEN APPROVED AFTER THIS

DATE ARE NOT REFLECTED.

NOTE: PARCEL BOUNDARIES BASED ON COOK COUNTY ACESSORS DATABASE CREATED DEC. 20, 2019.

I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

I-2 INDUSTRIAL



UNIFORM APPLICATION FOR STATE GRANT ASSISTANCE

Agency Completed Section

4. Name of the Awarding State Agency:

1. Type of Submission: Pre-application Application Change/Corrected Application

New Continuation (i.e. multiple year grant) Revision (modification to initial application)2. Type of Application:

Date Received by State: Time Received by State:

3. Completed by State Agency upon Receipt of Application

5. Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA) Number:

6. CSFA Title:

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)

Not Applicable

7. CFDA Number:

8. CFDA Title:

10. CFDA Title:

9. CFDA Number:

Funding Opportunity Information

13. Funding Opportunity Program Field:

12. Funding Opportunity Title:

11. Funding Opportunity Number:

Funding Opportunity Information

15. Competition Identification Title:

14. Competition Identification Number:

Not Applicable

1

Illinois Department of Transportation

Local STP (STU and STR)



UNIFORM APPLICATION FOR STATE GRANT ASSISTANCE

Applicant Completed Section

Applicant Information

16. Legal Name (Name used for Data Universal Number System (DUNS) registration and grantee pre-qualification):

17. Common Name (Doing Business As-DBA):

18. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN, TIN):

19, Organizational Data Universal Number System (DUNS) Number:

20. Federal System for Award Management Commercial And Government Entity Code (SAM Cage Code):
21. Business Address:

Street:

City: State: County: Zip+4:

Applicant's Organization Unit

22. Department Name:

23. Division Name:

Applicant's Name and Contact Information for Person to be Contacted for Program Matters involving this Application

24. First Name: 25. Last Name: 26. Suffix:

27. Title:

28: Organizational Affiliation:

29: Telephone Number: 30. Fax Number:

31. E-mail Address:

Applicant's Name and Contact Information for Person to be Contacted for Business/Administrative Office 
Matters involving this Application

32. First Name: 33. Last Name: 34. Suffix:

35. Title:

36: Organizational Affiliation:

37: Telephone Number: 38. Fax Number:

39. E-mail Address:

Areas Affected

2

40. Areas Affected by the Project (cities, counties, state-wide):

41. Legislative and Congressional Districts of Applicant:

42. Legislative and Congressional Districts of Program/Project:

Village of Forest Park

Village of Forest Park

36-6005875

076891365

4KZD4

517 Des Plaines Avenue

Forest Park IL Cook 60130

Public Works

Streets

James Amelio

Village Engineer

Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd.

(847) 823-0500

jamelio@cbbel.com

Rachell Entler

Interim Village Administrator

Village of Forest Park

(708) 615-6201

Rentler@forestpark.net

Village of Forest Park

District 7

District 7



UNIFORM APPLICATION FOR STATE GRANT ASSISTANCE

Applicant's Project

43. Description Title of Applicant's Project (Text only for the Title of the Applicant's Project):

44. Proposed Project Term:

Start Date: End Date:

45. Estimated Funding (include all that apply):

Amount Requested from the State:

Applicant Contribution (e.g., in kind, matching):

Local Contribution:

Other Source of Contribution:

Program Income:

Applicant Certification:     
  
By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications* and (2) that the statements herein 
are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I also provide the required assurances* and agree to comply with 
any resulting terms if I accept an award.  I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject me 
to criminal, civil or administrative penalties.  (U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001) 
  
(*) The list of certification and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list is contained in the Notice of Funding 
Opportunity.

I Agree

Authorized Representative

3

46. First Name: 47. Last Name: 48. Suffix:

49. Title:

50: Telephone Number: 51. Fax Number:

52. E-mail Address:

53. Signature of Authorized Representative: Date  Signed - Authorized Representative:

Circle Avenue from Franklin Street to Roosevelt Road

April 1, 2029 August 31, 2029

 $1,611,456.00 

 $549,360.00 

Rachell Entler

Interim Village Administrator

(708) 615-6201

Rentler@forestpark.net



����������		
�� ��
���
�� ��� ����������� ����	���� �	���	�����
����� ������	�������������

��� !�"#$�%&#'��(!�!%�

)*+�*,-��./0110...2�� 345���67��8 ����9�7����:��������;�4��<=7���>���������
�����:��������;�4�����47��?@A@?B??��!CDEF�GC�GHHFEII �J�K��LL(!���M��� N�M;������� ����O



ion 1. The corpora 

 
RESOLUTION  NO. R-     -23 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION FOR 

NORTH CENTRAL COUNCIL OF MAYORS 
SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM (STP) FUNDS 

(Harrison Street – From Desplaines to Harlem) 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park 
 

as follows: 
 

Sect 

 
 

 
 

te authorities of the Village of Forest Park ("Village") hereby 

authorize and direct that an application be made to the North Central Council of Mayors for 

Surface Transportation Program funds ("STP Application") in the amount of Two Million Five 

Hundred Thirty Three Thousand Eighty Dollars ($2,533,080.00) ("STP Funding"), to partially 

fund a total project cost Three Million Three Hundred Ninety Six Thousand Six Hundred Thirty 

Dollars ($3,396,630.00) for the following project: 

HARRISON STREET FROM DESPLAINES TO HARLEM 
 

The project is generally described as the improvement of Harrison Street from 
Desplaines to Harlem, consisting of rehabilitation and reconstruction of the 
pavement. Improvements will include grinding; patching and resurfacing or 
reconstruction and pavement markings, depending on the variable pavement 
conditions, consistent with the requirements of the intersecting roadways, with 
curb and gutter, crosswalks and ADA improvements implemented, as required, 

 
all as identified in the Village’s STP Application ("Project"). 

 
Section 2. The Mayor and Village Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and attest, 

respectively, the STP Application and the various subsidiary forms contained therein, to make all 

required submissions and to take all steps necessary in connection with said STP Application for 

the requested STP Funding for the Project, a copy of which STP Application is on file with the 

Village Clerk. 

 
 
 
 



Section 3.   Upon award of the STP Funding, and electing to proceed, the Village will be 

required to appropriate the expenditure of the Village's matching funds, equal to approximately 

Eight Hundred Sixty Three Thousand Five Hundred Fifty Dollars ($863,550.00). 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 27th 

day of November, 2023. 

AYES: ___________________ 
 
NAYS: ___________________ 
 
ABSENT: _________________ 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

 

 
North Central Council of Mayors 

Call for Projects 2024 
October 25, 2023 – December 20, 2023 

Supplemental Project Application 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

 

Introduction 
On September 25, 2019, the North Central Council of Mayors approved and adopted a new methodology that 
would be used to select projects for the Council’s STP-L allocation in the 2020 Call for Projects (CFP).  This new 
methodology can be found on the West Central Municipal Conference Website. Further, a methodology 
update was performed by staff in December 2021 and further updated in 2023.  This methodology, also found 
on the West Central Municipal Conference Website will be used to select projects for the Council’s STP-L 
allocation in the 2024 CFP.  
 
Please make sure to read this entire document, the eTIP manual, and the Methodology prior to contacting the 
Planning Liaison.  Also be advised that failure to submit both the application and eTIP information will result in 
the project not being considered for funding. 
 
Applications for the current CFP requires two distinct steps.  First, the sponsor agency must fill out the 
pertinent information on CMAP’s TIP Portal under the North Central CFP.  Instructions for this are located later 
in a separate document also found on the WCMC website.  Consultants must notify kdobbs@cmap.illinois.gov 
which council they will be submitting applications for prior to establishing user credentials.  Secondly, the 
sponsor agency must fill in the information in this supplemental project application, which will be uploaded to 
the CMAP TIP site in MS Word format. ONLY submit the Supplemental Project Application portion of this 
document to the eTIP. 
 
Questions should be directed to the Planning Liaison, Leonard B. Cannata, 708-453-9100, 
Lcannata@westcook.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:kdobbs@cmap.illinois.gov
mailto:Lcannata@westcook.org


3 

 

 
 
 
 

STP-L 2024 Call for Projects Timeline 
October 25, 2023 – Call for projects open 
December 20, 2023 – Call for projects closes 
On or about February 1, 2024 -Staff releases recommended program 
February 1, 2024 – February 28, 2024 – Recommended program public comment period 
April 2024 – Final program presented for adoption by the North Central Council 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 

 

Application Check List 
 
⃝ Complete all fields in eTIP 
 
⃝ Map the project in eTIP 
 
⃝ Fill in necessary Project IDs in eTIP if from previous project 
 
⃝ Upload Supplemental Application in MS WORD format in eTIP and supporting documentation, Cost 
Estimate, Resolution Authorizing STP Grant 
 
⃝ Submit application by “Saving as Final” before December 20, 2023 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 

 

 
 

Supplemental Application 
 
This information will be used to score individual projects.  More details can be found within the Council 
methodology.  Please indicate point totals that will be awarded for phases of a project in the Total Points 
section of each section.  This is a means of self-scoring to give local sponsors an idea of where their project 
may rank.  Staff will make any necessary corrections.   
 
Project Information 
 
Sponsor Agency:   Village of Forest Park 
Sponsor Agency Mayor:  Mayor Rory E. Hoskins 
Sponsor Agency Mayor’s Email: mayorhoskins@forestpark.net 
 
Sponsor Agency Project Manager (Not Consultant): Rachell Entler 
Sponsor Agency Project Manager Email:  REntler@forestpark.net 
 
Consultant Name:   James Amelio 
Consultant Email:   JAmelio@cbbel.com 
 
Project Previous TIP Number:  04-22-0008 
Project CFP Number (found in eTIP submission): 
 
Desired Year for Project:  2029 
 
If project phase previously funded, please indicate the reason for delay.  These projects will be considered for 
funding after all new eligible projects with any remaining funds: 
 
Any Other Notes about project: 
 

1. Project Readiness (15 Max Points)– Please mark the pertinent box or boxes with the letter X indicating 
which phase of engineering has been completed.  Please also upload documentation verifying this 
information in eTIP. 
 

Mark Project Readiness Points 

 Phase II substantially complete/ready to submit to 
IDOT 

12.5 

 Phase II engineering contract executed 10 

 Phase I engineering Report completed 10 

 Phase I engineering report (PDR) draft submitted to 
IDOT 

7.5 

X ROW clear or not needed 2.5 

 TOTAL Points  
2.5 

 

mailto:mayorhoskins@forestpark.net
mailto:REntler@forestpark.net
mailto:JAmelio@cbbel.com


6 

 

2. Multiple Jurisdiction participation (10 Max Points)–  please indicate which additional entities will 
participate in the project.  Please upload documentation such as an IGA or letter of intent from the 
additional entities stating that they are contributing at least 2.5% of the total phase cost in dollars.  
Hard financial commitments only.  Staff time will not be eligible. 
 

Entity Name Points 

 2.5 

 2.5 

 2.5 

 2.5 

TOTAL Points  
 

 
3. Traffic Volumes – ADT (10 Max Points) – Please consult the methodology for more information.  If the 

entire roadway is the same ADT in excess of 7,500, then please indicate 10 in the Total points section. 
If there are various segments with different ADT’s, then please perform the calculation. 
 

Roadway Segment ADT Multiplier Divided By % of Project Points 

Harrison Street 4600 10 7500 100 6.1 

  10 7500   

  10 7500   

  10 7500   

Total Points     6.1 

 
4. Other Fund Sources (5 Max Points)– If the project has other fund sources, excluding local funds, please 

indicate the fund source and award the project 5 points. Please upload documentation such as a 
program award letter indicating the fund source and amount. 
 

Other Fund Source Points 

  

Total Points  

 
5. Safety (10 Max Points)– Please see methodology for more information.  Please provide a narrative 

regarding safety improvements on the project as well as proof indicating the scoring of the roadway 
according to IDOT. Please then mark which safety classification the roadway falls under and award 
points according to the methodology. 

 

Mark Safety Classification  

 Critical  

 High  

 Medium  

 Low  

X Minimal 2 

 New Alignment  

 Total Points 2 

 



7 

 

6. Pavement Condition Rating (25 Max Points)– Please consult the below website to indicate the roadway 
condition.  Please also upload proof of this roadway condition.  If there are multiple segments with 
different ratings, then the length weighted average will be used.  

 
https://lakecountyil.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9e0e25a18680427085a6c2efdad32
bf5 
 

Mark Pavement Condition  

X Poor (0-45) 10% x 25 2.5 

X Fair (46-60) 90% x 20 18 

 Satisfactory (61-75)  

 Excellent (76-100)  

   

 New Allignment  

 Total Points 20.5 

 
7. Planning Factor (5 Max Points)– Inclusive Growth – Please provide documentation regarding the 

minority population within the sponsor municipality. 

Mark Population Points 

X Greater than 50% 5 

 40-49.99%  

 30-39.99%  

 20-29.99%  

 Total Points  

 
8. Planning Factor (5 Max Points)– Green Infrastructure – Please provide documentation of Green 

Infrastructure components within the project or the community’s green infrastructure plan. 
 
Components or Plan (List Components)   Points 

• Green Streets Policy     5 Points 
 
 

9. Planning Factor (5 Max Points) – Freight Movement – Please provide documentation indicating freight 
movement as well. 

 

Roadway Segment Freight Classifier Point Multiplier Points 

    

    

    

    

  Total Points  

 
 
 
 

https://lakecountyil.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9e0e25a18680427085a6c2efdad32bf5
https://lakecountyil.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9e0e25a18680427085a6c2efdad32bf5


8 

 

10. Planning Factor (5 Max Points) – Complete Streets – Please indicate and upload proof of a complete 
streets policy or complete streets components within the project. 

 
Components or Plan (List Components)   Points 

• Complete Streets Policy    5 Points 
 

11. Planning Factor (5 Max Points) – Transit Supportive Density – Please provide prove of zoning within 
one quarter mile of the project area.  Please indicate the highest density according to an approved 
zoning map showing either the max height of non-residential buildings or the number of possible 
dwelling units per acre.  The highest density will be used to determine points allocation.  

 
 

Level of Density Points 

R-3 7516 Harrison Street 5 

  

Total  Points 5 

 
 
 











V I L L A G E  O F  F O R E S T  PA R K  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 29

Zoning 
District

MAXIMUM 
BUILDING 
HEIGHT

LOT SIZE 
(sq. ft.)

LOT 
WIDTH

LOT 
DEPTH

SETBACKS MAXIMUM 
LOT 

COVERAGEFRONT SIDE REAR

R-1 Low 
Residential District

2.5 stories 
or 35’ 6,250 50’ 125’ 20’ or 15% of lot area 3’ or 10% of 

lot area
25’ or 20% 
of lot area 40%

R-2 Medium 
Density Residential 

District

2.5 stories 
or 35’

5,000 
single family;

3,000 two-family; 
2,000 row or 

townhome

40’ single and 
two family; 

18’ row or 
townhome

120’ 20’ or 15% of lot area 3’ or 10% of 
lot area

25’ or 20% 
of lot area 45%

R-3 High Density 
Residential District

5 stories 
or 60’

6,250;

2,500 per family 
two-family dwelling 
& multiple dwelling 
unit type specific 

requirements; 2,000 
row or townhome

50’ 125’ 20’ or 15% 
of lot area Same as R-1 Same as R-1 40%

B-1 Neighborhood 
Shopping District

5 stories 
or 60’

If living facilities
1,250 per family n/a n/a 20’/non-required if 

for business purpose

5’ unless 
buildable 
width less 
than 25’

25’ or 20% 80%

B-2 Community 
Shopping District

7 stories 
or 75’ n/a n/a n/a 20’/non-required if 

for business purpose n/a n/a n/a

DBD Downtown 
Business District

4 stories 
or 50’ n/a n/a n/a Same as adjoining 

structure or property none 25’ or 20% none

I-1 Light Industrial 
District

6 stories 
or 75’ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

I-2 Industrial 
District

6 stories 
or 75’ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

The following table summarizes the zoning bulk requirements:



Village of Forest Park

STP Project

Harrison Street (Des Plaines to Harlem)

Engineers Opinion of Probable Cost

STREET

SP ITEM NO. ITEM UNITS HARRISON  Unit Price  Item Price 

20101100 TREE TRUNK PROTECTION EACH 25  $             200.00 5,000.00$          

20101200 TREE ROOT PRUNING EACH 50  $             125.00 6,250.00$          

20200100 EARTH EXCAVATION CU YD 4000  $               50.00 200,000.00$      

20800150 TRENCH BACKFILL CU YD 100  $               45.00 4,500.00$          

21101615 TOPSOIL FURNISH AND PLACE,  4" SQ YD 850  $               10.00 8,500.00$          

25200110 SODDING, SALT TOLERANT SQ YD 850  $               12.00 10,200.00$        

25200200 SUPPLEMENTAL WATERING UNIT 30  $               50.00 1,500.00$          

28000510 INLET FILTERS EACH 100 150.00$             15,000.00$        

30300112 AGGREGATE SUBGRADE IMPROVEMENT 12" SQ YD 12000  $               20.00 240,000.00$      

40600290 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL (TACK COAT) POUND 32500  $                 1.00 32,500.00$        

40603080 HOT-MIX ASPHALT BINDER COURSE, IL-19.0, N50 TON 4804  $             110.00 528,440.00$      

40603335 HOT-MIX ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE, MIX "D", N50 TON 1148  $             110.00 126,280.00$      

42300400 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT,  8 INCH SQ YD 340  $               90.00 30,600.00$        

42400200 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5 INCH SQ FT 35000  $               10.00 350,000.00$      

42400800 DETECTABLE WARNINGS SQ FT 525  $               50.00 26,250.00$        

44000100 PAVEMENT REMOVAL SQ YD 12000  $               12.00 144,000.00$      

44000200 DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT REMOVAL SQ YD 100  $               20.00 2,000.00$          

44000600 SIDEWALK REMOVAL SQ FT 35000  $                 2.00 70,000.00$        

550B0050 STORM SEWERS, CLASS B (PVC), TYPE 1  12" FOOT 100  $             110.00 11,000.00$        

55100500 STORM SEWER REMOVAL  12" FOOT 150  $               20.00 3,000.00$          

56300100 ADJUSTING SANITARY SEWERS, 8-INCH DIAMETER OR LESS FOOT 400  $               30.00 12,000.00$        

60200105 CATCH BASINS, TYPE A, 4'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID EACH 3  $         6,000.00 18,000.00$        

60206905 CATCH BASINS, TYPE C, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID EACH 3  $         4,500.00 13,500.00$        

60406000 FRAMES AND LIDS, TYPE 1, OPEN LID EACH 30  $             500.00 15,000.00$        

60406100 FRAMES AND LIDS, TYPE 1, CLOSED LID EACH 50  $             500.00 25,000.00$        

78000100 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LETTERS AND SYMBOLS SQ FT 250  $               25.00 6,250.00$          

78000400 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE  6" FOOT 650  $                 3.00 1,950.00$          

78006150 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE  12" FOOT 375  $                 5.00 1,875.00$          

78000600 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE 24" FOOT 350  $                 8.00 2,800.00$          

* X0326859 PAVEMENT IMPRINTING SQ FT 7500  $               22.00 165,000.00$      

* X0326862 STRUCTURES TO BE ADJUSTED EACH 60  $             750.00 45,000.00$        

* X7010216 TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION, (SPECIAL) LSUM 1  $       50,000.00 50,000.00$        

* Z0013798 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT LSUM 1  $       15,000.00 15,000.00$        

* Z0018700 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE TO BE REMOVED EACH 6  $             600.00 3,600.00$          

* Z0056604 STORM SEWER (WATER MAIN REQUIREMENTS) 8 INCH FOOT 100  $             125.00 12,500.00$        

* N/A BRICK RIBBON SF 12400  $               25.00 310,000.00$      

* N/A COMB CONC CURB AND GUTTER REM AND REP (SPECIAL) FOOT 6200  $               45.00 279,000.00$      

* N/A ITEMS ORDERED BY ENGINEER DOLLAR 10000  $                 1.00 10,000.00$        

* N/A LANDSCAPE ENHANCEMENTS LSUM 1  $       50,000.00 50,000.00$        

* N/A PRECONSTRUCTION VIDEO (SPECIAL) LSUM 1  $         2,000.00 2,000.00$          

* N/A SITE FURNITURE LSUM 1  $       25,000.00 25,000.00$        

 Total 2,878,495.00$   

Construction 2,878,500.00$   

Phase 2 Engr. 230,280.00$      

Phase 3 Engr. 287,850.00$      

Total 3,396,630.00$   

FED (80%) LOCAL (20%) TOTAL

Construction 2,302,800.00$   575,700.00$     2,878,500.00$   

Phase 2 Engr. - 100% Local -$                    230,280.00$     230,280.00$      

Phase 3 Engr. 230,280.00$      57,570.00$        287,850.00$      

Total 2,533,080.00$   863,550.00$     3,396,630.00$   

Engineer's Estimate

11/16/2023













00

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

1200

1300

1400

1500

1600

00

100

200

72
00

73
00

74
00

75
00

74
00

73
00

72
00

76
00

1700

1800

1900

2000

75
00

76
00

77
00

78
00

79
00

80
00

81
00

82
00

83
00

84
00

85
00

86
00

2000

1200

1300

1400

1500

1600

1700

1800

1900

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

79
00

80
00

81
00

82
00

83
00

84
00

78
00

77
00

300

BETSY ROSS
SCHOOL

FOREST PARK
MIDDLE SCHOOL

FIELD
STEVENSON

SCHOOL

ST.
BERNARDINE

SCHOOL

GARFIELD
SCHOOL

ST. JOHN
SCHOOL

GRANT WHITE
SCHOOL

STATION PARK

POLICE/FIRE
STATION

OAK PARK
MONTESSORI

WOODLAWN
CEMETERY

U.S. POSTAL
FACILITY

JEWISH
CEMETERIES

FOREST
PARK PLAZA

JEWISH
CEMETERIES

FOREST HOME
CEMETERY

FOREST HOME
CEMETERY

WALDHEIM
CEMETARY

CONCORDIA
CEMETERY

CONCORDIA
CEMETERY

OAK PARK
YARDS

VILLAGE HALL

D
E

S
P

L A
I N

ES
R

IV
E

R

D
E

S
P

L
A

I N
E

S
R

I V
E

R

D E S
P L A I N E S

R I V E R

UUVPD 5

UUVPD 6

UUVPD 2

UUVPD 1

UUVPD 4

UUVPD 3

UUVPD 7

1S
T 

AV
E

JACKSON BLVD

DE
S

PL
AI

NE
S

AV
E

DE
S 

PL
AIN

ES
 AV

E

DE
S 

PL
AIN

ES
 A

VE

HARRISON ST

RANDOLPH ST

W LEGION ST

HA
NN

AH
A V

E

WASHINGTON ST

WARREN ST

EL
GI

N 
AV

E

S 
HA

RL
EM

 A
VE

BU
RK

HA
RD

T 
CT

S
GR

EE
NW

OO
D

AV
E

ROCKFORD CT

IL171

S
1S

T
AV

E
S 

1S
T 

AV
E

W MADISON ST W MADISON ST

W ROOSEVELT RD W ROOSEVELT RD W ROOSEVELT RD

DIXON ST

RO
CK

FO
RD

 A
VE

TR
OO

ST
 A

VE

EL
GI

N 
AV

E

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
E

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
E

14TH ST

15TH ST

S 
HA

RL
EM

 A
VE

S 
HA

RL
EM

 A
VE

BR
OW

N 
AV

E

CI
RC

LE
 A

VE
CI

RC
LE

 A
VE

CI
RC

LE
 A

VE

16TH ST

GREENBURG RD

LINCOLN CT

ADAMS ST

LEHMER ST

FR
AN

KL
IN

 A
VE

HARVARD ST

LA
TH

RO
P 

AV
E

LEXINGTON ST

FILLMORE ST

13TH ST

E WILCOX ST

S 
OR

CH
AR

D 
AV

E

AS
HL

AN
D 

AV
E

LA
TH

RO
P 

AV
E

HA
NN

AH
 A

VE

TH
OM

AS
 A

VE

BE
LO

IT 
AV

E

CERMAK RD

FE
RD

IN
AN

D 
AV

E

PA
RK

 A
VE

WILCOX ST

MONROE ST

FRANKLIN ST

HA
RL

EM
 A

VE

EL
GI

N 
AV

E

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
E

DU
NL

OP
 A

VE

MAYBROOK DR

CIRCLE AVE

WASHINGTON ST
BROWN AVE

BE
LO

IT 
AV

E

BERGMAN CT

VINE ST

POLK ST

YORK ST

YUBA ST

TAYLOR ST

HA
NN

AH
 A

VE

DE
S

PL
AIN

ES
AV

E

FE
RD

IN
AN

D 
AV

E

MAY
BR

OO
KDR

1ST AVE

W 
VA

N 
BU

RE
N 

ST

1S
T

A V
E

BE
LV

ID
ER

E 
AV

E

LA
TH

RO
P 

AV
E

TH
OM

AS
 A

VE

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
E

EL
GI

N 
AV

E

FO
RE

ST
 A

VE

TH
AT

CH
ER

 A
VE

GA
LE

 A
VE

KE
YS

TO
NE

 A
VE

GR
OV

E 
LN

W INDUSTRIAL DR

EISENHOWER EXPY

EISENHOWER EXPY

EISENHOWER EXPY

Document Path: U:\GIS_Mapping\FORESTPARK\Zoning Map\Zoning Map 2023.mxd

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARKOFFICIAL ZONING MAP
VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023

F500 0 500 1,000

Feet

INDEX OF PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS
1. MADISON COMMONS O-49-03, O-50-03
2. THE RESIDENCES AT THE GROVE O-01-05, O-02-05
3. LIFETIME STORAGE O-38-13
4. FARMINGTON O-35-15
5. DOLLAR TREE O-16-16
6. VAN BUREN TOWNHOMES O -20-17
7. 7329 W. HARRISON O-10-17

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

R-1 LOW DENSITY

R-2 MEDIUM DENSITY

R-3 HIGH DENSITY

B-1 NEIGHBORHOOD SHOPPING

B-2 COMMUNITY SHOPPING

DBD DOWNTOWN BUSINESS

L E G E N D

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESS
OVERLAY DISTRICT

VILLAGE LIMITS

VANESSA MORITZ
VILLAGE CLERK

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, ILL.

NOTE: MAP REFLECTS ALL ACTIVITY UP TO
DECEMBER 31, 2021 MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY

CHANGES, ZONING CHANGES, SUBDIVISIONS,
ETC., THAT HAVE BEEN APPROVED AFTER THIS

DATE ARE NOT REFLECTED.

NOTE: PARCEL BOUNDARIES BASED ON COOK COUNTY ACESSORS DATABASE CREATED DEC. 20, 2019.

I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

I-2 INDUSTRIAL



UNIFORM APPLICATION FOR STATE GRANT ASSISTANCE

Agency Completed Section

4. Name of the Awarding State Agency:

1. Type of Submission: Pre-application Application Change/Corrected Application

New Continuation (i.e. multiple year grant) Revision (modification to initial application)2. Type of Application:

Date Received by State: Time Received by State:

3. Completed by State Agency upon Receipt of Application

5. Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA) Number:

6. CSFA Title:

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)

Not Applicable

7. CFDA Number:

8. CFDA Title:

10. CFDA Title:

9. CFDA Number:

Funding Opportunity Information

13. Funding Opportunity Program Field:

12. Funding Opportunity Title:

11. Funding Opportunity Number:

Funding Opportunity Information

15. Competition Identification Title:

14. Competition Identification Number:

Not Applicable

1

Illinois Department of Transportation

Local STP (STU and STR)



UNIFORM APPLICATION FOR STATE GRANT ASSISTANCE

Applicant Completed Section

Applicant Information

16. Legal Name (Name used for Data Universal Number System (DUNS) registration and grantee pre-qualification):

17. Common Name (Doing Business As-DBA):

18. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN, TIN):

19, Organizational Data Universal Number System (DUNS) Number:

20. Federal System for Award Management Commercial And Government Entity Code (SAM Cage Code):
21. Business Address:

Street:

City: State: County: Zip+4:

Applicant's Organization Unit

22. Department Name:

23. Division Name:

Applicant's Name and Contact Information for Person to be Contacted for Program Matters involving this Application

24. First Name: 25. Last Name: 26. Suffix:

27. Title:

28: Organizational Affiliation:

29: Telephone Number: 30. Fax Number:

31. E-mail Address:

Applicant's Name and Contact Information for Person to be Contacted for Business/Administrative Office 
Matters involving this Application

32. First Name: 33. Last Name: 34. Suffix:

35. Title:

36: Organizational Affiliation:

37: Telephone Number: 38. Fax Number:

39. E-mail Address:

Areas Affected

2

40. Areas Affected by the Project (cities, counties, state-wide):

41. Legislative and Congressional Districts of Applicant:

42. Legislative and Congressional Districts of Program/Project:

Village of Forest Park

Village of Forest Park

36-6005875

076891365

4KZD4

517 Des Plaines Avenue

Forest Park IL Cook 60130

Public Works

Streets

James Amelio

Village Engineer

Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd.

(847) 823-0500

jamelio@cbbel.com

Rachell Entler

Interim Village Administrator

Village of Forest Park

(708) 615-6201

Rentler@forestpark.net

Village of Forest Park

District 7

District 7



UNIFORM APPLICATION FOR STATE GRANT ASSISTANCE

Applicant's Project

43. Description Title of Applicant's Project (Text only for the Title of the Applicant's Project):

44. Proposed Project Term:

Start Date: End Date:

45. Estimated Funding (include all that apply):

Amount Requested from the State:

Applicant Contribution (e.g., in kind, matching):

Local Contribution:

Other Source of Contribution:

Program Income:

Applicant Certification:     
  
By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications* and (2) that the statements herein 
are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I also provide the required assurances* and agree to comply with 
any resulting terms if I accept an award.  I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject me 
to criminal, civil or administrative penalties.  (U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001) 
  
(*) The list of certification and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list is contained in the Notice of Funding 
Opportunity.

I Agree

Authorized Representative

3

46. First Name: 47. Last Name: 48. Suffix:

49. Title:

50: Telephone Number: 51. Fax Number:

52. E-mail Address:

53. Signature of Authorized Representative: Date  Signed - Authorized Representative:

Harrison Street from Des Plaines Avenue to Harlem Avenue

April 1, 2029 August 31, 2029

 $2,533,080.00 

 $863,550.00 

Rachell Entler

Interim Village Administrator

(708) 615-6201

Rentler@forestpark.net



����������		
�� ��
���
�� ��� ����������� ����	���� �	���	�����
����� ������	�������������

��� !�"#$�%&#'��(!�!%�

)*+�*,-��./0110...2�� 345���67��8 ����9�7����:��������;�4��<=7���>���������
�����:��������;�4�����47��?@A@?B??��!CDEF�GC�GHHFEII �J�K��LL(!���M��� N�M;������� ����O



1170587.1 

 ORDINANCE NO. O-________-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE  
EXECUTION OF A VEHICLE PARKING LICENSE AGREEMENT  

BY AND BETWEEN CURRIE MOTORS CHEVROLET, INC.  
AND THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
WHEREAS, Currie Motors Chevrolet, Inc. (“Currie”) operates a car dealership in the Village 

of Forest Park (“Village”) and proposes to license a portion of a Village-owned parking lot located 

just west of Desplaines Avenue (“Village Lot”) for the purposes of vehicle storage and not sales, to 

support its sales operation in the Village (“Vehicle Storage”); and 

WHEREAS, the Village is agreeable to grant to Currie the license to enter on and occupy the 

Village Lot for the sole purpose of Vehicle Storage, as further provided for and pursuant to that 

certain Vehicle Parking License Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof 

(“License Agreement”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Village Council of the Village of Forest 

Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

1. That the License Agreement, attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A, is 

approved and the execution of the License Agreement by the Mayor and Village Clerk is hereby 

authorized. 

2. That the officials, officers, employees and agents of the Village are authorized to take 

such actions and execute such documents as are necessary to carry out the purpose and intent of the 

License Agreement. 

3. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon and after its passage and 

approval in the manner provided by law. 

 



1170587.1 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 27th day of 

November, 2023.  

  
AYES:___________________________________________   
 
NAYS:___________________________________________   
 
ABSENT:_________________________________________   

   
 

APPROVED:   
   
 

______________________________   
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor   
 

ATTEST:   
  
 
__________________________   
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk   



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 





9/28/23, 11:02 AM 711 Des Plaines Ave - Google Maps

https://www.google.com/maps/place/711+Des+Plaines+Ave,+Forest+Park,+IL+60130/@41.8750604,-87.8169468,292m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x880e351ddc46aedd:0x625d73fa8dd12c06!8m2!3… 1/1

Imagery ©2023 CNES / Airbus, Maxar Technologies, Sanborn, U.S. Geological Survey, USDA/FPAC/GEO, Map data ©2023 100 ft 

711 Des Plaines Ave

subject 
location






























	112723Agenda.pdf
	Minutes Public Hearing Circle Harlem TIF 11-13-2023
	ROLL CALL
	WRITTEN COMMENTS
	AYES:      Commissioners, Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins

	minutes 11132023
	THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE
	VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
	HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, NOVEMBER 13, 2023
	ROLL CALL
	Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.  Commissioner Nero was absent.
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	APPROVAL OF BILLS:
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins

	November 27 2023 Bills by Resolution
	11.27.2023 Resolution.pdf
	11.27.2023 Agenda.pdf

	2023 October monthly Fire Dept report
	Sep - Oct 2023 Police Department Report
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7

	1 Ordinance Approving Plan and Project -  Harlem Circle Redevelopment Project Area - FINAL(1163109.2)
	ORDINANCE NO. O-______-23

	2 Ordinance designating RPA re Harlem Circle Redevelopment Project Area - FINAL(1163114.2)
	3 Ordinance Adopting TIF financing for Harlem Circle Redevelopment Project Area(1163116.1)
	ORDINANCE NO. O-______-23

	4 Resolution authorizing and directing the transfer of funds from the Brown Street Station-Harlem Avenue TIF District to the Circle Harlem TIF Distric
	5 Forest Park Resolution Determining the Estimated Property Taxes to be Levied By the Village of Forest Park for the 2023 Tax Year
	2023.pdf
	Forest Park Resolution Determining the Estimated Property Taxes to be Levied By the Village of Forest Park for the 2023 Tax Year.pdf

	6 Amended Appropriations Ordinance Library
	Library R023-006 for 11.27.2023 agenda.pdf
	Memo to Village Board re R023-006.pdf
	R023-006.pdf

	2024 Appropriation Ordinance revised 11.27.2023 for Library
	2024 Estimate of Revenue revised 11.27.2023 for Library

	7 Resolution IGA MWRD for Green Alley Project
	7 Resolution approving intergovernmental agreement with MWRD for Green Alley Project(1177295.1).pdf
	Exhibits 1-10 (need to insert exhibits 9, 10).pdf
	Exhibit 09.O&M Plan for GI (Permeable Pavement)_.jfacomments.082823
	Exh. 10 - GI IGA AFF OF OWNERSHIP_Forest Park
	AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP

	2023.10.18 Forest Park GI IGA_PreFinal

	8 Resolution authorizing execution of professional engineering and services proposal from Burke Engineering for Lead Service Line Replacement Project
	9 Resolution STP Application Circle Complete
	9 Resolution STP Application Circle.pdf
	Circle Ave STP Application.111723
	Circle Ave STP Application.111723
	02.Forest-Park-Complete-Streets-Policy
	03.NCCM-Supplemental-Application-2028-2029
	05.Pages from Forest Park Comprehensive Plan
	06.FP Circle Cost Estimate.111623
	07.Green Streets Policy
	08.Zoning Map 2023
	09.Uniform Application for State Grant Assistance.CIRCLE

	CMAP - Project3


	10 Resolution STP Application Harrison Complete
	10 Resolution STP Application Harrison.pdf
	Harrison St STP Application.111723.pdf
	Harrison St STP Appliation.111723
	02.Forest-Park-Complete-Streets-Policy
	03.NCCM-Supplemental-Application-2028-2029
	05.Pages from Forest Park Comprehensive Plan
	06.FP Harrison Cost Estimate.11162023
	07.Green Streets Policy
	08.Zoning Map 2023
	09.Uniform Application for State Grant Assistance.HARRISON

	CMAP - Project3


	11 Ordinance approving and authorizing the execution of a Vehicle Parking License Agreement with Currie
	11 Ordinance approving and authorizing the execution of a Vehicle Parking License Agreement with Currie.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. O-________-23
	AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE
	EXECUTION OF A VEHICLE PARKING LICENSE AGREEMENT
	BY AND BETWEEN CURRIE MOTORS CHEVROLET, INC.
	AND THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
	EXHIBIT A
	LICENSE AGREEMENT

	Jankelow to Mayor Hoskins re 711 Des Plaines (002).pdf
	doc08811020231019154225.pdf
	711 Des Plaines Ave - Google Maps23 (004).pdf


	12 FuelmasterMaintenanceAgreement1123_1124
	13 CC Senior Trip Contracts
	cc wildfire contract.pdf
	cc drury lane
	cc murder mystery

	14 CC Raffle Permit Request



